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CORPORATE INFORMATION
A

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa (Chairman)

Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung (Managing Director)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping

Mr. Lam Ka Po

Mr. Cheung Ka Ho

Mr. Liu Min

Mr. Zhou Pei Feng

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Lo Ka Leong
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Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael
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Mr. Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen

Mr. Zhang Lu Fu (appointed on 1 January 2015)

Mr. Mok Yiu Keung, Peter (resigned on 31 December 2014)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tsoi Kin Lung

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of Communications Co. Ltd.

China Construction Bank Corporation

Citibank, N.A.

DBS Bank Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

The Bank of Toyko-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NRIER
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
BT 2

Year ended
31 December 2014
BE-Z—NmfF

+T-A=1+—HILEE
HK$ MillionB &8 7t

Year ended

31 December 2013
HE—_ZT—=F
T A=1+—RHIEFE
HK$ Million & &8 7T

Revenue EE 21 13,282.7 12,798.3
EBITDA* RNRRER - BIR - FER
BRI 2,146.2 2,185.9
Profit before tax* R A0 7% Al 1,302.9 1,334.0
Net profit attributable to owners of A ERHE AL T
the Company
— Underlying net profit* — EARER 1,095.5 1,148.0
- Reported net profit —BRE4LF 1,121.8 1,207.2
Earnings per share BREF
— Based on underlying net profit* — AR F G E HK36.5 cents i1l HK38.3 cents/ &1l
— Based on reported net profit — ABREAE AT E HK37.4 centsi& 1l HKA40.2 centsiE Il
Full-year dividend per share BREFERE HK16.0 centsi# 1l HK17.0 centsi ill
— Interim dividend per share — SR HRE HK6.0 centsj& 1l HK5.0 cents/& 1l
— Proposed final dividend per share — B ORCREAR A HK10.0 centsj& 1l HK12.0 cents/&1ll
Dividend payout ratio* TR E L 2R 44% 44%
Net asset value per share BREEZE HK$4.437 T HK$4.3178 7T
Net gearing FEMELE 18% 21%
* Excluding: ARIE
2014: Gain on fair value changes of investment properties of HK$28.5 million and share- —TNE RAVELATEEHZWE-_TFTN\BET
based payments of HK$2.1 million. BATIUROEANR=_A—TET -
2013: Gain on fair value changes of investment properties of HK$72.1 million and share- D= RAVEATEEY WG tT A+
based payments of HK$12.9 million. BETRUBRMEARR—FZah+8
5o
# Calculated base on underlying net profit. # AEARLERIGTE -
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MR

Revenue

ERE
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BEETT
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Net Profit attributable to owners of the Company*
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERHE

BUSINESS REVIEW

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am delighted to report to our
shareholders that Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) delivered satisfactory results for the financial
year ended 31 December 2014. Growth in the electronics market during
the year was mainly driven by sales of smartphones, telecommunications
base stations and automobile-related electronic products. Leveraging on
the management’s business acumen and extensive operational experience,
the Group was able to formulate visionary development strategies to help it
achieve outstanding results through consistent capacity expansion in high-
performance laminates and other upstream materials. Laminates output and
shipment volumes have thus climbed to new record highs. During the year,
capacity enhancement works for our laminates plants were completed as
scheduled. To further strengthen our vertical production setup, enhanced
facilities for upstream materials were commissioned during the year,
increasing the monthly capacities of glass fabric by 26% to 3.3 million metres
and glass yarn by 45% to 9,000 tonnes.

Turnover Breakdown by Products & ¥ X5 9

E O

AABREREZE MARBUREAMN - 2
EEERZERBRAR(T AR REHB AR
([E£®HREE-_ZT—NF+-_A=+—81t
BIRFEREEER - FR - FaeFH - BE
VR AERAETERKNATTMIENESE
E&h - BESHAMBHEEREENEEL
BABETEESTARENEESRE 2
EIREE NS R EIAEAR R H B R e E
BE BMSEHAK EEERARIEEER
HEETHEA  BAFS - R - BIRER
ZERBLBENHEENX - ARABEEEAEE
AHEEBY - LY ZERREFEE RIEF
WANEE  HRERBEEMEREH26%EE
A=F=88XK EBHEERA4S%ESTA
NFmE o

FY2014
—E-MERBEE

Paper Laminates

MBI IR

. Glass Epoxy Laminates
IRE P E MR INE R

Upstream Materials* . Properties”®
ETREE

FY2013
“E-=FPREE

[ Others'
FEihE® HAb'

* Upstream Materials including copper foil, epoxy resin, glass fabric and bleached kraft paper

@ Properties mainly comprised rental income

#  Others comprised drilling services and PVB
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERWE

BUS' N ESS REVIEW (continued)

Group revenue for the year increased 4% to HK$13,282.7 million, producing
an underlying net profit (excluding non-recurring items) of HK$1,095.5 million,
a mild drop of 5%. Despite the persistent difficult operating environment for
the manufacturing sector in China, the Group was able to deliver satisfactory
earnings and maintained a healthy financial position.

The Board has proposed a final dividend of HK10 cents per share, subject to
shareholders’ approval. Together with the interim dividend of HK6 cents per
share paid in September 2014, this will constitute a total dividend of HK16
cents per share for the full year, representing a payout ratio of 44%.

PERFORMANCE

In 2014, the Group’s consolidated revenue was HK$13,282.7 million,
achieved on an average monthly shipment volume of 9.5 million square
metres, an increase of 5% over the previous year. Revenue from composite
epoxy material laminates (“CEM”) and glass epoxy laminates (“FR4”)
contributed 60% of Group revenue in 2014, while paper laminates sales
accounted for 19% of total revenue. The balance mainly comprised sales
of upstream materials and other products. The Group’s gross profit margin
was maintained at 15%. Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation (‘EBITDA”) (excluding non-recurring items) were HK$2,146.2
million, remaining level with 2013.

EFEOIEE e

EEEFEXRRMARE—B=T_EBN\T
—HETEAT  2FEAMAN(TREREE
MIEE )R T HRERETRBATHEEATEA
T BEBENERUEXNRARS  £EARN
FARDAZSEEATN - MBI ERRE -

BECEZRERBREEI0B - HERE

HAFREFRABRR  c ZERR T —NFA
AREEReBIZPHKRE  2FRELES
167 - KRB ERIEL4% o

EBRRR

T-NF - EBECHEAEEEAS B
TZBNAFT_BEL+ESATL EAFHEE
BNLERTEFAK WEFLEHAS% - 18
AEMBERER([CEM]) RIREFBHETENR
ER(FRANDA - E—E(hEEE (B E
B60% - MEBEINER 2 E B ERA19% -
ERFEREHORREMERZHE - £
EFREFHFN15% » KINBFE -« BB - I
ER#EEZ2HEAN(TEEFEEMEE) A
—t+—REFRETEST  BEFHEE -

IR

Construction of the PVB plant in Qingyuan, Guangdong Province is completed, which increased the Group’s capacity in the production of PVB further.

MEREFENTHNPVBEE EIEFITEK - £EMTERAPVBZ EfE ©
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CHARMAN'S STATEMENT
ERWE

PERFORMANCE (continued)

As shipment volume expanded, distribution and administrative costs
increased 3% and 6% respectively against last year. Finance costs dropped
18% during the year, mainly as a result of lower average bank borrowings
and borrowing costs. The effective tax rate was 14.5%.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our consolidated financial and liquidity position remained robust. As at 31
December 2014, net current assets and current ratio of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$7,113.4 million (31 December 2013: HK$7,983.9 million)
and 2.15 (31 December 2013: 2.97) respectively.

The net working capital cycle decreased to 110 days as at 31 December
2014 from 111 days as at 31 December 2013, on the following key metrics:

- Inventories, in terms of stock turnover days, increased to 47 days (31
December 2013: 44 days).

- Trade receivables, including amounts due from fellow subsidiaries,
in terms of debtors turnover days, were shortened to 101 days (31
December 2013: 107 days).

- Trade and bills payables, including amounts due to fellow subsidiaries,
in terms of creditors turnover days, were shortened to 38 days (31
December 2013: 40 days).

The Group’s unrivalled operation advantage is attributable to its complete vertical integration

production line.
TEMNEARSLERR  SHERAED -
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Production capacity of glass yamn is expected to increase
in 2015.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TEHmE

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

(continued)

The Group’s net gearing ratio (ratio of interest-bearing borrowings, net
of cash and cash equivalents, to total equity) was reduced to 18% (31
December 2013: 21%). In 2014, the Group invested HK$930 million in new
production capacities and HK$770 million in its property business. Equipped
with an experienced professional management team, a solid business
foundation and sound financial strength, management is confident that these
investments will deliver stable and attractive returns to shareholders over the
long term. The ratio of bank borrowings between short term and long term
stood at 56%:44% (31 December 2013: 30%:70%). Meanwhile, the Group
maintained sufficient financial resources to meet the requirements for future
market developments.

The Group continued to adopt a prudent financial management policy. It has
entered into forward currency contracts in order to minimize the Group’s
foreign exchange exposure. As at 31 December 2014, such contracts had a
fair value of HK$6.8 million. Other than the aforesaid instrument which was
related to the Group’s normal course of business, the Group did not enter
into any other types of derivative financial instruments, nor did the Group
have any material foreign exchange exposure during the year. The Group’s
revenue, mostly denominated in Hong Kong dollars, RMB and US dollars,
was fairly matched with the currency requirements of its operating expenses.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a workforce of approximately
10,400 (31 December 2013: 9,700). The increase in workforce was mainly
due to the increased staff force at the newly completed laminates plant in
Jiangmen, Guangdong Province and at the new glass yarn plant in Qingyuan,
Guangdong Province. In addition to offering competitive salary packages, the
Group grants share options and discretionary bonuses to eligible employees
based on the Group’s overall financial achievements and employees’
individual performance.

REES R =

SEHZ2FEEEER(HERREEASEEDE
M B EEHEERBELR) T EE18%(ZE
—=F+-"A=+—H:21%)c —ZT—[04F -
EERENBE=ZTEBELABETNEER LK
tEETEEIREHEER - BEIXER
EHEEnEh  RREMNEBEREREENH
BEH ERERELMRESARFETRE
RIEBTMELEON - MHERBEENLA
B56% 4% (ZE—=F+_F=+—H:
30% : 70%) - EEMERVKEERTE © BN
WERRTSERNFR

%.Zﬁigﬁm%’ﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬁ‘%ﬂ%ﬁ SEIRET AN
MRS A - DUBESNE (B 48 % &) A s 2R A9 2
M’M:émﬁ Z-ME+-A=+—HZ
NREEAESNBNTBEL BT LEEEAR
BEEHBZTESRM T AN EFERFRIL
BAIVHMEMEZNTEERTA - SEF
NI A EARRIMNERL - ERMHBAEE
BT ARBRETAE  H2ERZNE
s ZE SR EL R BURFT o

ADER

RZZE—NE+ZA=+—0 SE&HER
E\IVZ}] BTNFA(E—=ZF+=_A=1+—
H:ATEBEA) ELENEZEREESFARN
FER A TP #4AK K 8 SR E AR Bk KB | T 3K
BHRAIERAT c SRR TIREARS I
NS - MEREARNMBALAFIER S
THRE - BEREEBRERFNEETEE
ETL -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TEHmE

PROSPECTS

The year 2015 is witnessing continued warming up of the market for
downstream electronic gadgets including smartphones and electronic
consumer products, helping to drive the demand for high-performance
laminates. Having tapped successfully into the market for LED-related
laminates, the Group expects to see steady growth in sales going forward. Al
our plants are actively working on enhancing their operation efficiency to meet
strong demand in laminates production.

In a consistently improving environment for the laminates business, the
Group has commissioned further capacity enhancement works at the newly
completed glass yarn plant in Qingyuan, Guangdong Province.

Recent years, demand in PVB film continues to expand. After more than
a decade of active development in the production of quality PVB films, the
Group is one of only four manufacturers in the world equipped with thin-
film photovoltaic technology. As PVB’s application in the construction
and automobile glass industries continues to grow, as well as the further
development of optics and photovoltaics, the Group plans to expand its
production of PVB.

The property segment has maintained strong sales and satisfactory
occupancy rates for its rental properties. With approval of the relevant
authorities, our old plant in Shenzhen, Guangdong Province could
be redeveloped. Design planning is now underway for this property
redevelopment project with an expected buildable gross floor area of
400,000 square metres. Together with the plots of land in Kunshan and
Jiangyin, Jiangsu Province, the Group owns a land bank in China with a
gross floor area measuring approximately 1.7 million square metres. There is
no immediate plan to increase this. The Group will focus on completing the
existing projects with a view to delivering greater returns for shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere gratitude to our shareholders, customers, banks, the management
and employees for their unreserved support to the Group in the past financial
year.

Cheung Kwok Wa
Chairman
Hong Kong, 16 March 2015
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EEZNSNRERABZER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Wa, aged 51, is an executive Director and the Chairman
of the Company. He is a brother of Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung and Mr. Cheung
Kwok Ping, both being executive Directors and an uncle of Mr. Cheung Ka
Ho, an executive Director. Mr. Cheung joined Kingboard Chemical Holdings
Limited (“KCHL”) in 1988 and has over 26 years’ experience in the marketing
of a wide range of industrial products. He is responsible for the overall
strategic planning of the Group and sets the general direction and goals for
the Group. Mr. Cheung was appointed as an executive Director in July 2006.

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Keung, aged 62, is an executive Director and the
Managing Director of the Company. He is a brother of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa
and Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping, both being executive Directors, and an uncle of
Mr. Cheung Ka Ho, an executive Director. Mr. Cheung joined KCHL in 1991
and has over 23 years’ experience in the laminate industry. He is responsible
for the overall implementation of the strategic plans and goals of the Group.
Mr. Cheung was appointed as an executive Director in July 20086.

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ping, aged 54, is an executive Director. He is a brother
of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa and Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung, both being executive
Directors, and an uncle of Mr. Cheung Ka Ho, an executive Director. Mr.
Cheung joined KCHL in 1988 and has over 26 years’ experience in marketing.
He is mainly responsible for the Group’s marketing operations and is also the
general manager of the paper laminate factories in Fogang and Shaoguan,
the PRC. Mr. Cheung is also an executive director of Kingboard Copper Foil
Holdings Limited (“KBCF”), a 64.57%-owned subsidiary of the Company as
at the end of reporting period and whose shares are listed on the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX”). Mr. Cheung was appointed as
an executive Director in May 2006.

Mr. LAM Ka Po, aged 58, is an executive Director. Mr. Lam is a co-founder
of KCHL and has over 26 years’ experience in the sales and distribution of
laminates. Mr. Lam is also the chairman and executive director of KBCF. He
was appointed as an executive Director in November 2006.
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DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EERERERBABZER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (oninued)

Mr. CHEUNG Ka Ho, aged 31, is an executive Director. Mr. Cheung is the
nephew of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa, Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung and Mr. Cheung
Kwok Ping, all being executive Directors. Mr. Cheung joined KCHL in 2004
and is involved in the laminate marketing operations for the southern region
of China and also the general manager of glass epoxy laminate factory in
Thailand. He was appointed as an executive Director in July 2006.

Mr. LIU Min, aged 46, is an executive Director. He joined KCHL in 1998. Mr.
Liu graduated from Harbin University with a Bachelor’s Degree in Chemical
Engineering. Prior to joining KCHL, he had over 7 years’ experience in the
copper foil industry. He was appointed as an executive Director in November
2006.

Mr. ZHOU Pei Feng, aged 46, is an executive Director. He joined KCHL
in 1999 and is the general manager of four glass epoxy laminate facilities
in Shenzhen, Fogang, Jiangmen and Jiangyin, the PRC. Mr. Zhou holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Mechanical Engineering from the Chongaging University
and a Master’s Degree in Material Processing Engineering from Jilin Industrial
University (now known as Jilin University). He was appointed as an executive
Director in November 2006.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. LO Ka Leong, aged 41, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Lo is also a
member of the audit committee of the Company. He holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Professional Accountancy from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Lo joined KCHL in May 1999 and is in charge of KCHL'’s
company secretarial work. Prior to joining KCHL, he was an accountant at
an international accounting firm. Mr. Lo was appointed as a non-executive
Director in July 2006.
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DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EERERERBABZER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 63, joined as an independent non-
executive Director in November 2006. Mr. Chan is also the chairman of
the nomination committee of the Company, and a member of the audit
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Chan is the
Chairman of the publicly-listed Cafe de Coral Holdings Limited in Hong
Kong. He is also a non-executive director of Tao Heung Holdings Limited,
an independent non-executive director of Starlite Holdings Limited, Pacific
Textiles Holdings Limited, and Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited,
all of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Chan formerly was a professional
city planner with government bodies in Hong Kong and Canada. He obtained
a Bachelor’s degree in Arts and a Master’s degree in City Planning from the
University of Manitoba, Canada, an Honorary Doctorate Degree in Business
Administration, and is bestowed as Honorary Fellow from Lingnan University.
He is also a member of the Political Consultative Committee of Nanshan
District, Shenzhen in the People’s Republic of China. Mr. Chan acts as the
Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing and serves
on the general committee of the Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong, the
Adviser of the Quality Tourism Service Association, and the Chairman of the
Business Enterprise Management Centre of the Hong Kong Management
Association. Mr. Chan is also a member of the Business Facilitation Advisory
Committee and a member of the Task Force on Promotion of Vocational
Education appointed by the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
Government (“HKSAR Government”).

Mr. LEUNG Tai Chiu, aged 68, joined as an independent non-executive
Director in November 2006. Mr. Leung is also the chairman of the audit
committee of the Company, and a member of the remuneration committee
and nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Leung graduated from the
Hong Kong University in 1969. He is a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. He has broad experience in accounting
and auditing matters, having worked in the auditing profession for over 30
years, 20 years of which he served as a partner. Mr. Leung retired from
PricewaterhouseCoopers in 2005. Mr. Leung was the President of Lions
Club of Victoria in 1986 and 1998 and a director of Yan Oi Tong from 1995
to 1997. He is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He is also
an independent non-executive director of the companies listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, namely Eva Precision Industrial Holdings
Limited and G-Vision International (Holdings) Limited.
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DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EERERERBABZER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP, aged 63, joined as an independent
non-executive Director in May 2011. Mr. Ip is also the chairman of the
remuneration committee of the Company, and a member of the audit
committee and nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Ip graduated
from the University of Hong Kong with a degree in Social Sciences in 1973.
Mr. Ip joined the Hong Kong Government in November 1973 and was
promoted to the rank of Director of Bureau in April 1997. He worked in the
HKSAR Government as a Principal Official from July 1997 to June 2007.
Senior positions held by Mr. Ip in the past include Commissioner of Insurance,
Commissioner for Labour, Secretary for Economic Services and Secretary
for Financial Services. Mr. Ip took up the position of Secretary for Economic
Development and Labour on 1 July 2002. His portfolio in respect of economic
development covered air and sea transport, logistics development, tourism,
energy, postal services, meteorological services, competition and consumer
protection. He was also responsible for labour policies including matters
relating to employment services, labour relations and employees’ rights. Mr.
Ip retired from the HKSAR Government in July 2007. Mr. Ip received the
Gold Bauhinia Star award from the HKSAR Government in 2001, and is an
unofficial Justice of the Peace. Mr. Ip was an independent non-executive
director of Viva China Holdings Limited from June 2010 to March 2013, a
company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Ip was also an independent non-executive director of Goldpoly New Energy
Holdings Limited from October 2010 to March 2013, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, an independent non-executive director
of PICC Property and Casualty Company Limited from January 2011 to
October 2011, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and an independent non-executive director of Milan Station Holdings Limited
from April 2011 to March 2013, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Ip also serves as an independent non-executive director
on the boards of four companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, namely China Resources Cement Holdings Limited, Synergis
Holdings Limited, Lai Sun Development Company Limited and Luk Fook
Holdings (International) Limited.
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DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EERERERBABZER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DlRECTORS (continued)

Mr. ZHANG Lu Fu, aged 57, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in January 2015. Mr. Zhang has had the experience of working for
the Chinese government since 1987 including the Xin Hua News Agency
branch in Hong Kong (Liaison Office of the Central People’s Government in
Hong Kong). Since 2000, Mr. Zhang has worked for a number of Hong Kong
listed companies and charitable organisations on a full-time and part-time
basis in the capacity such as chief representative of Chinese affairs, Chinese
affairs consultant, chief secretary for Chinese affairs and chief executive. Mr.
Zhang has been the director-general of the Friends of Hong Kong Association
since 2008. In 2006, Mr. Zhang was appointed as the council member of
the Shenzhen Overseas Friendship Association. In 2008, Mr. Zhang was
appointed as a member of the Shenzhen Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference and in 2013 he was appointed as the
council member of the China Overseas Friendship Association. Mr. Zhang
holds a Master’s degree in Philosophy from the Beijing Normal University and
is a research associate thereat. In 2011, Mr. Zhang was employed by the
Hong Kong Academy of Management and the Hong Kong Financial Services
Institute as a professor on a part-time basis. Mr. Zhang has not held any
directorship in any listed public companies or any other positions with the
Company and other members of the Company and its subsidiaries in the last
three years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHANG Guo Qiang, age 47, joined KCHL in 2002 and is the general
manager of the glass fabric factories in Shenzhen and Lianzhou, the PRC.
Mr. Chang graduated from Hunan Chang Sha University with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Textiles. Prior to joining KCHL, he had over 14 years’ experience in
the glass fabric industry.

Mr. HU Guo Liang, age 58, joined KCHL in 2000 and is the general manager
of the glass yarn factory in Panyu Nansha, the PRC. Mr. Hu graduated from
the East China University of Science and Technology with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Material Science Engineering. Prior to joining KCHL, he had over 19
years’ experience in the glass yarn industry.

Mr. TSOI Kin Lung, aged 39, joined KCHL in November 2003. Prior to that,
he was an accountant at an international accounting firm. Mr. Tsoi is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is in charge of the company secretarial work and
financial management of the Group.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
EFTWE

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are pleased to present their report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 52.

An interim dividend of HK6 cents per share was paid to the shareholders of
the Company during the year. The Directors now recommend the payment of
a final dividend of HK10 cents per share to the shareholders on the register
of members of the Company on 26 May 2015, and the retention of the
remaining profit in the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the issued share capital of the
Company are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

During the year, there was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries of the Company’s listed securities on the Stock
Exchange.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

RESERVES

Details of the movements during the year in the reserves of the Group are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 56.

In addition to the accumulated profits of the Company, the share premium
and special reserve of the Company are also available for distribution to
shareholders provided that the Company will be able to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business immediately following the date on
which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.

As at 31 December 2014, the sum of the retained earnings, the share

premium and the special reserve of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$7,199,726,000.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued as at 31 December 2014,
resulting in an increase in fair value of HK$28,489,000 which has been
credited directly to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Expenditure of HK$929,717,000 was incurred during the year primarily to
expand the production capacity of the Group. Details of all the changes in
properties, plant and equipment during the year are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 are
set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations totalling
approximately HK$4,204,000.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
FEYHE

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa (Chairman)

Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung (Managing Director)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping

Mr. Lam Ka Po

Mr. Cheung Ka Ho

Mr. Liu Min

Mr. Zhou Pei Feng

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Lo Ka Leong

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael
Mr. Leung Tai Chiu

Mr. Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen

Mr. Zhang Lu Fu

Mr. Mok Yiu Keung, Peter

(appointed on 1 January 2015)
(resigned on 31 December 2014)

In accordance with Article 130 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
Liu Min and Mr. Zhou Pei Feng, being executive Directors, and Mr. Chan
Yue Kwong, Michael and Mr. Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen, being independent
non-executive Directors, will retire from directorship by rotation and will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. Mr. Zhang Lu Fu, who was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 1 January 2015, will hold directorship only until the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company according to Article 114
of the Company’s Articles of Association and will be eligible for re-election.

Each of the executive Directors had entered into a service contract with the
Company regarding his appointment which shall continue subject to the
terms and conditions thereof and such terms as may be agreed between the
parties from time to time. Each service contract will continue thereafter until
terminated by not less than one month’s notice in writing served by either
party on the other.

The non-executive Director and each of the independent non-executive
Directors (except Mr. Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen, who was appointed by the
Board as an independent non-executive Director on 4 May 2011 and Mr.
Zhang Lu Fu, who was appointed by the Board as an independent non-
executive Director on 1 January 2015) had been appointed for an initial term
of two years commencing in November 2006. In addition, the appointment of
Mr. Lo Ka Leong as a non-executive Director will continue after the initial term
unless terminated by three months’ notice in writing served by either party on
the other. The appointment of the independent non-executive Directors will
continue after the initial term unless otherwise agreed between the parties.
All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association and the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEgWME

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (continued)

Biographical details of the above Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies” on pages 11 to 15.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company has a service contract which is not terminable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests of the Directors (including the
Managing Director of the Company) and their associates in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long position
(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (“Shares”)

Name of Director

EBHR

Capacity
EEME

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa' Beneficial owner/interest of spouse

SRENEE SR A EnEA AN TR
Mr. Cheung Ka Ho Beneficial owner
RRFRE BEmBEAA

Note:

1 75,000 Shares were held by his spouse

BEEREEZRES N

BB EFEFEHIREIIEI5E[ES
LEfERANEBZER |5 -

BREAQNREERRBEFASERSEEZES
BEEAEETAERN IR —FABEARE
OEERERIN M L2 RIEEL o

EEzRNER

RZZ-—NE+-A=1+—H EF(BEEAR
RMEFARKE) RNEFZBHBARARAR RE
HEEE(ERLEF LB GRM(TEF LR
1 D BEXVER) 2 Bn - MERARRSKIE ST -
BARRBIREEZ LGOI F21MGFEZE
M AR e 2 # s SRR E M EITAES#
TEFRXZNBRETHE NG AR E LB
ZREEIT

=3
(a) ALAFAFREEI0BTZERBR(K
1)

Approximate
percentage of
the issued
share capital

Number of of the Company
issued shares P NN
held 2RITRAE
e RTROEE ZHAE D
9,675,000 0.323
89,000 0.003
Bt 5T

75,0000 it R B AL B HE A ©
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEgWME

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

(continued)

Long position (continued)
(b) Share options of the Company (“Share Options”)

EECRDER

RRw®)
(b) AXATEEBRECELEBERE]

Interest in underlying shares

pursuant to share options

Name of Director Capacity
EEpE M E

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa Beneficial owner
REIESL & ERBEBA
Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung Beneficial owner
REISE ST 4 EREBA
Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping Beneficial owner
REIT A BEmBEAA
Mr. Lam Ka Po Beneficial owner
MREFLE BEmBEAA
Mr. Cheung Ka Ho Beneficial owner
REZFLE EREBA

(c) Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each of Kingboard
Laminates Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

Name of Director Capacity

EEHR REEME

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa Beneficial owner
REIE A Xt Z=PN
Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung Beneficial owner
SREIGR S Xt/ Z=PN
Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping Beneficial owner
SREF S A Emfa A
Mr. Lam Ka Po Beneficial owner
MERERE BEnEAA

Note:  None of the non-voting deferred shares of Kingboard Laminates Limited are
held by the Group. Such deferred shares carry no rights to receive notice
of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of Kingboard Laminates
Limited and have practically no rights to dividends or to participate in any
distribution on winding up.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEgWME

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued)

Long position (continued)

(d) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of KCHL, the ultimate holding

company of the Company

Name of Director

EBHR

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa!
SR BIEE S A

Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping?
o BT 5 2

Mr. Lam Ka Po
MRERE

Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung
SR B8 S A

Mr. Cheung Ka Ho
RRFRE

Mr. Liu Min3

[ e

Notes:

Capacity
ERME

Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse
ERHBE ATk

Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse
ERHBE ATk

Beneficial owner

EmfiaA

Beneficial owner

Emfia A

Beneficial owner

Emfia A

Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse

Bali A AT BiEn

EECRDER

EE®)

(d FLEABKERIFTVRECISREE

0108 T 2B

Number of
issued ordinary
shares held
FiRsE BT
EERRGEE

9,166,100

3,656,383

2,917,360

332,422

384,000

294,300

Approximate
percentage of
the issued
share capital
of KCHL
HEELT
BBRITRAE
ZEBHNBEDL

0.894

0.357

0.284

0.032

0.037

0.029

1 74,400 KCHL's shares were held by his spouse 1 74,4000 B L T B B BB RFE ©

2 36,000 KCHL’s shares were held by his spouse 2 36,0008 2Bt TR EELBHEA -
E 111,800 KCHL's shares were held by his spouse 3 111,800 A% 38 1k TAX (7 B3 H BB 5
5o
(e) Share options of KCHL (e) EELIZEBLBERE

Interest in underlying shares of
KCHL pursuant to share options

ERBREETEE(C THBRDER

Name of Director

EBHR

Capacity
BN

Beneficial owner

BEmBEAA

Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung
ok 58 55 A

2,928,000
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEgWME

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued)

Long position (continued)

(f) Ordinary shares (“EEIC Shares”) in the share capital of Elec
& Eltek International Company Limited (“EEIC”), a fellow
subsidiary of the Company

Name of Director

EBHR

Capacity
ERME

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa Beneficial owner

SREIE S A BEnEAA
Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping Beneficial owner
SREIF S BEnEAA
Mr. Lam Ka Po Beneficial owner
MRERE BEREAA

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors (including the Managing
Director of the Company) nor their respective associate, had any interests or
short position in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as at 31 December 2014.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company,
its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEgWME

SHARE OPTIONS BhERE

Particulars of the share option scheme of the Company (including the RARZEBEEREZ 2 FE(BIEITHEE -
exercise price, exercise period and vesting period) are set out in note 34 to TEE LGB EH NG A BHREMN T34 -
the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the share options during the year: TREPBRELERENTERNZEEH -
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Lapse of as at
1.1.2014 share options 31.12.2014
R-ZT—NF during the year R=-ZT—NF
—H—H BB +=H=+—H
e RATHE RERAXRK i RATHE
(Note)
(B =E)

Category 1: Directors F1fEER
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa SREEESE A 12,500,000 - 12,500,000
Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung SREIGR ST 11,500,000 - 11,500,000
Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping REIF S 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
Mr. Lam Ka Po MRELE 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
Mr. Cheung Ka Ho RRFEE 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
54,000,000 - 54,000,000
Category 2: Employees (note) ~ £2%8 : €8 (JfI31) 46,000,000 (19,000,000) 27,000,000
Total all categories FiBERIEET 100,000,000 (19,000,000 81,000,000

Note:  During the year ended 31 December 2014, two of the employees resigned and their fizx: BHEZZ-—NF+-_A=1+—HILEE MAE
share options lapsed. SRR - BRI AR -

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS EEJEASLER
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its holding companies, KNE - HERAT - REWNBRRIHWE R
fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had AL BT AT 7 4F [ 4R 45 S IV AR e RE FETY
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the REYMEFERKFERFEARGDZEKR
year or at any time during the year. BH -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

At 31 December 2014, the register of substantial shareholders maintained RZZE—NF+-_A=+—H  BEAQRAE
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, other than BE N EEAIEICIEBEFEZTERFET
the interests disclosed above in respect of certain Directors (including the MATECE: R ENIBES TEE(BFELRAT]
Managing Director of the Company), the following shareholders had notified ZEFRREIR) 2w TIIRRE Mg AR
the Company of their relevant interests in the issued share capital of the AIRERARARI B BITIRA Z 1E R -
Company.

Shares %)

Approximate
percentage of

the issued

share capital

Number of of the Company

issued shares held L[ N

Name of shareholder Nature of interest FriEE 817 BERTRAZ

RER A REntE R BB BABED

Hallgain Management Limited (@), () Interest of controlled 2,237,995,000(L) 74.59
(“Hallgain”) corporations

RS

KCHL Beneficial owner 144,717,500(L) 4.82
BEET BEnEAA
(© Interest of controlled 2,093,278,000(L) 69.77
corporations

RS

Jamplan (BVI) Limited (“Jamplan”) Beneficial owner 1,790,000,000(L) 59.67
BEnEAA
(d) Interest of controlled 303,278,000(L) 10.10
corporation

RS

Capital Research and Management Investment manager 177,205,851(L) 5.91
Company TR
Citigroup Inc. (e Investment manager 174,619,675(L) 5.82
REKE 415,366(S) 0.01
19,952,342(P) 0.67
L The letter “L” denotes a long position. (L) [LIFREERR -
) The letter “S” denotes a short position. ©) [SIFRERER -

P The letter “P” denotes an interest in a lending pool. P [PIRRAI G A s

24 KINGBOARD LAMINATES HOLDINGS LIMITED &M ERIZEAR B R A A



DIRECTORS' REPORT

e

=

g

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Shares (continued)

Notes:

(@

At 31 December 2014, (i) no shareholder of Hallgain was entitled to exercise, or
control the exercise of, directly or indirectly, one-third or more of the voting power at
general meetings of Hallgain, and Hallgain and its directors are not accustomed to
act in accordance with any shareholder’s direction; and (i) Messrs. Cheung Kwok
Wa, Cheung Kwok Ping and Lam Ka Po, all of whom are Directors, are also directors
of Hallgain.

The interests are held by KCHL directly and indirectly. KCHL is owned as to
approximately 36.26% of the entire issued capital of KCHL by Hallgain as at 31
December 2014.

The interests are held by Jamplan directly and indirectly. Jamplan is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of KCHL. Mr. Lam Ka Po, being a Director, is also a director of Jamplan.

The interests are indirectly held by Jamplan through its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Kingboard Investments Limited (“KIL”). Messrs. Cheung Kwok Wa and Cheung
Kwok Ping, being Directors, are also directors of KIL.

Citigroup Inc. wholly controlled (a) Citigroup Holdings Inc., a company wholly
controlled Citibank N.A., was interested in a long position of 19,952,342 Shares
as a beneficial owner; (b) Citigroup Global Market Holdings Inc., a company wholly
controlled Citigroup Financial Products Inc..

Umbrella Asset Services Hong Kong Limited, which was interested in a long position
of 25,678,500 Shares and a short position of 6,333 Shares as a beneficial owner,
was wholly controlled by Citigroup Financial Products Inc.

Citigroup Global Markets Inc., which was interested in a long position of 51,386,000
Shares as a beneficial owner, was wholly controlled by Citigroup Financial Products
Inc.

Citigroup Financial Products Inc. wholly controlled Citigroup Global Markets
International LLC and Citigroup Global Markets (International) Finance AG. Citigroup
Global Markets Limited, which was interested in a long position of 77,596,833
Shares and a short position of 409,033 Shares as a beneficial owner, was wholly
controlled by Citigroup Global Markets Europe Limited, which was 64.67% controlled
by Citigroup Financial Products Inc., 35.22% controlled by Citigroup Global Markets
International LLC and 0.11% controlled by Citigroup Global Markets (International)
Finance AG.

Citigroup Financial Products Inc. wholly controlled Citigroup Global Markets
Switzerland Holding GmbH. Citigroup Global Markets Overseas Finance Limited,
which was 51.86% controlled by Citigroup Global Markets (International) Finance
AG and 48.14% controlled by Citigroup Global Markets Switzerland Holding GmbH,
wholly controlled Citigroup Global Markets Hong Kong Holdings Limited. Citigroup
Global Markets Asia Limited, which was interested in a long position of 6,000 Shares
as a beneficial owner, was wholly controlled by Citigroup Global Markets Hong Kong
Holdings Limited.

E\Egﬂﬁiu
B3 ()

BRE -

@

RZZE—MOF+=ZA=+—0 " ()#iFEHallgain
Hx%ﬁ*&EAHallgalnﬂxﬁﬁ ﬁ@‘i"kﬁ%i‘ifsﬁ?*
EHIFTE =D — A 2 RAE - MHallgain &
HESUMERBRBEMREIERTSE  R()E
FREFESE  RETEERMRELENR
HallgainZ E 5 ©

ERtCIEEREEREZSER - RZ2T—N
F+=ZA=+—8" Hallgam%ﬁﬁ%sﬂtl el
B 21T A 4936.26% °

Jamplan® R 575 2 © Jamplan®
BECIZ2EREHBAR - EFHRELE
i AJamplanZ B E -

JamplanZEBEEEHANIBARRBREER
AR([ERE REs A2 Sk - E5RE
ERERKREFEAENASRERECES -

1% E 2 & Hl(a) Citigroup Holdings Inc.,
Citigroup Holdings Inc. 2412 #l|Citibank N.A. + LA
HWEAFHIN9,952,342 P HERE
##m 5 (b) Citigroup Global Market Holdings Inc. *
ffiCitigroup Global Market Holdings Inc. 212
Citigroup Financial Products Inc. °

Umbrella Asset Services Hong Kong Limited¥
Citigroup Financial Products Inc. 2 &% » 17 A
Eam A A 5191 25,678,5008% ik 15 K& 6,333[%
By o RIS RE REARER -

Citigroup Global Markets Inc.5Citigroup Financial
Products Inc.2&1%#] - WABRZHEE AFHR
51,386,000 DT A RE#LE

Citigroup Financial Products Inc. & & £ I
Citigroup Global Markets International LLC
Citigroup Global Markets (International) Finance
AG - Citigroup Global Markets Limited% Citigroup
Global Markets Europe Limited& & #25l » LA
B A A F 197 77,596,8330% Bk 15 2 409,033
R 2 Bl S £ B ME AL - Citigroup
Financial Products Inc. ~ Citigroup Global Markets
International LLCXCitigroup Global Markets
(International) Finance AG% 5l # A Citigroup
Global Markets Europe Limited 64.67% ~ 35.22%
$20.11%E IR -

Citigroup Financial Products Inc.Zz &2 #|Citigroup
Global Markets Switzerland Holding GmbH ©
Citigroup Global Markets (International) Finance AG
K Citigroup Global Markets Switzerland Holding
GmbH2% 511# 4 Citigroup Global Markets Overseas
Finance Limited 51.86% K48.14%#9#2 64 -
Citigroup Global Markets Overseas Finance Limited
2 &1 $ICitigroup Global Markets Hong Kong
Holdings Limited ° Citigroup Global Markets Asia
Limited¥Citigroup Global Markets Hong Kong
Holdings Limited® &4l - WAEmAEB AF 1D
76,0000 B D P B RE R °

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 —Z—NFFH 25



DIRECTORS' REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions as set out
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing Rules throughout the year ended
31 December 2014, save for the deviation that the non-executive Director
and independent non-executive Directors are not appointed for specific
terms pursuant to paragraph A.4.1 of the CG Code. Notwithstanding the
aforesaid deviation, all the Directors (including the non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors) are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting in compliance with
the Company’s Articles of Association. As such, the Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those in the CG Code.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code”). Following a specific enquiry, each Director has confirmed that he has
complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code and the
code of conduct regarding director’s securities transactions adopted by the
Company throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent for the purposes of Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s largest customer was KCHL’s subsidiaries
other than the Company and its subsidiaries (the “KCHL Group”), and the
percentage of sales attributable to the KCHL Group was 12%. The Group’s
second largest customer was Hallgain and its subsidiaries (the “Hallgain
Group”), and the percentage of sales attributable to the Hallgain Group was
5%. The percentage of sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
combined was less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue. During the year,
the percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and
the five largest suppliers combined were 11% and 34%, respectively. The
percentage of purchase attributable to KCHL, one of the Group’s five largest
supplier was 9%.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

(continued)

At 31 December 2014, each of KCHL, a shareholder holding more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital and Hallgain, a controlling shareholder of
KCHL, had beneficial interests in one of the Group’s five largest customers
and suppliers. Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates
or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major customers or
suppliers noted above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In 2014, the Group had the following non-exempt continuing connected
transactions (which are also related party transactions) within the meaning of
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(@) Supply Framework Agreement

On 5 November 2013, the Company and Hallgain entered into a
supply framework agreement (the “Supply Framework Agreement”)
pursuant to which the Group agreed to supply copper and laminates
to the Hallgain Group from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016.
Under the Supply Framework Agreement, the amount of copper and
laminates to be supplied is not fixed but is to be determined and
agreed between the parties from time to time. The actual quantity,
specification and price (with reference to the prevailing market price)
of the products under the Supply Framework Agreement will be
subject to the individual orders placed by the Hallgain Group with the
Group.

The transactions contemplated under the Supply Framework
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the
basis that Hallgain, through its interests in KCHL, is a substantial
shareholder of the Company, and hence a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the transactions
contemplated under the Supply Framework Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2014 are set out in the table below. Details of
the Supply Framework Agreement were disclosed in the circular of
the Company dated 28 November 2013.

FEEFREERE @

M-E—NE+-A=+—8 B8tI2—
BEBERRBIFEAS%IA L2 RE - fHallgain
B TR - #8/E T KHallgaing
AEBRAEPREEFHEP 2 —HEERE
o RENFIEBEN  BEFE - BEZBHEBA
BIREBATAER AR EIRAS% A £ 2 R
HHEN ERFBRS S MHEmhEERERS -

FEXS

—F > REBEBUAT EHRANE14AE
FIARAENTNERRFTEBERS (MBREBE
+5)

(@ HEERHGZ
RZE—=%+—FAH AAFH
Hallgaina] 2 4 EAE 28 frp i ([ B AE 2R
el B AEERER - —
F—RB—HEZE—R"E+-A=1+—
H mHallgain®s B 4 & i & B i mE iR o
BB EIER G - SRR ERE
Rz EEWIETE - MRATLH TR
EERRAE - HEEXBEE TN ZER
ERHE - AR RERZEHRTHE)
#5148 FHallgain®E E A A% B EH 2 &
BIFTEME °

1 i Hallgain (2 i H 70 2 E L Ty
) RARAZ EERRILFEBRE
MRAUBARRRZBEATL  SRIEL
AR RIE14AE - HEIELR Tﬁ% IETZ
RBBUARR 2 FERE

HEERBHFA T 2 X820
F+ZA=+—HIFEZFELRE
ERZSEEN TR - HEER G
HEERARAERAE B —=F+—
AZTN\BZBEPIREE -
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CON N ECTED TRAN SACTIONS (continued)

(b)

Purchase Framework Agreement

On 5 November 2013, the Company and Hallgain entered into
a purchase framework agreement (the “Purchase Framework
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Group agreed to purchase
materials for production of laminates such as drill bits and machineries
from the Hallgain Group from 1 January 2014 to 31 December
2016. Under the Purchase Framework Agreement, the amount of
materials to be purchased is not fixed but is to be determined and
agreed between the parties from time to time. The actual quantity,
specification and price (with reference to the prevailing market price)
of the products under the Purchase Framework Agreement will be
subject to the individual orders placed by the Group with the Hallgain
Group.

The transactions contemplated under the Purchase Framework
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the
basis that Hallgain, through its interests in KCHL, is a substantial
shareholder of the Company, and hence a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the transactions
contemplated under the Purchase Framework Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2014 are set out in the table below. Details of
the Purchase Framework Agreement were disclosed in the circular of
the Company dated 28 November 2013.

Materials Purchase Agreement

On 5 November 2013, the Company and KCHL entered into a
materials purchase framework agreement (the “Materials Purchase
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Group agreed to purchase
chemicals including methanol, formalin, phenol, acetone, phenol
resin and caustic soda from the KCHL Group from 1 January 2014
to 31 December 2016. Under the Materials Purchase Agreement, the
amount of chemicals to be purchased by the Group are not fixed but
are to be determined and agreed between the parties from time to
time. The actual quantity specification and the price (with reference to
prevailing market price) of the chemical under the Materials Purchase
Agreement will be subject to the individual orders placed by Group
with the KCHL Group.

The transactions contemplated under the Materials Purchase
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the basis
that KCHL is the ultimate holding company of the Company and
KCHL and members of the KCHL Group are accordingly connected
persons of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c)

(d)

Materials Purchase Agreement (continued)

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the transactions
contemplated under the Materials Purchase Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2014 are set out in the table below. Details of
the Materials Purchase Agreement were disclosed in the circular of
the Company dated 28 November 2013.

Supply and Service Framework Agreement

On 5 November 2013, the Company and KCHL entered into a
supply and service framework agreement (the “Supply and Service
Framework Agreement”) pursuant to which the Group agreed to
supply laminates and related upstream materials and to provide drilling
services to the KCHL Group from 1 January 2014 to 31 December
2016. Under the Supply and Service Framework Agreement, the
amount of laminates and related upstream materials to be sold and
the drilling services to be provided by the Group are not fixed but are
to be determined and agreed between the parties from time to time.
The actual quantity, specification and price (with reference to the
prevailing market price) of laminates and related upstream materials
and the drilling services to be provided under the Supply and Service
Framework Agreement will be subject to the individual orders placed
by the KCHL Group with the Group.

The transactions contemplated under the Supply and Service
Framework Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions
for the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the
basis that KCHL is the ultimate holding company of the Company and
KCHL and members of the KCHL Group are accordingly connected
persons of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the transactions
contemplated under the Supply and Service Framework Agreement
for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in the table below.
Details of the Supply and Service Framework Agreement were
disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 28 November 2013.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the
transactions have been entered into in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, on normal commercial terms and
in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing such
transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interest of the
Company and shareholders as a whole.

BAEXRS

(©)

MR E e ()
MEBEBRBET 2R 5820
FHZA=Z+—"RLFEZFELRRK
ERZSREEAR TR - MRBE W
HBEERARRERSE T —=F+—
AZ+N\BZBHPIKEE -
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SEAL TETS e R R HE SR ek ([ e
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CON N ECTED TRAN SACTIONS (continued)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing
the auditor’s findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2014 disclosed by the Group
on page 30 of the annual report in accordance with Listing Rule 14A.56. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange. The auditor has confirmed that nothing has come to its attention
that causes it to believe that the continuing connected transactions entered
into by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014:

(@) have not been approved by the Board;

(b) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group;

(©) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(d) have exceeded the cap.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Other than as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

The Group sold laminates and related
upstream materials and provide drilling
services to the KCHL Group under

BERXZ @

BRALBEEESN  MEAR R EEMMER
ANER - EERERNHEREAEAER
HIBARA KR EREIAF AR EFRAEER

Amounts Annual caps

=8 FEER

HK$°000
FTHET

HK$'000
FTAT

RERERE S M ARFHER
R L TR EHE
EIRER R ABRE LR

the Supply and Service Framework Agreement R 88 7L AR TS 1,638,196 2,400,000
The Group purchased chemicals from EBIREN R B e

the KCHL Group under the Materials MEE L TEERE

Purchase Agreement {ETES 883,404 1,428,000
The Group sold laminates and copper to AEBEIRIEHEEIELETZ

the Hallgain Group under the Supply MHallgain & $4 &

Framework Agreement E iR & i 715,918 1,200,000
The Group purchased drill bits and machineries from AREBIREREEER S

the Hallgain Group under the Purchase Framework [MHallgain s [E £RHE 418

Agreement T 303,931 335,000

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee having regard to the relevant Director’s experience, responsibility
and the time devoted to the business of the Group.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees. Details of the Scheme is set out in note 34
to the consolidated financial statements.

HEBUR

FNZEEREAKERB RN - BEERT
TERE N BITE 8 T2 $rBMER -

FMEZEeRAHES KR BERNASE
BB SRR EEE 25

ARRIERMEBLRBRAESE - (ERYEER
BERRBEZREE - FHEFIBHNRE MR
RMIES4
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association although there are no restrictions against such rights under
company laws in the Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 December 2014.

AUDITOR

A resolution to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of
the Company will be proposed for approval by shareholders of the Company
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Cheung Kwok Wa
CHAIRMAN

16 March 2015
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The board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company recognises the
importance of corporate governance practice of a listed company. It is in
the interest of the stakeholders and shareholders for a listed company to
operate in a transparent manner with the adoptions of various self-regulatory
policies, procedures and monitoring mechanisms and a clear definition of
accountability of directors and management.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the applicable
code provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2014, save for the deviation that the non-executive Director
and independent non-executive Directors are not appointed for specific
terms pursuant to paragraph A.4.1 of the CG Code. Notwithstanding the
aforesaid deviation, all the Directors (including the non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors) are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting in compliance with
the Company’s Articles of Association. As such, the Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those in the CG Code.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Following a specific
enquiry, each Directors has confirmed that he has complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code and the code of conduct regarding
director’s securities transactions adopted by the Company throughout the
year ended 31 December 2014.
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DIRECTORS

The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group
and is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the management
of the business and the affairs of the Group. The Group has adopted
internal guidelines which set forth matters that require the Board’s
approval. Apart from its statutory responsibilities, the Board approves
the Group’s strategic plan, annual budget, key operational initiatives,
major investments and funding decisions. It also reviews the Group’s
financial performance, identifies principal risks of the Group’s business
and ensures implementation of appropriate systems to manage these
risks. Daily business operations and administrative functions of the
Group are delegated to the management.

The Board meets regularly and as warranted by particular circumstances.
Notices and agendas are prepared by the Company Secretary as
delegated by the Chairman of the Board and distributed to the Board
members within reasonable time before the meetings. Relevant
meeting papers are also sent to Directors well before the meetings,
informing them of the background and giving explanation on matters
to be brought before the Board. All Directors are given the opportunity
to include matters in the agendas for Board meetings. To ensure
the Directors make decisions objectively and in the interests of the
Company, the Company’s articles of association provide that any
Director shall abstain from voting on any resolutions in which he/she
or his/her associates is/are materially interested nor be counted in
the quorum of the meeting. Draft and final versions of the minutes
of Board meetings are sent to all Directors for their comment and
records respectively within a reasonable time after the board meeting
and are kept by the Company Secretary.
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The Board (continued)

During the year under review, the Board had held 4 meetings and
the Directors’ attendance at Board meetings and Board committees’
meetings were as follows:

BEzgwm)

REBEFER BESETTH
B OEENEELYRRESEZE
S HERSNT

mE} ma}

RE
= @
=

Audit Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Ezg ENZEE REZEE FMzEE
82 = k] 6
Number of Meeting 258R 4 3 2 2
Executive Directors HITEZE
Cheung Kwok Wa (Chairman) REIE(EE) 4 - - -
Cheung Kwok Keung (Managing Director) 813 (Z 484572 4 - - -
Cheung Kwok Ping KRB 4 - - _
Lam Ka Po HRE 4 - - _
Cheung Ka Ho REZ 4 - _ _
Liu Min 28 4 - - _
Zhou Pei Feng g 4 . _ _
Non-executive Director HHITEF
Lo Ka Leong B#R= 4 3 - -
Independent non-executive Directors BUHHTEE
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael B 4 3 2 2
Leung Tai Chiu ity 4 3 2 2
Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen oyl 4 3 2 2
Zhang Lu Fu KER(RZT—RF
(appointed on 1 January 2015) —A—REZAE) - - - -
Mok Yiu Keung, Peter ERi(R=2—NF
(resigned on 31 December 2014) +ZA=+—HEHT) 4 3 2 2

The Directors have observed the importance of directing and
supervising the Company’s affair at a more regular interval. After
consulting all Directors, Board meetings have been preliminarily
scheduled to be held at quarterly interval and no less than 4 times in
the coming year.

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in D.3.1
of the CG Code.

During the year under review, the Board met once to review the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model
Code and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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A. DIRECTORS (continued)

Division and responsibilities

The Board is headed by the Chairman whose role differs from that of
the Managing Director of the Company. The roles of the Chairman
and Managing Director are segregated and are not exercised by the

same individual.

The duties of the Chairman include (but not limited to) the following:

scheduling meetings that enable the Board to perform
its duties and responsibilities and to ensure all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely
manner without interfering the Company’s operations;

preparing meeting agenda after consultation with the
Managing Director;

exercising control over quality, quantity and timeliness of the
flow of information between management and the Board and
to ensure decisions are made on a fully informed basis by the
Directors; and

assisting in ensuring compliance with the Listing Rules and
the Company’s guidelines on corporate governance.

The Managing Director is mainly responsible for the overall strategic
planning and day-to-day management of the Group.
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DI R ECTO RS (continued)

Division and responsibilities (continued)

The Board currently comprises 12 members, four of whom are
independent non-executive Directors who are expressly identified in
all corporate communications that disclose the names of Directors.
At least one of the independent non-executive Directors possesses
appropriate professional qualifications (or accounting or related
financial management expertise) as required by the Listing Rules. The
composition of the Board as of the report date is as follows:

Executive Directors

Cheung Kwok Wa (Chairman)

Cheung Kwok Keung (Managing Director)
Cheung Kwok Ping

Lam Ka Po

Cheung Ka Ho

Liu Min

Zhou Pei Feng

Non-executive Director
Lo Ka Leong

Independent non-executive Directors
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Leung Tai Chiu

Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen

Zhang Lu Fu

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa, Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung and Mr. Cheung
Kwok Ping are brothers and are uncles of Mr. Cheung Ka Ho.

The non-executive Director and each of the independent
non-executive Directors (except Mr. Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen, who was
appointed by the Board as an independent non-executive Director
on 4 May 2011 and Mr. Zhang Lu Fu, who was appointed by the
Board as an independent non-executive Director on 1 January
2015) was appointed for an initial term of two years commencing
in November 2006. The appointment of Mr. Lo Ka Leong as a non-
executive Director will continue after the initial term unless terminated
by three months’ notice in writing served by either party to the other.
The appointment of the independent non-executive Directors will
continue after the initial term unless otherwise agreed between the
parties. Currently, the non-executive Director and the independent
non-executive Directors were not appointed for specific terms but
are subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible for re-election.
The Board considers that although such arrangement deviates from
paragraph A.4.1 of the CG Code, sufficient measures have been
taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices
are no less exacting than those in the CG Code.
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DI R ECTO RS (continued)

Division and responsibilities (continued)

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence as
required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board comprises Directors who collectively provide core
competencies, sales and marketing experience and technical
knowledge in laminates and its upstream materials, administration
and management experience in the PRC factories, financial
and accounting skill, as well as in-house advice to comply with
international laws and regulations. The current Board size of twelve
Directors with a balance of skills and experience is appropriate for
effective decision making, taking into account the nature and scope
of the operations of the Company.

Appointment, re-election and removal

The Company’s articles of association set out a formal, considered
and transparent procedure for the appointment of new Directors to
the Board. Any Director appointed by the Board either to fill a casual
vacancy or as addition to the Board shall retire and be eligible for re-
appointment at the next following general meeting after appointment.
At every annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors, including
the Chairman, shall be subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election by shareholders. The Directors appointed by the Board who
are subject to retirement and re-election as mentioned above shall
be taken into account in calculating the total number of Directors for
the time being but shall not be taken into account in calculating the
number of Directors who are to retire by rotation. All Directors eligible
for re-election shall have their biographical details made available
to the shareholders to enable them to make an informed decision
on their re-election. Any appointment, resignation, removal or re-
designation of Director shall be timely disclosed to the shareholders
by announcement and shall include in such announcement, the
reasons given by the Director for his resignation.
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DI R ECTO RS (continued)

Responsibilities of Directors

The Company and the Board require each Director to keep abreast of
his responsibilities as a Director of the Company and of the conduct,
business activities and development of the Company. Every Director
is required to devote sufficient time and involvement in the affairs of
the Board and the material matters of the Company and to serve
the Board with such degree of care and due diligence given his own
expertise, qualification and professionalism.

Every newly appointed Director shall receive a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment. All
Directors shall be updated and briefed on continuing professional
development as is necessary to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the operations and the business of the Company
and that they are fully aware of their responsibilities under the
applicable laws and regulations. The Board has a procedure for
Directors, either individually or as a group, in the furtherance of their
duties, to take independent professional advice, if necessary, at
the Company’s expenses to enable and facilitate the Directors to
make well considered decisions. Appropriate insurance coverage for
Directors’ and officers’ liability has been arranged against possibility of
legal action to be taken against the Directors and the management.

Pursuant to A.6.5 of the CG Code, Directors should participate in
appropriate continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant.

A briefing session was organised for the Directors for the year
under review to update the Directors on the latest Listing Rules and
statutory disclosure obligation for listed companies to disclose inside
information under Part XIVA of the SFO.
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Responsibilities of Directors (continued)
During the year under review, the Directors also participated in the
following trainings:

Name of Directors

Executive Directors: BITES:
Cheung Kwok Wa (Chairman) SREIEE(E£/E)
Cheung Kwok Keung (Managing Director) SR Bl 58 (E FARACTE)
Cheung Kwok Ping SREL

Lam Ka Po S

Cheung Ka Ho KRR

Liu Min 2188

Zhou Pei Feng &
Non-executive Director: FETESE

Lo Ka Leong BER
Independent non-executive Directors: B EHITES :
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael BRAA

Leung Tai Chiu Py

Mok Yiu Keung, Peter 37T

Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen EE7 v

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with A.6.5 of the CG
Code on Directors’ training.

Supply of and access to information

The management of the Company has an obligation to furnish the
Board with complete, adequate and appropriate information in
such form and such quality in a timely manner so as to enable them
to make an informed decision and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities as Directors. All the Directors are given separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management.

All the Directors are given separate and independent access to
the Company Secretary, whose role includes ensuring that Board
procedures are observed and followed, and that applicable rules and
regulations are complied with. The Company Secretary attends all the
meetings of the Board and Board committees and is responsible for
drafting minutes and keeping minutes records which can be accessed
by any Director for inspection.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure

The Board has set up a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) which comprises four independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen (Chairman), Mr. Chan
Yue Kwong, Michael, Mr. Leung Tai Chiu and Mr. Zhang Lu Fu, to
formulate policies and procedures for determining the remuneration
of Directors and senior management and other remuneration related
matters. The Remuneration Committee is set up with written terms of
reference which set out clearly its duties and authorities delegated by
the Board, including the following duties:

° formulate the framework or Board policy for determining
the remuneration of the Company’s Board and senior
management. The objective of such policy should ensure
that members of the senior management of the Company are
provided with appropriate incentives to encourage enhanced
performance and are, in a fair and reasonable manner,
rewarded for their individual contributions to the success of
the Company;

° recommend to the Board specific remuneration packages
including, where appropriate, allowances, bonuses, benefits
in kind, incentive payments, and share options, if any, for
each executive Director and the Managing Director and such
other members of senior management as it is designated to
consider;

° recommend targets for any performance-linked pay schemes
operated by the Company, taking into account remuneration
and employment conditions within the industry and in
comparable companies; and

. recommend to the Board the remuneration of non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
taking into account factors such as effort, time spent and
responsibilities.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continveq)

The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure

(continued)

When recommending the remuneration package for each individual
Director, the Remuneration Committee will consider his qualification
and experience, specific duties and responsibilities assigned to him
by the Board and the prevailing market packages available for similar
position. The emoluments of the Directors on a named basis for the
year under review is set out on pages 111 to 113 in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements. Review and comparison in terms
of Directors’ emoluments package and net profits of the Group are
made from time to time with comparable listed industrial companies
with similar capitalisation to the Group. Considering all such factors,
the Remuneration Committee would make recommendation on the
remuneration package for each Director after consultation with the
Chairman.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee had
convened two meetings to consider the performance, and the
remuneration policy and packages for all Directors and senior
management.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
Company’s account which gives a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company. The Company deploys appropriate and
sufficient resources to prepare unaudited half-yearly account and
audited yearly account. Senior management is required to present
and explain the financial reporting and matters that materially affect or
may have material impact on the financial performance and operations
of the Company to the Audit Committee and the Board and respond
to the queries and concerns raised by the Audit Committee and
the Board to their satisfaction. The statement of the auditor of the
Company about their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 50 to 51 of this annual report.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT ontinued)

Internal controls
The Group has in place a system of internal controls, the key elements
of which are as follows:

o formal policies and procedures are in place, including the
documentation of key processes, procedures and rules
relating to the delegation of authorities. These allow the
monitoring of controls and restrict the unauthorised use of the
Group’s assets;

o experienced and suitably qualified staff take responsibility for
important business functions. Annual appraisal procedures
have been established to maintain standards of performance;

° monthly business and financial reports are prepared, providing
relevant, timely, reliable and up-to-date financial and other
information; budget variances are investigated as appropriate;
and

° an internal audit function, which reports directly to the Audit
Committee, is in place to determine whether the above
procedures are properly carried out.

The Board has conducted a review on the effectiveness of the above
internal control system of the Group including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management and will conduct
such review at least once a year, so as to ensure the shareholders’
investment and the Company’s assets are properly safeguarded.
The Board is satisfied that, based on the information supplied,
coupled with its own observations and with the assistance of the
Audit Committee, the present internal controls and risk management
processes are satisfactory for the nature and size of the Group’s
operations and business.

In addition to the internal control system, the Board has established
an internal audit team that reports directly to the Audit Committee.
The internal audit team will independently audit various functions,
operations and systems existed in the Company according to their
weight of significance to the Company as well as the priority list
recommended by the Audit Committee. The internal audit team will
prepare an internal audit report highlighting the deficiencies and
weaknesses in existing audit functions, operations and systems for
discussion by the Audit Committee and the Board, and based on
these findings the Board will instruct senior management to take
appropriate corrective and improvement actions.
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C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT ontinue)

Audit Committee

The Board has established the Audit Committee with specific written
terms of reference setting out duties, responsibilities and authorities
delegated to them by the Board. The major duties and responsibilities
of the Audit Committee include the followings:

o review with the external auditor, the audit plan;

° review with the external auditor, their evaluation of the system
of internal accounting controls;

o review the scope and results of the internal audit procedures;

° review the statement of financial position and statement of
profit or loss of the Company and the consolidated statement
of financial position and statement of profit or loss of the
Group and submit them to the Board;

o nominate persons as auditor;

° review with the internal and external auditors their findings on
their evaluation of the Company’s system of internal controls
for the purpose of assisting the Board in developing policies
that would enhance the controls and operating systems of the
Company; and

o review connected transactions and examine the adequacy

of internal controls of the Group as part of the standard
procedures.
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TEBEARE

C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT ontinue) C.

Audit Committee (continued)

The duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the scope and
results of the audit and its cost effectiveness and the independence
and objectivity of the Company’s auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
The Audit Committee will review the independence of the Company’s
auditor, the resources and adequacy of the internal audit function, at
least once a year. Where the auditor also supplies non-audit services
to the Company, the Audit Committee will keep the nature and extent
of such services under review, seeking to balance between the
maintenance of objectivity and value for money. During the year under
review, the fees paid/payable to the Company’s auditor in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided by the Company’s auditor to

the Group were as follows:

BEREE

EREER®H)
%%?E@Z%E@?ﬁiﬁéﬁ%%Zﬁ
CERARBARE - ARARA B
%KEW 2 o BIEMR S ETAITT 2B 1
LEEE BEREEEFFEL AR
*TZIK’“ﬂ’F?%IEﬂiZ%i’lE A B0 S
BEALEHNERLELHEE - WEZHE
EﬁiF‘JZlS AR ISR - FREE
SNeHBERIZSERE 2 HELE RS
HE - BRERBFEEME R 2 HE
SB¥E - ROETFERN - BAREIZE
B 1A AN Sk BIR R 2 A B R IER BURS T
BA S ENAARZEER 2 BRI

Amount (HK$)
SE(BT)

Nature of services
Audit services
Non-audit services
(i) Tax services

(ii) Other services

The Audit Committee has undertaken a review of all the non-audit
services provided by the Company’s auditor and concluded that
in their opinion such services did not affect the independence
of the auditor. The Board has appointed an accountant to be — %
responsible for the accounting and financial matters of the Group
and the Audit Committee has free access to the accountant and
senior management of the Group and to any financial and relevant
information which enable them to discharge their audit committee
function effectively and efficiently. Besides internal assistance being
available, the Audit Committee may request for assistance and
advice from external auditors as and when they think necessary
at the expenses of the Company. The Audit Committee shall meet
with external auditor without the presence of executive Directors to
discuss the Group’s financial reporting and any major and financial
matters arising during the year under review at least once a year.

BRIEHE

ZEUR 3,000,000
IEZERTS

() TSR 300,000
(i) H AR 186,000

ERZ BB AR BZHE TR
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT ontinued)

Audit Committee (continued)
In addition, the Audit Committee is authorised:

to investigate any matter within its written terms of reference;

to have full access to and co-operation by the management;

to have full discretion to invite any Director or executive officer
to attend its meetings; and

to have reasonable resources to enable it to discharge its
functions properly.

The Board will ensure that the members of the Audit Committee
are appropriately qualified to discharge their responsibilities and at
least one member has accounting and related financial management
expertise or experience. The Audit Committee comprises four
independent non-executive Directors and one non-executive Director,
namely Mr. Leung Tai Chiu (Chairman), Mr. Chan Yue Kwong,
Michael, Mr. Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen, Mr. Zhang Lu Fu and Mr. Lo Ka

During the year under review, the Audit Committee had performed the
following works:

review of the scope of audit work;

review and discussion of the annual financial results and
report in respect of the year ended 31 December 2013 and
interim financial results and report for the six months ended
30 June 2014 and discussion with the management of the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group;

discussion and recommendation of the re-appointment of the
external auditors; and

review of the internal control, financial reporting and risk
management systems of the Group.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee had convened
three meetings.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Management function

The Company’s articles of association set out matters which are
specifically reserved to the Board for its decision. Executive Directors
normally meet on an informal basis every two weeks and participate
in senior management meetings on a regular basis to keep abreast of
the latest operations and performance of the Group and to monitor
and ensure the management carry out the directions and strategies
set by the Board correctly and appropriately. Clear instructions are
given to the management as to the matters which should bring to the
attention and be determined by the Board on behalf of the Company.

Board committees

The Board has set up three Board committees, namely Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee,
each chaired by different independent non-executive Director, to assist
the Board in discharging functions specific to each committee. Each
Board committee has its own written terms of reference setting out
the principles, procedures and arrangements which are substantially
the same as those for the Board.

The Nomination Committee comprises four members who are
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Yue Kwong,
Michael (Chairman), Mr. Leung Tai Chiu, Mr. Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen
and Mr. Zhang Lu Fu. According to the written terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee, the major responsibilities of the
Nomination Committee include:

° regularly review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and make recommendations to the Board with regard
to any adjustments that are deemed necessary;

° review whether or not an independent non-executive Director
is independent for the purpose of the Listing Rules on annual
basis;

° be responsible for identifying and nominating for the approval

of the Board, candidates to fill board vacancies as and when
they arise; and

° be responsible for re-nomination having regard to the
Director’s contribution and performance, including, if
applicable, as an independent Director.

D. ESEREINER

EEINRE
ARRR 2 HHERAAET AR E
BREZEE - WITEE—REME
HIRITHFERGHE  UEHM2ESRE
BEzgH UWEZEAKEMIHZE
BRI AERNEREEE RN
REMRITEEG BRI 2T R -
BEEECDEBMET  SAAREZES
SEIVHETERRARFELIRE
ZEH e

BEEXRET
EXECORU=-MEES  DHIREX
ZEg REZEGNFMZEE 5
PR TREBILIFRITEELEEE - A
HHEEERTREEGRTIRZFE
B - REEZEGHEEAAEEE
HEBRERE - PAESIZRA - BFRR
PR EEE R BFRRIEEAR
I

RAEZEGHNBBUINTES - K
WIRE(ER)  REBELE  TER
FERKEBREEMENK - RIBEREEE
SEMRIANBRERE  REZE8g2
TERERRE

. EHREES 2B - ABNE
PIEHtE R - SRR RFTIE
HHBERNEESRHEERZ

%
o BETRAIME  SERHET
FHTEEERBEILAL

. EEESHRTREAENER
RENE  DHEESHE  #
NERESEEER &

. BENEFEZERERBAENR
FEHBBERME) RBUES -

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 —Z—JUF45Hk 47



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

o

ALl AR N

EERWE

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (continued)

During the year under review and up to the date of the report, the
Nomination Committee had convened two meetings during which,
among other things, considered the Directors who should retire by
rotation pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association and Code.
The Nomination Committee had resolved that Mr. Liu Min and Mr.
Zhou Pei Feng being executive Directors, and Mr. Chan Yue Kwong,
Michael and Mr. Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen, being independent non-
executive Directors, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. All the above-
named Directors were nominated by the Nomination Committee to
stand for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. Mr. Zhang Lu Fu, who was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 1 January 2015, will hold directorship
only until the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
according to Article 114 of the Company’s Articles of Association and
will be eligible for re-election. During the meeting of the Nomination
Committee, it had considered the policy for the nomination of
Directors, and the process and criteria adopted by the Nomination
Committee to select and recommend candidates for directorship. It
had also reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board
to ensure that the Board has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders. All Directors are encouraged to attend the general
meetings to have personal communication with shareholders. In
annual general meeting, Chairman of the Board and the chairman
of each committee are required to attend and answer questions
from shareholders in respect of the matters that they are responsible
and accountable for. The external auditor is also required to be
present to assist the Directors in addressing any relevant queries by
shareholders. The Company has also set up a public relations website
which enables the shareholders and public to post their questions,
comments and opinions in relation to the Group to the Board.

The Company’s annual general meeting (“AGM”) and extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM”) provide good opportunities for shareholders
to air their views and ask Directors and management questions
regarding the Company. All shareholders of the Company receive
the annual report, circulars and notices of AGM and EGM and other
corporate communications in a form chosen by each shareholder
of the Company. The notices are also published on the Company’s
website at www.kblaminates.com. Separate resolutions are required
at general meetings on each distinct issue. A shareholder is permitted
to appoint any number of proxies to attend and vote in his stead.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions
are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual Directors, for shareholders’
consideration and voting. Besides, pursuant to the Company’s
Articles of Association, shareholder(s) holding not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings may request the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting by sending a written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary. The objects of the meeting must be
stated in the written requisition.

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for putting
forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board. Contact details are as
follows:

Address: 2nd Floor, Harbour View 1
No. 12 Science Park East Avenue
Phase 2 Hong Kong Science Park
Shatin, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 26910445/26915245
Email: enquiry@Kingboard.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the above address and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles of Association.

An up to date version of the Articles of Association is available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website. Shareholders
may refer to the Company’s Articles of Association for further details
of their rights.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting results will be
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk)
and the Company (www.kblaminates.com) immediately after the
relevant general meetings.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
VR 2 2GR

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KINGBOARD LAMINATES HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kingboard
Laminates Holdings Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 52 to 153, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2014, and the
consolidated statement of profit and loss, consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B A% AR

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2014 and of
its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

16 March 2015
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BEZ—Z—MF+_-_A=+—HILtFE

' S ol i i

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

2014 2013
—E—MFE T =4
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue =E3 7 13,282,694 12,798,302
Cost of sales SHEMNA (11,285,223) (10,806,997)
Gross profit ESl 1,997,471 1,991,305
Other income, gains and losses Ha A - 25 REE 9 144,643 172,004
Distribution costs PAKiz DN (286,267) (278,508)
Administrative costs TR (465,735) (437,430)
Share-based payments AR FE AT 3R 34 (2,130) (12,916)
Gain on fair value changes of investment ~ $&& W% A F(EEE
properties s 28,489 72,110
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERHEEREZ
investments Wz 14,864 11,369
Finance costs & AR 10 (102,079) (124,783)
Profit before taxation B F BT v ) 1,329,256 1,393,151
Income tax expense FisBim 11 (193,281) (183,268)
Profit for the year INEEE %A 12 1,135,975 1,209,883
Profit for the year attributable to: REE R T EIEDEE
Owners of the Company ZIN/NCIEEZEDN 1,121,842 1,207,182
Non-controlling interests FEFERG R RS 14,133 2,701
1,135,975 1,209,883
Earnings per share — Basic and diluted GRARN — EAREE 15 HK$0.3747% 71 HK$0.402/8 7T
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CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF PROFT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

frefBm MEMEE RS

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ =Z—NF+=-A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—Z—lEF =
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Profit for the year REE R 1,135,975 1,209,883
Other comprehensive (expense) income AFEHM2E(ZH)
for the year llhE

Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: & E# #1572 Ee o BH -

Translation reserve: BE {48
Exchange differences arising from translation ~ F#TEE 2MEERmES Y
to presentation currency MEN =5 (144,251) 400,782

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to st @B £ E 7 E 2

profit or loss: B2 EH -
Investment revaluation reserve: WEBMFHE
Fair value changes of available-for-sale AR ERE
investments NHEEH (45,788) 37,110
Reclassification adjustment relating to HETHEERE
disposal of available-for-sale investments MELH M EF D AR (14,864) (11,369)
(60,652) 25,741
Other comprehensive (expense) income for the ZNEFHEMEE (S H)
year (net of tax) o zs (BRFZ) (204,903) 426,523
Total comprehensive income for the year REEEEW R AR 931,072 1,636,406
Total comprehensive income attributable to: SHEINEBFEENNDEE -
Owners of the Company ZIN/NCIEEYEUN 920,175 1,606,199
Non-controlling interests eI 10,897 30,207
931,072 1,636,406
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At 31 December 2014 R=Z—MF+=-A=+—H

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2014
—E—-IF =
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties LB 16 1,268,646 1,283,553
Properties, plant and equipment ME - R NRE 17 5,496,837 5,346,161
Prepaid lease payments EREERIE 18 450,869 460,569
Available-for-sale investments AHEHERE 19 1,588,646 1,904,009
Non-current deposits ERBIET & 20 68,597 199,290
Other non-current assets Hip3EmnsEE 21 732,430 734,889
Deferred tax assets EEHTEEE 22 3,913 4,083
Goodwill HE 23 238 238
9,610,176 9,932,792
Current assets MENVEE
Inventories FE 24 1,463,633 1,289,434
Trade and other receivables and B 5 KM H M FERER R
prepayments JEfF R 25 4,554,430 4,295,860
Bills receivables JJEH&%TE}- 25 972,739 728,826
Properties held for development FEREME 26 3,757,111 2,991,581
Prepaid lease payments A ERE 18 10,581 11,291
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries B E NG Ee] 27 99,257 274,782
Taxation recoverable AT UG [B] F T8 7,063 7,063
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR MRS 28 2,447,596 2,427,697
13,312,410 12,026,534
Current liabilities neas
Trade and other payables Z 5 N H M fE R BR X 29 1,690,572 1,624,928
Bills payables e 29 329,021 239,131
Deposits received from pre-sale of TEEMEPIK
residential units HER 1,030,577 220,450
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FER R R B A RRIE 27 40,116 40,214
Taxation payable e R 1A 299,610 324,585
Derivative financial instruments TEEMTE 30 6,779 -
Bank borrowings — amount due within RITIEE —
one year —FRE|E 2 ZIE 31 2,802,287 1,598,338
6,198,962 4,042,646
Net current assets MENEEFE 7,113,448 7,983,888
Total assets less current liabilities BERERRDEE 16,723,624 17,916,680
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
iR B B IR R

At 31 December 2014 A —Z—FE+-A=+—H

2014 2013
—E—mF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FBT
Non-current liabilities IEREAaE
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIERE 22 98,008 101,298
Bank borrowings — amount due after RITIEE -
one year —FE B H 2 FIE 31 2,231,956 3,790,846
2,329,964 3,892,144
14,393,660 14,024,536
Capital and reserves A& A 2 G
Share capital [N 32 300,000 300,000
Reserves i 12,999,975 12,618,293
Equity attributable to owners of RAREE ARG
the Company R 13,299,975 12,018,293
Non-controlling interests PR RS 1,093,685 1,106,243
Total equity BARIBEE 14,393,660 14,024,536

The consolidated financial statements on pages 52 to 153 were approved EFEFeN - E—AHF=At+NHEHEREE
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 16 March 2015 and are T EL22 1538 2 ir A M EHRE - WAH T3

signed on its behalf by: EERREE
Cheng Kwok Wa Cheng Kwok Keung
REE REN
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BEFE BFE
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GARBEDE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ =Z—NF+=-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
3 3

Share
options

Investment
revaluation
reserve

Property
revaluation
reserve
NEER
EiRE i
HK$ 000 H

Share
capital

B

Share
premium

RHEE
HK$'000
TEn

Translation
reserve

Special
reserve

RHRRE
HK§ 000

o

CONSOULDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Non-
controlling
interests

Goodwill
reserve

EREE
HKS

Retained
eannings

Statutory
reserve

EERE
0

Sub-total
Ait  FERES
HK§'000
TFhT

Balance at 1 January 2013 RZE-=F-F-BZE8 300,000 1,097,104 1,520815 7,268 47,207 99,899 767,689 46,983 1,633 7929567 11,808,165 1082521 12,890,686
Proft for he year KERER - - - - - - - - - 107182 1207182 2701 1200883
Exchange differences arising from tranglationto - T EZ S REBTEL 2
presentation curency ERZE - - 373276 - - - - - - - 373276 21,506 400,782
Fair value changes of avaiable-for-sale AHHERAZ ATHED
investments - - - - 3710 - - - - - 3710 - 37,10
Reclassifcation adjustment refating to disposal ~ SHiH ERTEEHERAT
of avallble-for-sale investments {EHERAERE - - - - (11,369) - - - - - (11,369) - (11,369)
Total comprehensive income for the year FERRENREE - - 313,276 - 26,741 - - - - 1,207,182 1,606,199 30,207 1,636,406
Recogniton of equity-settled share-based EaEREENRR
payments PR - - - - - 12916 - - - - 12916 - 12916
Acquisition of adtional interests in subsiclaries  EHB A 7] 2 BoMER
(note c) iR - - - - - - - - 1013 - 1,013 (3,989) 2972
Dividends paid to non-controling interests DI PIARES RS - - - - - - - - - - - (2,500) (2,500
Final ividend paic for the year ended 31 EREZ-F--F1-R
December 2012 =t-BIEER 2R ERS - - - - - - - - - (360000 (360,000 - (30000
Interim dividend paid for the year ended 81~ EREE-F-=F+-7
Decemoer 2013 SH-AIHEE R HRE - - - - - - - - - (150000 (150,000) - (150000
Transfer to resenve BRTHE - - - - - - - 18,653 - (18,653) - - -
- - - - - 12916 - 18,653 1,013 (628,653) (496,071) (6:485) 502,556)
Balance at 31 December 2013 W-F-ZF+-f=t+-8
= 300,000 1,097,104 1,894,091 7268 72,948 112815 767,689 65,636 2,646 8608096 12918293 1106243 14,004,636
Balance at 1 January 2014 R-F-MF-A-BZER 300,000 1,097,104 1,894,091 7268 72,948 112815 757,689 65,636 2,646 8608096 12918293 1106243 14,024,536
Proft forthe year AEERH - - - - - - - - - M8 11182 14133 1135975
Exchange differences arising from tranglationto - T EZ SRERTEL 2
presentation curency EHES - - (141,015) - - - - - - - (141,015) 823 (144,051
Fair value chenges of avalable-for-sale AHERE I ATERD
investments - - - - (45,788) - - - - - (45,788) - (45,788)
Redlassfication acjustment relating to disposal ~ RtHE T HERET
of avalable-for-sale investments fEHEN S EAR - - - - (14,864) - - - - - (14,864) - (14,864)
Total comprehensive income for the year TEERENGEE - - (141,015) - (60,652 - - - - 11188 920,175 10897 931,072
Recagnition of equity-settled share-based
payments - - - - - 2,130 - - - - 2,130 - 2130
Lapse of share options - - - - - (21,840) - - - 21,840 - - -
Acquistion of adaftional interests in subsidlaries
(note ) - - - - - - - - 623 - (623) (12,216) (12,839)
Dividends paid to non-controling interests - - - - - - - - - - - (11,239 (11,239
Finel dividend paid for the year ended 31
December 2013 - - - - - - - - - (360,000) (360,000) - (360,000
Interim dividend paid for the yearended 81 EREE-F-BETZA
Decemoer 2014 St-BIEERZ RS - - - - - - - - - (180000 (180,000 - (180000
Transfer o reserve BRTHE - - - - - - - 3320 - (8320) - - -
- - - - - (19,710) - 3320 623 (521,480 (638,493) (23.455) (561,948)
Balance at 31 December 2014 R-5-mE+-R=+-A
a3 300,000 1,097,104 1,753,076 7,268 12,296 93,105 757,689 68,956 2023 9208458 13299975 1,093,685 14,393,660

Notes: BifsE -

(@) Statutory reserve comprises statutory fund, which is non-distributable, represents (@) TADRZEEFHEBILEEES - TE%B@E’\\\TL
capitalisation of retained profits of certain subsidiaries established in the People’s EANRAME ([ E )EME‘JM#EQEﬁ%{% B
Republic of China (the “PRC”) for capital re-investment in these subsidiaries and FBEAEF Ef\\ﬁ ABKLE  BEEARATH
funds shall be used to (i) make up prior year losses or (i) expand production 7 ¢ ()RTEAE F R RS AEEEE -
operations.

(0) Goodwill reserve represents the effect of changes in ownership in certain subsidiaries () FB RS H BRI 2R T A THEAR
when there is no change in control. FraE# 2 & -

© During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group acquired additional interests (© REE-Z—WFET_A=T—HIFEA K

in a non-wholly owned subsidiary from a non-controlling shareholder. As a result of
the acquisition, the difference of HK$623,000 (2013: HK$1,013,000) between the
consideration paid of HK$12,839,000 (2013: HK$2,972,000) and the amount of non-
controlling interests acquired of HK$12,216,000 (2013: HK$3,985,000) was directly
recognised in equity.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
meaREenER
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE - Z— &+ —-A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—T—MF =
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REK
Profit before taxation B 250 B ) 1,329,256 1,393,151
Adjustments for: A TIEB (EH A -
Depreciation of properties, plant and equipment  #1% - iE L&EH 2 ITE 731,886 716,922
Release of prepaid lease payments FERAERERD 9,307 10,200
Interest expenses FEFEZ 102,079 124,783
Impairment losses recognised on trade BE SRR K
receivables R ERE 2,455 176,411
Loss on disposal and write off of properties, HERMENE - BE&
plant and equipment Bz BB 8,875 3,527
Gain on fair value changes of investment KREYENFEESH 2
properties Uz (28,489) (72,110)
Gains on disposal of available-for-sale HERMHEEERE 2 WS
investments (14,864) (11,369)
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease payments HEBMNHEERE 2 WE - (4,563)
Interest income FEUA (124,898) (125,399)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of RIFEWR ZRERBE
inventories 2,099 1,788
Dividend income from available-for-sale AR ERE 2 IRBIA
investments (17,038) (82,671)
Unrealised loss on fair value changes of foreign RIMNERHIG O 2 A FEESEE
exchange forward contracts ZAREREE 6,779 -
Share-based payments LA S 3R 2,130 12,916
Operating cash flows before movements in KRt EELEER 2
working capital CERESRE 2,009,577 2,193,586
Increase in inventories FEEM (179,190) (82,071)
Increase in trade and other receivables and B REMERERR X
prepayments TR FRIBIE AN (265,070) (292,617)
(Increase) decrease in bills receivables U ZEE (12 00) R (243,913) 521,773
Decrease in amounts due from fellow subsidiaries &4 [& Z [ B A B8 174,800 162,615
Increase in properties held for development FEEMERM (772,369) (1,856,785)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 N H i fE T BR FIE AN 96,248 133,262
Increase in bills payables FERTEEHRIE N 89,937 130,553
Increase in deposits received from pre-sale of TEEMET Z ET LN
residential units 810,585 217,010
Increase in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries NI EL NG B 8 21,055
Cash generated from operations IR TR EIH & 1,720,613 1,198,381
Hong Kong Profits Tax (paid) refund (BEB)REEEFESH (481) 319
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid EHFPEMEAEH (220,458) (159,541)
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) paid B B AT ([ g ER ) (6,918) (1,883)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  R&XKHMEHLTE 1,492,756 1,037,276
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2 A AN E=
,ZS/ \éiﬁi/ﬁiﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ = Z— G+ A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—s-mE =
HK$’000

HK$BOO
FHR FAE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXEK
Purchase of properties, plant and equipment BEYE  WELEE (730,427) (345,752)
Purchase of available-for-sale investments BEHLERE (78,049) (1,226,523
Deposits paid for acquisition of properties, plant  WEEWIZE - HE &

and equipment BRIk (68,597) (199,290)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HEHRHERE

investments FriS3k18 347,624 423,130
Interest received BUFI & 127,877 149,218
Proceeds from disposal of properties, plantand & - HiE MEREESHIE

equipment 25,186 20,312
Dividend income received B U B A 17,038 32,671
Purchase of investment properties HEREYE = (263,545)
Prepaid lease payments made BEMEEREA = (25,004)
Proceeds from disposal of prepaid lease payments &8 & FIEFTE 2B - 69,417
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXKFFARLSFHE (359,348) (1,365,366)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEEE
New bank borrowings raised FIGRITEE 4,656,602 2,419,256
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE (5,006,543) (1,381,893)
Dividends paid on ordinary shares BT BARAR S (540,000) (510,000)
Interest paid BEAFE (138,514) (130,303)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BT IR i a2 AR B (11,239) (2,500)
Consideration paid for acquisition of additional U g — M B R B BRI ME 2= P

interests in a subsidiary TRRE (4,280) (2,972)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING REETB (IR RERS

ACTIVITIES et} (1,043,974) 391,588
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReREELSEER

EQUIVALENTS EHNFEEE 89,434 63,498
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE FHORERAS

BEGINNING OF THE YEAR £@E1ER 2,427,697 2,328,204
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE EREETE

CHANGES (69,535) 35,995
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE FERZEERES

END OF THE YEAR, REPRESENTING BANK LEEE - BRTT

BALANCES AND CASH HHTIHE 2,447,596 2,427,697
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BRI

w3

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE - Z— &+ —-A=+—HILFE

1.

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands and its shares
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its immediate parent company
is Jamplan (BVI) Ltd., a limited liability company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands and in the opinion of the directors of
the Company (the “Directors”), its ultimate holding company is
Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited (“KCHL”), a company which
is an exempted company with limited liability incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with its shares listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the section headed
“Corporate Information” on pages 2 to 3.

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40.

The functional currency of the Group is Renminbi (“RMB”) while the
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”), which the management of the Company considered it is
more beneficial for the users of the consolidated financial statements.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following new and revised HKFRSs issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and Hong
Kong Accounting Standard
(“HKAS”) 27

Investment entities

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

Recoverable amount disclosures for
non-financial assets

Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge accounting

HK(IFRIC*) = INT 21 Levies

Amendments to HKFRS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

*

IFRIC represents the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee.

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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(BVI) Ltd. * i AR A— KR IEBEH
Bz BRAT - ﬁﬁl@i%%
([EBDRE  ARElZ&EZER

ARELIEBR(#ELET]) ;ZAT
A—RRHASESTMRIITEREZ
ARAR - ERDREZETER LT -
NAEEMPEE R EZEEE it
WRE2E3E[ARIER  — R HFE -

ARRBREER AR EXEWNBAR
Al EZEBHENMFL40

AEBENNEEER/ARBE(TAR
¥ - HEMBHmRAABT(ET])
27 ARRERER R RELRE M
BRENEREEEAEY -
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B RS ERERZAER ])
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AEIAE((EB GRS ) RMAH
BN EIERT BB R RER]

EEUBERENFI0 HEBE
% AR RRE
B2 RERE
SPER([EEEHE
Bl ) EorsrmissT
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FENEET BEE
BRGERFIRN TETAZRE L
23] BEC R

EE (BB eRER BB

REZESY) 2B
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* BB iR B R RS B s E e
BRRERRIEEZEE -

REEERFIE RERT R AU H AR
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ANNUAL REPORT 2014 —Z—NFFH 59



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR a BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ = Z— G+ A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Financial instruments!

Revenue from contracts with
customers?

Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations*

Disclosure initiative?

Clarification of acceptable methods
of depreciation and amortisation*

Agriculture: Bearer plants*

Defined benefit plans: Employee
contributions®

Equity method in separate financial
statements*

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its
associate or joint venture*

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 cycles

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 cycle®

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 cycle*

Investment entities: Applying the
consolidation exception*
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BTSRRI RE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ —Z—MF+—-A=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

(continued)
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with
earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with
earlier application permitted.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with earlier
application permitted.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with
earlier application permitted.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with limited
exceptions. Earlier application is permitted.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and
further amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for hedge
accounting. Another revised revision of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014
mainly to include a) impairment requirements for financial assets
and b) limited amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a “fair value through other comprehensive
income” measurement category for certain simple debt instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” are subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their fair
values at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income generally recognised in
profit or loss.

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future
may have significant impact on amounts reported for the Group’s
financial assets in respect of available-for-sale investments. However,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until
a detailed review has been completed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ = Z— G+ A=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”,
HKAS 11 “Construction contracts” and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations
in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in
HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 in the future
may have a material impact on the amounts reported and disclosures
made in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. However, it
is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR a BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ = Z— G+ A=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle

The annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle include a
number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are summarised
below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions of ‘vesting
condition’ and ‘market condition’; and (ii) add definitions for
‘performance condition” and ‘service condition” which were previously
included within the definition of ‘vesting condition’. The amendments
to HKFRS 2 are effective for share-based payment transactions for
which the grant date is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose the
judgements made by management in applying the aggregation criteria
to operating segments, including a description of the operating
segments aggregated and the economic indicators assessed in
determining whether the operating segments have ‘similar economic
characteristics’; and (i) clarify that a reconciliation of the total of the
reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s assets should only be
provided if the segment assets are regularly provided to the chief
operating decision-maker (“CODM”).

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS 13 clarify
that the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential amendments to
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 did not remove the ability to measure short
term receivables and payables with no stated interest rate at their
invoice amounts without discounting, if the effect of discounting is
immaterial. As the amendments do not contain any effective date,
they are considered to be immediately effective.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove perceived
inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated depreciation/
amortisation when an item of property, plant and equipment or an
intangible asset is revalued. The amended standards clarify that the
gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner consistent with the
revaluation of the carrying amount of the asset and that accumulated
depreciation/amortisation is the difference between the gross
carrying amount and the carrying amount after taking into account
accumulated impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VPN

ARa B RAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ = Z— G+ A=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle

(continued)

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management entity
providing key management personnel services to a reporting entity
is a related party of the reporting entity. Consequently, the reporting
entity should disclose as related party transactions the amounts
incurred for the service paid or payable to the management entity
for the provision of key management personnel services. However,
disclosure of the components of such compensation is not required.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments will have a material effect on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

The Directors anticipate that the application of the other new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR a BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in
HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at
the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included

within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR a BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between of the members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR a BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of

the Company.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition
date, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and
HKAS 19 “Employee benefits” respectively;

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based arrangements
of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment” at the acquisition date
(see the accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale
and discontinued operations” are measured in accordance
with that standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets
in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at their
fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.

Goodwil

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business (see accounting
policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating unit) that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro rata basis
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

BT HE

¥Baftm)
PR RS2 RE - FFERERR
WWﬁE¢%ﬁi%&%ﬁﬁu&ﬁ
BZWmWE R BEZ A TEGNE) 2 A
A ORATURE  AT R B E RFTAEZ
BERKER B2 FER  FIBEZE
HEAMAE - MEBRETEE - FTEZ
AR EERFAEEENRERERAZ
SFEEE NS 2 RE - RS
U BE T R ET i S BEA R UREE AT S
2B REZ ATFE(NE) 28
- AEERRRIEEANERAZEBK
B o

BERNEAZETBENEERRFEA
ﬁ%ﬁztb“ MO BT EE 2 IFERE

» Al SR N B Sk IR A S AL
?ﬁ”ﬁ(ﬁﬁﬁ—ﬁaﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁmﬁﬁ@mi%ﬁ
LEBIFTE - AIEEERTBIEAR S ME
HiEE o Hth R r T RER iR A
AES(ER) RS —IEE A% E
IERE SRR E o

e
WG FTE £ 2 98 - IR B ET
EHRUHKAR(ELE EXEFEER)
WEEHREETE (G )FIER o

FBREANRMS  BESEIFEHKEE
HZHRABEPE T SEBRREEE
BAL RS EEBEMN AR -

é“ﬁﬂ?ﬁggziﬁéﬁiﬁutiiﬂ

%Z/J&{E/E‘Jﬁ Eﬁﬁ#&iﬁﬁfﬁzuﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ
EEZEEMS  DEIEBEZRS
EABMRZRE R TAIEITRE
B - MR EEELZATREEFED
RZBEMAZREE  BIREBERES
i BRI A BB B2 E R
BERMEE MERABEUSEEZR
EEA/EE  ZUHIDERIZEMZE
MEE - BB ZEMREBEBERER
R - BB ZRERENEEHET
THR[E -

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 —Z—NFFH 69



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR a BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Goodwill (continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,
rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and title has passed at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Specifically, revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course
of business is recognised when the respective properties have been
completed and delivered to the buyers. Deposits and instalments
received from purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for
revenue recognition are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position under current liabilities as “deposits received from
pre-sale of residential units”.

Service income for drilling services is recognised when services are
provided.

Revenue from hotel accommodation are recognised upon the
provisions of the accommodation services. Revenue from food and
beverage sales and other ancillary services are recognised upon the
provision of goods and services.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established,
provided that it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR a BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing
below.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the year in which the property is
derecognised.

Properties held for development
Properties held for development for sale in the future are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs relating to the development of properties, comprising prepaid
lease payments for land and development costs, are included in
properties held for development until such time when they are
completed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR a BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Properties, plant and equipment

Properties, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purpose (other than properties, plant and equipment under
construction as described below) are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of properties, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
properties, plant and equipment (other than properties, plant and
equipment under construction) less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of properties, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of properties, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Licenced properties, plant and equipment

Licenced properties, plant and equipment (included in properties,
plant and equipment) held to earn licence fee income are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is recognised as to write off the cost of items of licenced
properties, plant and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR a BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost of inventories are calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary
to make the sale.

Licenced inventories

Licenced inventories shown as other non-current assets in the
consolidated statement of financial position are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment losses on assets other than goodwill (see
the accounting policy in respect of goodwill)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR a BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment losses on assets other than goodwill (see

the accounting policy in respect of goodwill) (continued)
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases and licence fee income are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease
and licence agreement.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the lease
term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the entire
lease is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
properties, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR a BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise except for:

o exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating
to assets under construction for future productive use,
which are included in the cost of those assets when they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign
currency borrowings;

o exchange differences on transactions entered into in order
to hedge certain foreign currency risks (see the accounting
policies below); and

° exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using
exchange rate prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR a BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s
entire interest in a foreign operation or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sales, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, state-
managed retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR a BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
of the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not be reversed
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Eﬂgégﬁhﬁfﬁﬁi

BUIE (48)

ELEBIE
BEERANRBEFAEVBRREERA
(R E (B B AT B R B % AT R A AR 8
T 2 RIS Z MR o BIERIBRE
— RGBT A ERVRE ZRERER -
RIERIE & EE — MR P A IR AT M A
By 2= BRI A 2 JE SR i B B BT AT
R ZERRER - AEBAHAIZS
NTHEREENABATZEERTE
MR R &g R Mol R b=
BATERARSTELERBEERA
B o o - AR SRR EM S B i
FRER - AT SERRERIEAE -

BRI R G ER B AR ZRE
BRAZ ERTARR ZRMAER - HEER
SEESRR ZR O RGN ER
BRSO A] R R B 2 B Al BR
S o H1EZ TR A Ko i 2 AR B A P AR
RERMELNRLEHREEE (EE7
BE H IR AT I A RS = R 2 R AR AR
oy M - 0 FEHIR T 5 2 [0 s e

e

BERIAE E 2 FRE AN S RE A4
REAERA  WHELAEER BHE
AR AU B 2 BB sk BR 0 B B RS JI AR
S o

RIEGE SR L ADRARERD
B 2 Bk (RBOR)  BBEAR R
B (AR A A AR R
B BIEE -

EERARBEREEZFTERBRASE
BN HmEREARE B HEOR
BER - NEEEESFEREZRE
(@ o

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 —Z—PUFFHk 77



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included
in the accounting for the business combination.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on
the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR a BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments. The net gain or loss for available-for-sale investments
excludes any dividend income or interest income earned.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Loans
and receivables (including other non-current assets, trade and other
receivables, bills receivables, amounts due from fellow subsidiaries,
and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables where the recognition of interests
would be immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as loans and receivables.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale and are traded in an active market are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale monetary financial assets relating to
interest income calculated using the effective interest method and
dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are recognised in
profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of available-for-
sale financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation reserve.
When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment on financial assets below).
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

Dividend on available-for-sale investments equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity investments are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of each
reporting period (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or the disappearance
of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit period
and observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR a BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses were recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be
reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to impairment loss is recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.

For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the investment
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition
of impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR a BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expenses is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables, bills
payables, amounts due to fellow subsidiaries and bank borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially
measured at their fair values and are subsequently measured at the
higher of:

(i) the amount of obligation under the contract, as determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets”; and

(i) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the
revenue recognition policies.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of financial liabilities
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to the Directors and employees of the Group
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (continued)
Share options granted to the Directors and employees of the Group
(continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates during the vesting period, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss, such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share options reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in the share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to retained
earnings.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumption are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if revision affects
both current and future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying entity’s accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in the process
of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties (notes 22 and 16)
For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
certain investment properties located in the PRC of carrying amount
of approximately HK$231,086,000 at 31 December 2014 (2013:
HK$230,983,000) are held under a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore,
the Directors have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of such investment properties are recovered entirely through
sale is rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised deferred
taxes on LAT in respect of changes in fair value of such investment
properties but has recognised deferred tax on Enterprise Income Tax
on the assumption that these investment properties will be recovered
through use.

The investment properties located in Hong Kong and United Kingdom
of carrying amount of HK$269,210,000 and HK$768,350,000
at 31 December 2014 respectively (2013: located in Hong Kong
and United Kingdom of carrying amount of HK$269,210,000 and
HK$783,360,000 respectively) are not held under a business model
whose objective is to recover the economic benefits of the investment
properties entirely through use. No deferred tax is recognised in
respect of the fair value change in such investment properties as the
Group is not subject to any income taxes on disposal of investment
properties in Hong Kong and United Kingdom, assuming that the
Group is considered as a non-resident in United Kingdom.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTA'NTY continued)

Critical judgements in applying entity’s accounting
policies (continued)

Legal claim (note 37(b))

The Group is involved in legal proceeding as disclosed in note 37(b)
to the consolidated financial statements. Management has evaluated
and assessed the claims made against the Group based on legal
advice from the Company’s lawyer and are of the view that there
is no evidential basis for the claim and it is speculative in nature.
Accordingly, no provision nor accrual are made in the consolidated
financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Depreciation and impairment of properties, plant and
equipment (note 17)

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives,
residual value and related depreciation charges for its properties, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives of properties, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are expected to be shorter than previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Change in these estimations
may have a material impact on the results of the Group. The Group
tests whether properties, plant and equipment have suffered any
impairment in accordance with its accounting policy whenever
there is any indication that the assets may have been impaired. The
recoverable amounts of properties, plant and equipment have been
determined based on discounted cash flow method of each asset or
a cash-generating unit. The Directors consider that the recoverable
amount exceeded the carrying amount of the properties, plant and
equipment and therefore, no impairment was recognised at 31
December 2014. As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amounts of
properties, plant and equipment are approximately HK$5,496,837,000
(2013: HK$5,346,161,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTA'NTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Depreciation and impairment of properties, plant and
equipment (note 17) (continued)

In addition, for the licenced assets included in properties, plant and
equipment, the recoverable amounts have been determined based
on value in use calculated using the income approach. The Directors
consider that the recoverable amount exceeded the carrying amount
of the licenced properties, plant and equipment and therefore, no
impairment was recognised at 31 December 2014 and 2013. As at
31 December 2014, the carrying amounts of licenced properties,
plant and equipment are approximately HK$563,301,000 (2013:
HK$685,797,000).

Recoverability of the licenced inventories (note 21)

As described in note 21, the Licencee (as defined in note 17) is
required to return the licenced inventories used, consumed or
disposed of during the licence period to the Group at the end of the
licence period, on 31 August 2015, either by way of cash or identical
inventories with the same value as the licenced inventories used,
consumed or disposed of. The recoverable amount of the licenced
inventories used, consumed or disposed of during the licence period
is secured by cash and bills receivables of a related party of the
Licencee (the “Securities”).

In determining the recoverable value of the Securities, the Group takes
into consideration the validity and existence of the Securities at each
month end and estimates the recoverable value of the Securities. In
this regard, the management of the Company is satisfied that the
risk is minimal and the recoverable value of the Securities is not less
than the licenced inventories used, consumed or disposed of at each
month end.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables (note 25)

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2014, the carrying
amount of trade receivables is approximately HK$3,570,113,000
(2013: HK$3,491,467,000), net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HK$355,785,000 (2013: HK$353,330,000).
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTA'NTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. The Directors have a designated team to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair
value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment properties,
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation of the Group’s investment
properties. At the end of each reporting period, the Directors works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish and determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for Level 2 and Level
3 fair value measurements. The Group will first consider and adopt
Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived observable quoted prices
in the active market. When Level 2 inputs are not available, the Group
will adopt valuation techniques that include Level 3 inputs. Where
there is a material change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of
the fluctuations will be reported to the Directors. Any changes in the
price per square meter in reference with recent transactions will affect
the fair value of the investment properties of the Group. Information
about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair
value of the Group’s investment properties are disclosed in note 16.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s available-for-sale
investments, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent
it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Directors
will assess the valuation of financial instruments based on quoted
bid prices of the previous trading day in the markets at the end of
each reporting period. As mentioned above, the fair value of the
Group’s bond securities listed in the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (“SGX”), the pricing vendor will assess its fair value
taking into account primarily the fair value quoted by the brokers
which is adjusted for the lack of marketability of the bond securities
at the end of the reporting period. Pricing vendor will exercise their
judgements based on their experience to establish and determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the valuation model.
Where there is a material change in the fair value of the available-for-
sale investments, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to
the Directors. Any changes in the marketability of the listed bonds
will affect the fair value of the investments. Notes 6¢ and 19 provides
detailed information about the valuation techniques, inputs and key
assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of the Group’s
available-for-sale investments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR a BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTA' NTY continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes (continued)

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s foreign exchange forward
contracts, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it
is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Directors will
obtain the mark-to-market reports from the issuers based on the
forward foreign exchange rate at the end of reporting period. Any
changes in the forward foreign exchange rate will affect the fair value

of the forward contracts. Details are disclosed in note 30.

5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings, net
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained
profits as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity.

The Directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associates with each class of capital. In the opinion of the
Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as

well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ = Z— G+ A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6.

6a. Categories of financial instruments

ETRMTAH
6a. SMIAET

THE GROUP
REE
2014
—ZT—F =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T T
Financial assets B EE
Loans and receivables (including cash and &3 R EWEEZ (BIFEHEE &
cash equivalents) ReEAEEE)
— trade and other receivables — B RHEMESERK 3,679,667 3,630,643
— bills receivables —rENEE 972,739 728,826
— amounts due from fellow subsidiaries e B EL NG 99,257 274,782
— bank balances and cash —iR{TEHNIR S 2,447,596 2,427,697
7,199,259 7,061,948
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 1,588,646 1,904,009
Financial liabilities MEE
Amortised cost B SERCR
- trade and other payables —B 5 MEMEMNER 1,154,443 1,190,824
— bills payables —ENEE 329,021 239,131
— amounts due to fellow subsidiaries - IGES NGRS 40,116 40,214
- bank borrowings —RITIEE 5,034,243 5,384,184
6,557,823 6,854,353
Derivative financial instruments TTEEMI A 6,779 -

6b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies
Details of the Group’s financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate
risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6.

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which exposes the Group to foreign
currency risk. Approximately 16% (2013: 14%) of the Group’s
sales are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entity making the sale, whilst
almost 14% (2013: 22%) of purchases are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant
group entities.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end of
the reporting period are disclosed in respective notes. The
management continuously monitors the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging foreign currency risk
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuation against foreign
currencies of United States dollars (‘US$”), Japanese Yen
(“JPY”) and HK$. The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% (2013: 5%) increase and decrease in
functional currency against the relevant foreign currencies.
5% (2013: 5%) represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at
the end of reporting period for a 5% (2013: 5%) change in
foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes trade
and other receivables, available-for-sale debt investments,
foreign exchange forward contracts, bank balances, trade
and other payables, bills payable and bank borrowings. A
positive number below indicates an increase in post-tax profit
for the year where functional currency of each Group entity
strengthen 5% (2013: 5%) against the relevant currency. For
a 5% (2013: 5%) weakening of functional currency of each
Group entity against the relevant currency, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the post-tax profit for the year.

6.

ﬁ%ﬂIE—\ )

6b.

iy
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ —Z—MF+—-A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueq) 6. TRTHA®
6b. Financial risk management objectives and 6b. HHEMEEEERBKX
policies (continued) (58)
Market risk (continued) miERR(E)
Currency risk (continued) EiE g ()
Sensitivity analysis (continued) BRREDIT(E)
2014
—E—mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT TisT
Uss ETT (47,369) (71,473)
JPY HIE| 1,034 1,426
HK$ BT 101,735 102,592
In the opinion of the Directors, the sensitivity analysis is EE25  ARNEEMREAENR
unrepresentative of inherent foreign exchange risk as the year fo I B FE R FTEAERNRE
ended exposure does not reflect the exposure during the U E DTS E A By I NE R
year. mEWEREE -
Interest rate risk VB
The Group'’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk is mainly AEBEEZT BIRITEE RS
in relation to variable-rate bank borrowings (see note 31 for iﬁ@miﬂfﬂ F(ZEEES
details of these borrowings). In relation to these variable-rate ﬁﬁﬁ?i’ﬂ ) o B EFAEE
borrowings, the Group aims at keeping certain proportion of C REEB SR T
its borrowings at fixed rates. The management continuously E\flj}f_{%%. F o BIEERER
monitors interest rate fluctuation and will consider further DR KL E) - WENEEBRFE
hedging interest rate risk should the need arise. B — S ER AR AR o
The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation REEETHTESIBTEE(Z
to fixed-rate bank borrowings (see note 31 for details of these LEEFIERMES) AR
borrowings) and listed bond securities with fixed coupon EEAEH FHESES(ZE L
interest (see note 19 for details of these listed bond securities). TEHFELEHFER MT*$19) FTE
The management monitors interest rate exposure and will E 7 A FERNRRS EIREEL
consider repayment of the fixed-rate bank borrowings when #‘ﬂf [EE - aTEEAH IR E AR
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.  BEEEETRIRTE
’g\ °
The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities AREFEAZTEEENTRER
are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this HEEE - RAMEREE S AR
note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly related EIE—F  c AEBWIRSRERN
to the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate ;%-:J‘L X BHENEFETEES
(“HIBOR”) (2013: HIBOR and the interest rates offered by the HEBRITRERS ([ FBHRIT
People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”)) arising from the Group’s FERKLE N ZZE—=%: FH
bank borrowings. HITAE/RERFEARRT

(THRBEARRITDITEMF )
KRBT EER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6.

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group’s bank balances have exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market
interest rate on bank balances. The Group is also exposed
to fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to its fixed-rate
short term bank deposits and listed bond securities with fixed
coupon interest. The Directors consider the Group’s exposure
of the short-term bank deposits to interest rate risk is not
significant as interest-bearing bank balances are within short
maturity period and fluctuation of savings interest rates on
bank balances is minimal.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for interest-bearing bank
balances and bank borrowings at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2013:
50 basis points) increase or 10 basis points (2013: 10 basis
points) decrease are used and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If HIBOR/PBOC interest rate had been 50 basis points (2013:
50 basis points) higher and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s:

o post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2014
would increase by HK$10,459,000 and decrease by
HK$19,345,000 (2013: increase by HK$10,542,000
and decrease by HK$23,379,000) as a result of the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its interest-
bearing bank balances and its variable-rate borrowings
respectively; and

° the credit side investment revaluation reserve as at 31
December 2014 would decrease by approximately
HK$20,164,000 (2013: HK$63,560,000) mainly as a
result of the changes in the fair value of available-for-
sale listed bond securities with fixed coupon interest.

6.
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6b.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (ontinued)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If HIBOR/PBOC interest rate had been 10 basis points (2013:
10 basis points) lower and all other variables were held

constant, the Group’s:

o post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2014
would decrease by HK$2,092,000 and increase by
HK$3,869,000 (2013: decrease by HK$2,108,000 and
increase by HK$4,676,000) as result of the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its interest-bearing bank
balances and its variable-rate borrowings respectively;

and

° the credit side investment revaluation reserve as at
31 December 2014 would increase by approximately
HK$4,108,000 (2013: HK$27,317,000) mainly as a
result of the changes in the fair value of available-for-
sale listed bond securities with fixed coupon interests.

In the opinion of the Directors, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of inherent interest rate risk as the year
ended exposure does not reflect the exposure during the

year.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk profiles and the Group has a
team to monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the

risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting

period.

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale equity
listed securities, which have not been impaired at the end
of the reporting period, had been 10% higher, the credit
side investment revaluation reserve at 31 December 2014
would increase by approximately HK$44,047,000 (2013:
HK$53,344,000) as a result of the change in fair value of

these available-for-sale investments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE =%
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Fl NANC'AL |NSTRU M ENTS (continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

There would be an equal and opposite effect on investment
revaluation reserve if the prices of the respective available-for-
sale equity listed securities, which have not been impaired,
had been 10% lower.

At 31 December 2014, the Group has concentration of equity
price risk on its available-for-sale investments as 27.6%
(2013: 23.9%) of the total available-for-sale investments is
concentrated in one (2013: one) equity security listed in Hong
Kong. The Group’s available-for-sale investments are exposed
to equity price risk due to the fluctuation of price of the equity
in the market.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at
the end of the reporting period in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the board of
Directors has delegated the management to be responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk in relation to bank deposits and bank balances
is considered minimal as such amounts are placed with
banks with good credit ratings and there is no significant
concentration of credit risk.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on
trade and other receivables, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties and customers other than group
entities. However, the Group is exposed to the concentration
on geographic and industry segment in PRC and the laminate
industry. At 31 December 2014, approximately 93% (2013:
93%) of the Group’s trade and other receivables are arising
from the PRC.

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are concentrated on
a few counterparties. However, the credit risk on amounts
due from fellow subsidiaries is limited because of the strong
financial background of the fellow subsidiaries.
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6b.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6.

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

At 31 December 2014, the Group has concentration of credit
risk on its available-for-sale debt investments as 19.8%
(2013: 27.1%) of the total available-for-sale investments is
concentrated in one (2013: one) listed bond securities issued
by one (2013: one) listed issuer in Hong Kong. The Group’s
available-for-sale listed bond securities are exposed to credit
risk due to the default of repayment by the bond issuers.
However, the Directors considered that the credit risk on
these investments are limited as the listed bond securities
were secured by certain assets of the issuers and issued by
issuers in Hong Kong with good creditability.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants
during the year.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. At 31 December 2014, the Group has
available unutilised bank borrowing facilities of approximately
HK$2,941,482,000 (2013: HK$2,753,229,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its derivative financial liabilities. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The maturity dates for other derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at the
end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B2 —Z—MF+_-_A=+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. QEQIE(%)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and 6b. HMBERREEEBERBE
policies (continued) (58)
Liquidity risk (continued) wEBESER(HE)
Liquidity and interest risk tables TEE L RFIFERRZ

Weighted Over Over Over

average  Ondemand  3months 1year 2years Total

effective  orlessthan butnotmore butnotmore butnotmore Over undiscounted  Carrying
interestrate  3months than 1year than2years than5years 5years cashflows amount

nETE  BERY ZEANE -ENE RENME FiRRE
EENZ  ZfAn BTEE-F EFEERT BTERRE RENL  REAE  REE
% HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§000  HK$000
Tén  TEn TiEn T Ten  TEn TiEn

At 31 December 2014 R-Z-ME+-f=1-A
Non-derivative financial liabilities 374 %8 &

Trade and other payables L5 REM RS - 1,154,443 - - - - 1,154,443 1,154,443
Bils payables EfiRE - 329,021 - - - - 39021 32002
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries JEfTRIZNBAFZE - 40,116 - - - - 40,116 40,116
Bank borrowings i1
- variable rate -%8 1.80 170,713 2,153,975 633,703 1,692,102 36,172 4,686,665 4,527,191
- fixed rate -%8 5.60 514,151 - - - - 514,151 507,052
Derivative financial instruments {7448 T2 - 2,078 4,701 - - - 6,779 6,779

2210522 2,158,676 633,703 1,692,102 36,172 6,731,175 6,564,602

Derivative - gross settlement  $74£ T -#4%E4E

Foreign exchange forward SNERE
contracts a#
- outflow =i - 13,918 36,038 - - - 49,956 49,956
- inflow —A - (11,8400  (31,387) - - - @17 @17
2,078 4,701 - - - 6,779 6,779
Weighted Over Over Over
average Ondemand 3 months 1 year 2 years Total
effecive  orlessthan  butnotmore  butnotmore  but not more Over  undiscounted Carying
interestrate ~ 3months  than1year than2years than 5 years Syears  cashflows amount
) W ENE RENE ERE
AEE—F BFBERE BNEALE  LFNAE . ]
HKS000  HKS000  HKBOO0  HK§'000  HK$000
B T T Thr BT
At 31 December 2013 RZZ-ZE+ZR=1-A
Non-derivative financial iabilities 3174 St% 8%
Trade and other payables BAREREREH - 1,190,824 - - - - 1190824 1190824
Bills payables EfiZE - 239,131 - - - - 289131 239131
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries /BRI ZH B2 A5E - 40214 - - - - 40214 40,214
Bank borrowings - variable rate  $TEE 25 23 381121 1235806 2716872 1230284 48868 5622041 5384184

1851200 1236806 27168712 1,239,284 48868 7002210 6,854,303
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ = Z— G+ A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (ontinued)

6c¢c. Fair value measurements of financial instruments
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of these financial
assets are determined (in particular, the valuation techniques
and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels
1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements is observable.

Fair value
hierarchy
AT
R

Fair value as at
31 December

W+t=R=t-Bz2

Financial assets
HEEE AYE
2014
—E-|mF
HK$'000
THEx

2013
—E-=F
HK$'000
TEL

Listed equity securities
classified as available-
for-sale financial assets

NEAIREENBEE
2 ETRAES

440,472 533,440

(i)~ Foreign currency forward
contracts classified
as derivative financial
instruments
AEATESBIAZIN
)

6,779

Listed bond securities
classified as available-
for-sale financial assets

AEAIHREE
RBEEL
LHERES

(i 990,682 1,213,077

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during the
years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.
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6c¢.

6.

Valuation
techniques
and key inputs
RERITR
IERMALE

Quoted bid prices in
active market

REMSREAE

Discounted cash flow.
Future cash flows
are estimated based
on closing exchange
rates at the end of the
reporting period and
contract forward rates

ERBEN - RENZR
HRAMR AR IE R o iR A

é@ﬁ%uﬁﬂ*%ﬁ

Sy

Reference to the fair value
quoted in the over-the-
counter market with
the adjustments for the
lack of marketability

SEEGI SRR
AVE  ERTRER
FEEHRERRRZ
MG ERE

T B

SRMTANQFEFE

BEEEHEERATETEY
AEENBEEZATE

AEBMBHPBEENSRES
RS AR AT ESE - T&
P& K R BB AN A R 2L S B TS
BEZAHE(LEZAAGE
B RBABE) - URAAT
EFEHAREZ TBRIZES
EMUATEFEFRESZA
TEEBERN(E—ZE=H) -

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to
fair value
FABRHESR
AVEZBE

Significant
unobservable
inputs
BARY
BRYUE

N/A N/A
i TER
N/A N/A
i MER
The lack of The lower of the
marketability marketability,
e misE the lower of
the fair value
TS HHIE -
NTEYE
REBEEZZ—NFER=ZT—=F
T AZt+—HIEFER F—
® - FBREE=R 2 EI
B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ —Z—MF+—-A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. ﬁ@lﬂ(%)
6c. Fair value measurements of financial instruments 6c. EMIAEMNAFEFE®E)

(continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of
financial assets

F-RUBEEATETEBZY
iR

Listed bond

securities

thESFES

HK$’000

THET

At 1 January 2013 RZZE—=%F—H—H 498,420
Additions NE 722,656
Fair value loss in other comprehensive income HivzmEkesz A FERIE (7,999)
At 31 December 2013 RZTE—=F+=-H=+—8 1,213,077
Additions NE 60,876
Disposals He (236,552)
Fair value loss in other comprehensive income Hivz2mEkas s AT EEE (46,719)
At 31 December 2014 R-_ZE—NFE+—-A=+—H 990,682

Included in other comprehensive income is a loss of
HK$46,719,000 (2013: HK$7,999,000) relating to listed
bond securities held at the end of the reporting period and is
reported as changes of investment revaluation reserve for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

RREHEERERBEZ L
T 1& % 3% % 5 18 46,719,000 7
JTL(ZZ— =4 : 7,999,000/
L) EREEREEZZT TN
F+-A=Zt+—HIEFEZHM
2ERET 2HRALEEHEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ = Z— G+ A=+—HILFE

7.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable by the
Group from the sales of goods, provision of drilling services, income
from property investment and license fee income provided to outside
customers, net of discounts, returns and sales related taxes. Analysis
of revenue for the year is as follows:

—E S

EXERARERBLEINEFPHER
i R ILRT - RERMEREZ
Y R 5 R AR 8 1o R B W A T W e e
SF ORI - RERARHEERAR
HFEE - FREEENDOITT -

2014 2013

—E—lNF ZT—=%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHET FAxT

Sales of glass epoxy laminates HERAFBHEEINEIR 7,977,392 7,538,800
Sales of paper laminates SHERERER 2,586,457 2,514,230
Sales of upstream materials SHE _ERrRt 1,694,577 1,682,806
Others Hih 882,370 934,136
Income from property investment LIES 8= R AN 141,898 128,330
13,282,694 12,798,302

Sales of laminates include glass epoxy laminates and paper laminates
manufactured according to specifications required by customers.
Sales of upstream materials include sales of copper foil, epoxy
resin, glass fabric and bleached kraft paper. Others comprise drilling
services, which involves the drilling of holes into the laminates
required by customers and sales of specialty resin and other materials
and licence fee income. Income from property investment includes
rental income from leasing of investment properties, income from
hotel accommodation and income from food and beverage and other
ancillary services of the hotel operation.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” requires operating segments to
be identified on the basis of internal reports about components of
the Group that are regularly reviewed by CODM in order to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance. Specifically,
the Group’s operating and reportable segments under HKFRS 8 were
organised into two main operating divisions — (i) manufacturing and
sale of laminates and (i) properties. No operating segments identified
by the CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE—%

8.

BTSRRI RE

—ME+ZA=t—RALFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq)

Under HKFRS 8, segment information is based on internal
management reporting information that is regularly reviewed by the
executive directors, being the CODM of the Group. The measurement
policies the Group used for segment reporting under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its HKFRS financial statements. The CODM
assess segment profit or loss using a measure of operating profit
whereby certain items are not included in arriving at the segment
results of the operating segments (gain on disposal of available-for-
sale investments, share-based payments, unallocated corporate
income and expenses and finance costs).

(@) Segment revenue and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results

DEPE R @

RIBEEM G RHRERELT - DA
HMIBEAERZ2RER - ZFEH
MAKEZHTES(ETBZERRSE)
T - ARBRANRIBEE BB R
AR 1ED #E 22 5t BHR
SEHARNE BN RRER T BEHRERE
—H e TREERFE LR 25
BRFHEDBZBNREE - EhET
HE I*ﬁ’@%l—‘tkﬁ%&%%ﬁﬂz/\*
EEA(LEATHRBERE 2 s
B FE AR ﬂi’n‘HEZ’&ETJ%U\&Ei
H R BEKA)

@ AEHERERER
REGEDMZAEEERER

by operating segments: ZEESTOT -
Year ended 31 December 2014 BZE-_Z—NF+=-A=+—H
IEFE
Laminates Properties Consolidated
ZHmER L/ES =a
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FERT FET FET
Segment revenue DERE R 13,140,796 141,898 13,282,694
Segment results DERELE 1,308,535 42,572 1,351,107
Gain on disposal of available-for- HE R HEIRE 2
sale investments Wz 14,864
Share-based payments LARRD AT 3R (2,130)
Unallocated corporate income kO EE 2 A FUA 140,975
Unallocated corporate expenses R/ itz Aalx (73,481)
Finance costs REE R AR (102,079)
Profit before taxation R 7 Bl v A 1,329,256
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fRE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ —Z—MF+—-A=+—HILFE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. /]-J\%Bﬁ*il'(%)
(@ Segment revenue and results (continued) (a) oHEEBREESE
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE-ZE—=F+=-HA=+—H
WHFE
Laminates Properties Consolidated
E R JES RE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FAT FAT FHT
Segment revenue DEpE TR 12,669,972 128,330 12,798,302
Segment results D EPELE 1,299,392 95,284 1,394,676

Gain on disposal of available-for- HE R HEIRE 2

sale investments Wz 11,369
Share-based payments AR D S AF 30 (12,916)
Unallocated corporate income kA 2z AFIUA 200,753
Unallocated corporate expenses KA 2 A7 H (75,948)
Finance costs [ELEEN N (124,783)
Profit before taxation B R A A 1,393,151
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fRE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ —Z—MF+—-A=+—HILFE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. ﬁﬁgﬁ*ﬂ(%)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities b) HHBEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities BEAEELEDIEEREE
by operating segments: ST
At 31 December 2014 N-E—NWE+=-A=+—H
Laminates Properties Consolidated
ZBHER L/ "a
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TER TER TERT
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 15,017,368 6,150,793 21,168,161
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 1,588,646
Unallocated corporate assets: KO Z ABVEE :
— Deferred tax assets —BEERIBEE 3,913
- Taxation recoverable — A Bl FE 18 7,063
- Bank balances and cash —RITREB RIS 53,437
— Others —Hfh 101,366
Consolidated total assets CEBERE 22,922,586
Liabilities afE
Segment liabilities HEaE (1,435,564) (1,583,554) (3,019,118)
Unallocated corporate liabilites kA FERZ AT AE :
— Bank borrowings —RITEE (5,034,243)
— Deferred tax liabilities —EERIEEE (98,008)
— Taxation payable — EHHIIE (299,610)
- Others —HAth (77,947)
Consolidated total liabilities e AEeE (8,528,926)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ = Z— G+ A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT |NFORMATION (continued)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

At 31 December 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. DEER @
b) HBEEREES

R-ZE—=5+=-HA=+—H

Laminates Properties Consolidated
EiRER LIES N
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHT FHT T
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 14,709,281 5,169,491 19,878,772
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 1,904,009
Unallocated corporate assets: KOHZAREE :
— Deferred tax assets —EEHIBEE 4,083
- Taxation recoverable —A] Yk [el F 3E 7,063
- Bank balances and cash —RITEHREAS 54,498
— Others —Hfh 110,901
Consolidated total assets e BERE 21,959,326
Liabilities =1
Segment liabilities HEEE (1,673,614) (897,711) (2,071,325)
Unallocated corporate liabilites ROz AT &HE :
— Bank borrowings —RITEE (5,384,184
— Deferred tax liabilities —EERIEEE (101,298)
— Taxation payable — JERITRTE (324,589)
— Others —HAth (53,398)
Consolidated total liabilities e BESE (7,934,790)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than deferred tax assets, taxation recoverable, bank
balances and cash and other assets used jointly by
operating segments; and

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than bank borrowings, deferred tax liabilities, taxation
payable and other liabilities for which operating
segments are jointly liable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ —Z—MF+—-A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. /J-J\ﬁlgﬁ*sl'(%)
(c)  Other information (c) HaEH
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or SFENEERE D A EERFTA
segment assets: sl
Year ended 31 December 2014 BZE-—E—MNE+=-A=+—H
IEEE
Unallocated
Laminates Properties amount  Consolidated
& SR AR ¥ RAESHE o
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THEx THER THER TExT
Capital additions BARER 928,602 773,484 = 1,702,086
Depreciation e 712,144 19,742 - 731,886
Release of prepaid lease BNEERE
payments Gl 6,502 2,805 - 9,307
Gain on fair value changes of 3&& ¥ A (G
investment properties g5 W - 28,489 - 28,489
Loss on disposal of HEME  BER
properties, plant and Rz ER
equipment 8,875 - - 8,875
Impairment loss on trade & S EUBER 2
receivables REERE 2,455 = = 2,455
Impairment loss on R ERRZ
inventories AEEE 2,099 - - 2,099
Interest income FBUA 5,261 1,971 117,666 124,898
Unrealised loss on fair IQI\ELH;% ey
value changes of foreign NEEEHEEY
exchange forward REREE
contracts 6,779 - - 6,779
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE-Z—=5+=-A=+—H
IEFE
Unallocated
Laminates Properties amount Consolidated
EIRER B AOBLesE ey
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
Capital additions BEARER 498,165 2,624,286 - 3,122,451
Depreciation we 694,530 22,392 - 716,922
Release of prepaid lease TENFEERE
payments o] 6,933 3,267 - 10,200
Gain on fair value changes of 3% & ¥ A\ (g
investment properties #E) v s 11,890 60,220 - 72,110
Loss on disposal of HEME  BEK
properties, plant and B
equipment 3,527 - - 3,527
Impairment loss ontrade  E ZEWERT 2
receivables HERR 176,411 - - 176,411
Impairment loss on WEEHERZ
inventories REERE 1,788 - - 1,788
Interest income FEU A 7,141 - 118,258 125,399
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fRE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2014 B2 —Z—MF+_-_A=+—HItFE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8.

(c)  Other information (continued)
The Group principally operates in the PRC (other than Hong
Kong) (country of domicile) with revenue and profits derived
mainly from its operations in the PRC.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from the
external customers by geographical location of the customers:

DEPE R @

(c)

Hip &R ()
AREBEEEXBRUNPE T
BREER)(AREZMER)
BEBRENHTRREFEE
% o

RIBSN B PAIEIR RS D2
AEEEREOMT

2014

—E—ImF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
The PRC (country of domicile) P (ARNEE 2 Frih) 12,401,212 11,852,070

Other foreign countries: H MBS -

Other Asian countries HAth To MBI 779,245 837,288
Europe BN 43,052 49,675
America M 59,185 59,269
13,282,694 12,798,302

Revenue from one of the Group’s customers amounted
to HK$1,638,196,000 (2013: HK$1,508,609,000), which
individually accounted for over 10% of the Group’s revenue
for the year.

The geographical analysis of the Group’s non-current assets,
other than deferred tax assets, other non-current assets,
available-for-sale investments, non-current deposits and
goodwill by location of assets is presented as follows:

KERAEEBHF-—ERFPHE
¥ EE4E(E 51,638,196,000/8 7T
—E— =% :1,508,609,000/%
TL) A AR ERFNE ERER
B10% °

BRIEERIREE - HitbIERBE
E - HEEREFRBIIE R
EEIN  ARESERBEERE
EMEIT2INMT

2014

—E—EF =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FBT
PRC (country of domicile) A (NS E 2 FrfEtth) 5,992,343 5,891,860
Hong Kong &k 281,131 280,251
United Kingdom HE 768,350 783,360
Thailand Z=H 174,528 134,812
7,216,352 7,090,283
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B2 —Z—MF+_-_A=+—HItFE

9. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HfulgA - Bz REE
2014 2013
—Z=—gF —T—=fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Other income, gains and losses include: HAUA -~ Was RIEEEE
Interest income from available-for-sale A HERE Y
investments FBULA 117,919 118,258
Dividend income from available-for-sale A ERE Y
investments f& B A 17,038 32,671
Other interest income EAuF B UA 6,979 7,141
Unrealised loss on fair value changes of EINEREE D2 A EZE
foreign exchange forward contracts B4z REHER (6,779) -
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BLERZR

LB

Interest on bank borrowings

2014
—E—mF

2013
—ET—=F
HK$’000
FAT

HK$’000
FEx

Z
— wholly repayable within five years —ERRAFAEHEEZEER 104,167 128,680
- not wholly repayable within five years —TNERAFRNEHEEZEE 1,940 1,628
106,107 130,303
Less: Amounts capitalised in the B EREIRENERNMEERE
construction in progress (4,028) (5,520)
102,079 124,783

The weighted average capitalisation rate on funds borrowed generally
is 2.0% per annum (2013: 2.3% per annum).

FrEE & EEINETFHER LR ATF
2.0% (=T —=%F : §42.3%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ = Z— G+ A=+—HILFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. FIEBIAX
2014 2013
—T-mE T—=fF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTHET FHT
The amount comprises: HEeE -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BAENEH
Charge for the year REE 7 RIEZ N 10,981 10,536
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B ZEFTISHL
Charge for the year AEE 2 HESL 183,028 169,571
Overprovision in previous years BAFERERE - (1,822)
183,028 167,749
Taxation arising in other jurisdiction HihahrfEm 2 BiE
Charge for the year AEF 2 HEL 2,392 1,801
Deferred taxation RERIR
(Credit) charge for the year (note 22) AEE 2 BiE(FE)
X (fE22) (3,120) 3,182
193,281 183,268
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated MIEF EH BB NGB IR RS
assessable profit for both years. S AA16.5% 2 T FEETE ©
Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise RRIPEAREMBESEMERIE]
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT ([ZEMERE]) REEMREN - B=
Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 TENF—HA—HBFRE - BRRF RN
onwards. BBz REMEHER25% °
Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the rate prevailing EfhelEEE o BIEIRE @A EAER
in the relevant jurisdiction. ZAANEETE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ —Z—MF+—-A=+—HILFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (ontinueq)

B e

IS 7 BiIABLR
ZEERINTE

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation
per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

BERERRTATE T

2014 2013
—Z—mF —T—=4F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTHET FAxT
Profit before taxation B Bl Vs A 1,329,256 1,393,151
Tax charge at the domestic income tax A H P15 T % 25%
rate of 25% (2013: 25%) (note a) (ZE—=F : 25%)5T8H 2
I H (fista) 332,314 348,288
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for RBREME TR ERZ
tax purpose MG E 2,227 9,430
Tax effect of income not taxable for HBIEM S BARTRAZ
tax purpose D (44,976) (53,836)
Overprovision in previous years BARFERERE -~ (1,822)
Tax effect of Tax Concession (note b) HEER BT E
(FtzEDb) (37,739) (81,390)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERHEEE BT E 17,196 17,112
Utilisation of tax losses previously not AL RIARTER
recognised FIaEsE (4,296) (3,648)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries BRE SR EIN - REAMME]
operating in other jurisdiction/areas other SERER MRS E AT
than the domestic income tax rate ZAEBE 2 (26,471) (17,837)
Effect of tax exempted profit (note c) R BBan 2 (Kiske) (44,974) (83,029)
Tax expense for the year REZE 2 BEHAS 193,281 183,268
Notes: MiaT -
(@) The domestic income tax rate of 25% (2013: 25%) represents the @ B TSR HM K% (T —=F :

PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of which the Group’s operations are
substantially based.

25% ) FE AR BARED XA T E
REFSTE -

RIBRERERE - Rt g
HETHRIBERAH=FMN15%F
RER - ETPENEARES SR
BRI eE(HEESR]D -

(b) Pursuant to the EIT Law, a High-New Technology Enterprise shall be (b)
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% for three years since it was officially
endorsed. Certain subsidiaries in the PRC obtained official endorsement as
a High-New Technology Enterprise (“Tax concession”).

() Profits arising from certain subsidiaries of the Company in Macau are (©)
exempted from profits tax.

ARRIRRFIZ ETHBABMES
I ER RTINS
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iR e B TSR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ —Z—MF+—-A=+—HILFE
12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 12. RFEEHF

2014 2013
—T-mE T—=fF

HK$000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Profit for the year has been arrived at after AN 2 &K (BT A)

charging (crediting): LATIEE :
Depreciation of properties, plant and W - BE &

equipment HIEITE 731,886 716,922
Release of prepaid lease payments FEBNEEREE[D 9,307 10,200

741,193 727,122
Net exchange loss (gain) P 5B R (e ) F 58 4,648 (8,339)
Auditor’s remuneration ZER NS 3,000 3,000
Cost of inventories sold BEFE 2R 11,110,350 10,635,529
Loss on disposal and write off of properties, HE &S -

plant and equipment BB K& A 2 1R 8,875 3,627
Share-based payments AR50 2,130 12,916
Impairment loss on inventories MIFERR REEE 2,099 1,788
Total staff costs other than share-based 8 T A4a%E

payments, including directors’ emoluments  (LARRA FE AT R A1) -

(see note 13) BIEEENS (RHFE13) 678,958 577,094
Rental income Be A (79,953) (68,415)
Direct operating expenses in relation to EYEZ BEKE

investment properties 53 33,777 6,433
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B2 —Z—MF+_-_A=+—HItFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 13. EE - THARBREES
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS [ ke
(@ Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments () ESRTHEAIME
The emoluments paid or payable were as follows: B ERN ST
2014
—E—mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHBT
Fees we 1,056 1,056
Other emoluments: Hinie -
Salaries and other benefits e REMET 14,154 14,216
Contributions to retirement benefits RNRFFTEIH5R
scheme 634 637
Performance related incentive payment TYERIRIEEIFIA
(Note i) (B3 60,620 58,820
Share-based payments LARD AT 3R 1,150 6,976
77,614 81,705
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B2 —Z—MF+_-_A=+—HItFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(@)

(continued)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. &%

=
Ul

(@

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the twelve
(2013: twelve) Directors and the Chief Executive were as

follows:

Year ended 31 December 2014
HECR-DET-R=1-HLEE

- THRRKRES

(#8)

ESRTHRARME (@)

ENREA =R (ZE—=
F o2 EERTRERY
BemT -

Cheung  Cheung Chan Yue Mok Yiu Ip
Cheung Kwok Kwok Lam  Cheung Zhou Lo Kwong, Leung  Keung, ShuKwan,
KwokWa  Keung Ping KaPo  KaHo LiuMin PeiFeng Kaleong Michael  TaiChiu Peter  Stephen Total
FEE RER  RET  M3E R3B 8% Ate  BXR  REX  RRE  EER  ERE it
HK$000  HKS000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000
Thn TAn  TErn  TEn  TEx  Thr TEr TEr  TErn  TER  THm  TEn  TEn
(Note )
(Hfaki)
Fess e = - - - - - - - 192 192 192 480 1,056
Other emoluments; Efpt -
Selaries and other benefits 4 RE (bR 2,682 2,465 2475 2,200 1430 948 919 1,03 - - - - 14154
Contrioutions to retiement KR
bengfts scheme s 124 108 114 102 66 42 4 3 - - - - 634
Performance related Ifek%E
incentive payment #EE
(Note i) Pz 15000 12400 12400 12,400 5,200 1,160 1,160 - - - - - 60620
Share-based payments  HRATZ 26 245 213 13 213 - - - - - - - 1150
Total emoluments g% 18972 15218 15202 14915 6900 2150 210 1,072 192 192 192 40 TI614

Cheung
Kwok Wa
Rz
HK§ 000
TEL

Cheung
Kwok

Cheung
S
Ping
za7
HK$ 000
Tin

Cheung

Year ended 3

LiuMin

2l

1 December 2013

A=T-RItFR

Zhou
Pei Feng
e
HK§ 000

Thn

Lo
Leong

HK 000
TEnL

Chan Yue
Kwong,
Michagl

Mok Yiu
Keung,
Peter
Ei
HK$'000
AT
(Note )

Leung
Tai Chi

Fees we - - - - - - - - 192 192 192 480 1,096
Qther emoluments: e :
Salaries and other benefits 4 RE(b1EF 2,082 2475 2475 2,200 1390 948 919 1127 - - - - 14216
Contrioutions to retiement KR
benefts scheme R 12 108 114 102 8 Q 4 4 - - - - 837
Performance related =)
inoentive payment REE
(Note i (i) 5700 1220 12200 12200 4200 1160 1,160 - - - - - 588
Share-based payments  RFALAE 165 1485 122 122 1@ - - - - - - - 697
Total emoluments Heus 20121 16,268 16,081 16,794 6,947 2,150 2,120 1,168 192 192 192 480 81,705
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR a BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ = Z— G+ A=+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(a)

(c)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments

(continued)
Neither the Chief Executive nor any of the Directors waived
any emoluments during the years ended 31 December 2014
and 2013.

Notes:

0] Mr. Mok Yiu Keung, Peter resigned as independent non-executive
director of the Company on 31 December 2014.

(ii) The performance related incentive payment is determined with
reference to the operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics during both years.

Chief Executive’s emoluments

Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung is also the Chief Executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those
for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

Employees’ emoluments
For the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, all of the
five highest paid employees are Directors.

During both years, no emoluments were received or
receivable by the Directors or the Group’s five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office.

13. E5 - THABRES

EERTHRARNS (8

HE_ZT—NUFER-_FT—=F
+ZA=+—HILFE - #ET
BB ESHEE NS -

() ERBAEER _T—MF
TZA=+—BBEARA
BIIFRITES -

(i THERREBMKBEDZER
BEFEEZLEES  BAAX
BRLBMISEURERE

THAHME
SREREETARRRZITHE
B EXFRBEEMSBEEE
ETHAHNME -

EEME
HE-_Z-—MNMER-_ZT—=F
T A=+—HIEFE - 23R
rEEHEEEBHYAES -

RMEFEAR  EFXAKER
HEREHEATHEC KRR
ERE - (ERREIRE MEAR
SEIMBAEER X2 B
SKIF AR e -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fRE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ —Z—MF+—-A=+—HILFE
14. DIVIDENDS 14. RE
2014 2013
—T—mF ZE—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FAxT
Dividends paid EIRERRE
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 (ZE-ZT—MNFE+=-A=+—H
December 2014 of HK6 cents IEFEZPER S SR @R
(for the year ended 31 December 2013: eBI(BE=Z—=F+=A4
HK5 cents) per ordinary share = +—HIEFE : 581) 180,000 150,000
Final dividend for the year ended 31 (ZE-T—=F+=-RA=+—H
December 2013 of HK12 cents WEFE 2 RERE iﬂﬁmLﬁﬁ
(for the year ended 31 December 2012: 128L(BE=E—=F+=A
HK12 cents) per ordinary share =+—HIEFE - 12/80) 360,000 360,000
540,000 510,000
Dividend proposed EERE
Proposed final dividend for the year ended & Z—-Z—WNE+-A=+—H
31 December 2014 of HK10 cents IEFEEEARARESR T AR
(for the year ended 31 December 2013: 108I(BE=2—=F+_H
HK12 cents) per ordinary share =+—HIEFE - 127810) 300,000 360,000

The final dividend of HK10 cents per ordinary share amounted to
HK$300,000,000 in total in respect of the year ended 31 December
2014 (2013: final dividend of HK12 cents per ordinary share
amounted to HK$360,000,000 in total in respect of the year ended
31 December 2013) has been proposed by the directors and is
subject to the approval by the shareholders of the Company in the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fRE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ —Z—MF+—-A=+—HILFE
15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. BRER
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the KAREFEAEEBREREFIZ T
owners of the Company is based on the following data: R E -
2014 2013
—E—F T——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T THT
Profit for the year attributable to owners ViN/NCIEE ¥ =N Y
of the Company FEEHF 1,121,842 1,207,182

Number of shares
BRHOEE
2014
—Z2-NF

’000
F

Number of ordinary shares for the purpose 5t & G ELARZF) >

of calculating basic earnings per share EREGE 3,000,000 3,000,000
The computation of diluted earnings per share does not assume the BRESERN W ET BRERITEAR
exercise of the Company’s share options because the exercise price RIMEBSERE  HZESELEREL
of these share options was higher than the average market price for TEEER T NFR_ZE—=FH8
shares for both 2014 and 2013. mHFHE -

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REWE

HK$’'000
FET

FAIR VALUE NEE
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=F—H—H 913,829
Exchange adjustments IE H F & 34,069
Additions NE 263,545
Increase in fair value NFEIE 72,110
At 31 December 2013 R-ZT—=F+=-A=+—8H 1,283,553
Exchange adjustments b 5% (43,396)
Increase in fair value NEE NN 28,489
At 31 December 2014 R-E—WF+_A=+—H 1,268,646
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR a BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continueq)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December
2014 and 2013 had been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on the respective dates by Messrs. Roma Appraisals Limited,
independent qualified valuers not connected to the Group. Messrs.
Roma Appraisals Limited is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors. The valuation was determined based on direct comparison
method by reference to the market observable transactions of similar
properties and adjusted to reflect conditions and locations of subject
properties. There has been no change from the valuation technique
used in prior year.

The Group’s investment properties were classified as Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2014. There were no transfers
between the fair value hierarchy during the year.

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of these investment properties are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique and inputs used), as well as the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised
(Level 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ = Z— G+ A=+—HILFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. BREWE =

Investment properties
held by the Group in the
consolidated statement of
financial position
REFRGEHBARRE
RAEZRENE

Fair value
hierarchy
AT
ZEERA

Valuation techniques
and key inputs

Significant

unobservable inputs Sensitivity

HERITRER2H

BATAEEZH BRE

Industrial properties in Level 3 Direct comparison method  Price per square metre, A significant increase in
Hong Kong with price per square metre using market direct the price per square metre
comparable and taking used would result in a
into account of location significant increase in the
and other individual factors  fair value measurement of
such as road frontage, size the investment properties,
of property etc., which is and vice versa.
ranged from HK$36,134
to HK$38,750 (2013:
HK$36,371 to HK$38,750)
per square metre.
REER TR E=R BREEBERETERA RETSEEALENE  BFREHRKARLE
=B RERAE AR E BRI EMEN N TER
AE &% (nERETER SRELTT RZTA
WERNE)EEF TR
EE - 1361345 T
%38,7508L(ZF—=
% : 86,371/87L£38,750
AT -
Commercial properties in Level 3 Direct comparison method  Price per square metre, A significant increase in
Hong Kong with price per square metre using market direct the price per square metre
comparable and taking used would result in a
into account of location significant increase in the
and other individual factors  fair value measurement of
such as road frontage, size the investment properties,
of property etc., whichis ~ and vice versa.
ranged from HK$122,386
to HK$128,650 (2013:
HK$121,352 to
HK$131,632) per square
metre.
REBNERYE F=R BEIEERETAK RETSEEATLR FEFAREBRAE LA
EE MERZBUENREM BEREVENDTET

EARIE X% (EsEE
B’ MEXNE) NET
FREE  NT122,386
B ILE128,6508 TT(—F
—=E 1213528 E
131,632/87T)

BRBELT RZIA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ = Z— G+ A=+—HILFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. BREWE =

Investment properties
held by the Group in the

consolidated statement of  Fair value Valuation techniques Significant
financial position hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity
REERGE M BARRE NEE
REZREDFE AR ERITREZLY EANAEBRLY GRS
Commercial properties in Level 3 Direct comparison method  Price per square metre, A significant increase in
Shanghai with price per square metre using market direct the price per square metre
comparable and taking used would result in a

into account of location significant increase in the
and other individual factors  fair value measurement of

such as road frontage, the investment properties,
size of property etc., and vice versa.

which is ranged from

RMB28,000 to RMB28,060

(2013: RMB28,400 to
RMB28,500) per square

metre.
R LB A F= ERECEREE K KATSEENLENE SFFKEERAELAR
EE REEMBARHMER BEREMENDTET
AxE(MEREER - =XKELA  R2TFA -
ERNE)NBTHKE

& NFAREE28,0007T
EARE28,0607L(=Z

—=%F : AR#28,4007C
= ARK28,5007T) ©

Commercial properties in Level 3 Direct comparison method  Price per square metre, A significant increase in
Shenzhen with price per square metre using market direct the price per square metre
comparable and taking used would result in a

into account of location significant increase in the
and other individual factors  fair value measurement of

such as road frontage, the investment properties,
size of property etc., and vice versa.

which is ranged from

RMB14,500 to RMB14,800

(2013: RMB14,500 to
RMB14,800) per square

metre.
RRIIE R B=R BERLBERET K RATMBEETLER SFEFREBERELAR
=& MERZEMNENAR BIREVENRFET

Hi AR EEZ%(WE EXBEA RZMAK-
HER - MERNNE)

MEFHKEE N

T AR #14,5007T &

AR148007T (= F

—=F: AR¥14,500

TEAR148007T) °

118 KINGBOARD LAMINATES HOLDINGS LIMITED 3/EHE EiRiZEAR G R A A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR a BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE—%

—ME+ZA=t—RALFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Investment properties
held by the Group in the

consolidated statement of

financial position
REENR AR
RAEZREMFE

Commercial Shops in
Qingyuan

Commercial properties in
London

INCEGEIEEES

Valuation techniques
and key inputs

HERITRER2H

Direct comparison method
with price per square metre

BEREBEREFIA
&8

Direct comparison method
with price per square metre

BEEREBERGT A
&E

16. BEWE »

Significant
unobservable inputs

BATABEZH

Price per square metre,
using market direct
comparable and taking
into account of location
and other individual factors
such as road frontage,
size of property etc.,

which is ranged from
RMB12,300 to RMB12,500
(2013: RMB10,000 to
RMB10,260) per square
metre.

REMSEENLENE
REBMEAREMER
REB(MEREEE D
ERNE)NFERKE
B N T ARKE12,3007T
ZARE12 5007 (= F
—=% : AR#10,0007T
Z AR10,2607T) ©

Price per square metre,
using market direct
comparable and taking
into account of location
and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size
of property etc., which is
ranged from GBP7,962

to GBP8,523 (2013:
GBP7,007 to GBP8,956)
per square metre.

RATSEZEILRYE
REBRMEIAREMME

PR ZE% (NEGATER -

WMERNE)NFEHK
EE NT7,9625EER
8,523%HE (— T —=4F ¢
7,007 5488 %8,956 548 ) o

Sensitivity

A significant increase in
the price per square metre
used would result in a
significant increase in the
fair value measurement of
the investment properties,
and vice versa.

BEHAERRR LR
BYREMEN A TER
ERELT  RZIA

A significant increase in
the price per square metre
used would result in a
significant increase in the
fair value measurement of
the investment properties,
and vice versa.

BY I RERAR LTI
BYREMENRFHET
BRBELT  RZIA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ —Z—MF+—-A=+—HILFE
16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

There were no transfer into or out of Level 3 during the year.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties. In estimating the fair value of the properties,
the highest and best use of the properties is their current use. There
has been no change from the valuation technique used in prior year.

The carrying value of investment properties shown above comprises:

16. BEWE »

FR - WENRE=RPIEALE -

REERRIVE S E AR ELREL
BHRNBAEZAMEMEERS - AN
RFEEXFE XD BERIEREY
¥ RMEFMEZQAFER  MEZK
ShRERZABINARZ RNBEFE
PR 2 fh BRI R E -

A EREMEREERR

2014 2013
—E-MF ZT—=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET T
Property interests situated in BTNBAREBREZ
Hong Kong under: MR
Medium-term leases R ERTRAY 39,410 39,410
Long leases REHEL 229,800 229,800
269,210 269,210
Property interests situated outside BTANBEAREBAINGE
Hong Kong under: 2 NERE
Medium-term leases FRERFR 4 168,972 168,783
Long leases REAMEA 830,464 845,560
999,436 1,014,343
1,268,646 1,283,553
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ —Z—MF+—-A=+—HILFE
17. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% - BER%E

Properties,

Plant and

Buildings Furniture, equipment
or  Leasehold  Plantand Licenced fixtures and Motor under

own use improvements  machinery assets  equipment vehicles construction

ik RE GR-%E S

BEEF  NEEE  BRREE  GREE e ] RE  HERRE

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

i ThL ThL ThL BT BT T
(Note)

CosT A

At1 January 2013 R=E-=5-F-H 1,192,586 200627 69203712 2,441,654 486,732 63,371 746847 11,872,189
Exchange adjustments Eq R 29,326 71 203,617 76,613 13953 1,067 26,114 350,751

Addttions RNE - - 310,250 - 36,846 2,998 123,067 473,161

Disposals and write off HERHE - - (32,969) - (18,423) (4,688) (452) (66,528)
Reclassifications EN0E 27,799 - 430,755 - 8,527 182 (467,269 -
At 31 December 2013 RIE-=E+-F=+-8 149711 20698 7832029 2518267 527,635 62,920 428313 12,639,673
Exchange adjustments 3 (2,246) (42 (11431) (8.427) (1,169) (156) (1407) (24,878)
Additions RE 732 - 235,268 - 12,9% 3,805 676917 99,17
Disposals and write off HERME - - (332,145) - (7.521) (1,203 - (340,875)
Reclassffications ETinL 4.207 - 680,752 - 39,628 826 (125,413) -
At 31 December 2014 RIE-MEF-A=1-H 1250404 20606 8404473 2,509,840 571,562 66,192 378410 18,203,537
DEPRECIATION AND IMPARMENT  #rE R

Att January 2013 RZE-=F-f-H 263,937 4835 4,213,481 1,642,074 212,375 43,039 - 6,379,741

Exchange adjustments EREE 9,155 68 158,280 53,691 7,337 907 - 229,438
Provided for the year TEREE 4448 2,542 523,068 136,705 47,765 2,3% - 716,922

Eliminated on disposals and write off £ &85 Rié - - (12,399 - (16,157) 4183 - (32,689)
At 31 December 2013 REE-=F+-F=1-H 277,540 7445 4882430 1832470 251,320 42,207 - 7298412

Exchange adjusiments BHE (#40) Py B Bed) {449 (1) - sy
Provided for the year TEREE 7826 248 539000 119710 50,607 303 - 73188
Bliminated on disposals and write off 1855 5 RfisH - - (298,849) - (6,861) (1,104) - (306814
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-RF+-A=1-A 284,926 9843 5117667  1,946539 303,713 44012 - 7,706,700

CARRYING VALUE REE

At 31 December 2014 R-E-W¥+-A=1-H 967,478 10813 3,286,806 563,301 267,849 22,180 318410 5,496,837

At 31 December 2013 R=F-=F+-f=1-A 972,171 13253 2,949,599 685,797 276,315 20,713 428313 5,346,161
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ = Z— G+ A=+—HILFE

17. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. % - BERZE#E

(continued)
All the Group’s buildings for own use are situated in the PRC on land REE 2 E REFIIRN AT EAE L
held under medium-term leases. FAENRE LM -
The above items of properties, plant and equipment (other than those it  BELREREEE (BERA
under construction) are depreciated on a straight-line basis after BN K EEFIRBEEIRATFEL
taking into account of their residual values at the following rates per R\HGFREANRTE -
annum:
Buildings for own use* Over the remaining unexpired EAigF HRBRAELOAFISBATL
terms of the leases ranging MEHH-+=2R+
from twenty to fifty years F
Leasehold improvements 10 -20% TAMZEEE 10-20%
Plant and machinery* 10 - 20% WEKi%sE 10-20%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10 - 33'/3% L KEBR 10-3318%
B
Motor vehicles* 20% JTE 20%
* Included those grouped under licenced assets. . PEIEEEECREENZSIER
Note: BT
Licenced assets comprised of the followings: BEFAEERIENATSIEA
Buildings Plant and Motor
for own use machinery vehicles Total
BREF B = AE A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHAT FHAT
COST 2%
At 1 January 2013 N-Z—=F—Hf—H 360,344 2,071,734 9,576 2,441,654
Exchange adjustments ek 11,307 65,006 300 76,613
At 31 December 2013 W-Z—=F+-A=+—H 371,651 2,136,740 9,876 2,518,267
Exchange adjustments [ 5 AR (1,244) (7,150) (33) (8,427)
At 31 December 2014 R-E—mFE+=A=+—H 370,407 2,129,590 9,843 2,509,840

DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT  $& RR &

At 1 January 2013 R-Z—=%—A—H 132,862 1,499,739 9,473 1,642,074
Exchange adjustments EH AR 4,285 49,106 300 53,691

Provided for the year N E RS 7,331 129,271 1083 136,705
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=5+-A=+—H 144,478 1,678,116 9,876 1,832,470
Exchange adjustments IE % 7,240 112,470 - 119,710
Provided for the year REE RS (454) (5,154) (33) (5,641)
At 31 December 2014 RZT—NFE+=-A=+—H 151,264 1,785,432 9,843 1,946,539
CARRYING VALUE BREE

At 31 December 2014 R-ZT—mE+-f=+—H 219,143 344,158 - 563,301

At 31 December 2013 R-E—=F+=A=+—H 227,173 458,624 - 685,797
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE

17. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

On 3 August 2011, a subsidiary of Kingboard Copper Foil Holdings
Limited (“KBCF” or the “Licensor”) (KBCF is a listed subsidiary of
the Group), entered into a licence agreement with Harvest Resource
Management Limited (the “Licencee”), a third party, to licence KBCF’s
copper foil manufacturing facilities located at Fogang and Lianzhou
to the Licencee for the period from 1 September 2011 to 31 August
2013. On 30 August 2013, the Licensor entered into a letter of
extension and amendments with Licencee and extended the licence

17.

W% > BB R

RZZE——%F/\A=H " Kingboard
Copper Foil Holdings Limited([ KBCF |
[ ZEA]) (KBCFAAREE—fH Lm
BT /&8 X A1) B — R BT JB8 8 B SR g B2 AR 8
BRAR(RE=7)(EREANDEIL
BEGRHE  AEEER_Z——F
NA—RBREZZE—=F/\A=+—HL
= Fa??ﬁ%ﬁ&%/\@iﬁﬁ KBCF{z A 8 [

period for further two years to 31 August 2015. The details of the BN ERARERE - R —=F
licence arrangement which remained unchanged, are as follows: NA=+H8" TEZEE*/\E@?%&*%E AR —
PIEHA RAEFT st - AR R ERIE &

(i) to use the leasehold properties, comprising factory buildings
in Fogang and Lianzhou;

(ii) to use, consume and dispose of the inventory which shall
include consumables and stocks in trade; and

MEE—_T-—RFN\A=1+—8 - &E#&
LM S - HFFIRWT

() ERBOYE - BRI &
BN Z B

(i) /R BAMMERE  BRES
EmkEBESFE Rk

(il to use the machinery, together with all other equipment and (iii P FAMERE - ER LA
facilities as from time to time located at the properties in BINEZ A EMERERE
Fogang and Lianzhou. i

The licenced properties, plant and equipment tabulated above and
the licenced inventories in note 21 were licenced for licence income
of HK$10,000,000 per month payable in advance on the first day of
each and every calendar month, as a short-term measure by KBCF
to generate income from the manufacturing facilities, pending the
resolution of the interested party transactions issue, relating to the
manufacturing and trading of copper foil, with the non-controlling

ERFATREBEERAYE  BELRRER
Msrot pritt i e AiF B ERE S
B8 A &S A10,000,00078 T ZEEA
BERERMEN - FRKBCFitRE

BEEE £ MR HY 52 HR i - ‘r‘ﬂ—iriﬁiKBCF
Eﬁét? BRELEEREENERBOF
Aix%%a?ﬁﬁa&%(m‘zsm)&

shareholder of KBCF (note 37(b)) and the approval of the interested BEMEFEA TR IEEAR, K
party transactions mandate by the shareholders and/or when KBCF EKBCFRFE=FEFIHEHRE - B

clinched new third parties customers for the sales of copper foil.
Accordingly, the licenced properties, plant and equipment have been
reclassified as licenced assets under properties, plant and equipment.

The Group conducted a review of the recoverable amount of its
licenced properties, plant and equipment based on valuation carried
out by independent professional valuer, Messrs. Roma Appraisals
Limited. The valuation is determined based on the value in use
calculated using the income approach. The discount rate used in
measuring value in use was 7% (2013: 7%). Based on the review, no
impairment loss is recognised.

bt REERYE - BERREBEHD
BRYE  BELREBRTNREERE
o

AEBIRE T AR SRR
BRARETHNHERMHEEERY
¥ BEMERENRIBEISE - HEN
EREEEFEER  ERRAEE
E oAt EEREENTREAT(=Z
—=F: 7%) © IRIEZERH - WEFERR
B -
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fRE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ —Z—MF+—-A=+—HILFE
18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18. FA{JHEFRIE
HK$’'000
THT
At 1 January 2013 R-E—=%—F—H 511,108
Exchange adjustments Rk 10,758
Additions INE 25,048
Disposals k= (64,854)
Charge for the year REFELH (10,200)
At 31 December 2013 R-TE—=F+—-_A=+—H 471,860
Exchange adjustments HE 54, 38 B (1,103)
Charge for the year REEZH (9,307)
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—NF+=A=+—H 461,450
All of the Group’s prepaid lease payments are prepaid for leasehold AEE 2 EFEMNBEERES BB EEIN
interest in medium-term leasehold land outside Hong Kong. RERTRA) T AR E RS 2 TR A o
2014 2013
—E—lmF =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Analysed for reporting purposes as: REmEITAOT :
Current assets MENEE 10,581 11,291
Non-current assets FERBEE 450,869 460,569

461,450 471,860
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ —Z—MF+—-A=+—HILFE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. A[ftH€&i#&¥E

2014
—E-NmEF

HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET

AHEERERRE

Available-for-sale investments comprise:

ETERE(RAFETIE)
—RBEB LT RAESH 440,472 533,440

Listed investments, at fair value:
— equity securities listed in Hong Kong

Listed bond securities, at fair value: EEHFEHEAFEYE)
— listed on the Stock Exchange and issued ~ — RS AT EWES £
by listed issuers in Hong Kong with fixed BITAET  BEER
coupon interests 8.625% and 13.875% 8. 6251_ 183, 875EZIE
per annum and maturity dates on 5 £8 IEE’\ TZTF-R
February 2020 and 23 November 2017 Gl EI ER=—F—+tF+—A
—+=H i‘JEﬁ 386,345 593,181
— AR ETIHES LM
TANET ABFEBNT

— listed on the SGX and issued by listed
issuers in Hong Kong with fixed coupon

interests ranging from 6.625% to 6. 625@19 875[E 2 [ElFE

9.875% per annum and maturity dates £5HEHAEZZE—N\F

from 16 January 2018 to 29 January —ATRBEEZZ-=F

2023 —A=+hH 604,337 619,896

Unlisted equity investments, at cost: FEEMRAIRE R AFIE)
— private equity investment in Hong Kong —REBZAERAEE
(Note) (M3 157,492 157,492

1,588,646 1,904,009

At the end of the reporting period, all listed available-for-sale
investments are stated at fair value. Fair values of the listed bond
securities are determined by reference to the valuation provided by
the counterparty financial institutions based on their own valuation
techniques because of lack of an active market. The unlisted equity

REHRAERER  BEAHEE L
MEREGRAFEIIR - ARERZ R
W5 EHEFEFATENE2ER
577 T REBRERAERMREMZ G
@%E EE?F"?FJ:WHQ$%&§E’J“IFTE

investments are stated at cost less impairment as their fair values TRERI SE5tE - BURKAMBRIRET
cannot be measured reliably. BE o
Note:  The amount represents the 19.67% (2013: 19.67%) interest in a private B ZemER—EREBE LRI

entity incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which is engaged in the
property development business in Hong Kong. The Group together with
other investment funds as investors currently holds a number of properties
in a building situated in Hong Kong which is intended for redevelopment (the
“Redevelopment Project”). The Group’s participation in the Redevelopment
Project is 9.80% (2013: 9.80%) and the amount committed by the Group
amounts to US$21,000,000 (approximately HK$163,800,000). At 31
December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the investment is measured at
cost less impairment because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
so significant that the Directors are of the opinion that its fair value cannot
be measured reliably.

S ZRAEREZ10.67%(ZFE— =4 ¢
19.67%)f&HE - ZALEABEBREBNS
MEBRRERER - AEEREMBEES
ERIREBERREE —RUNBEZK
EZEWEEN - ZAERTER(E
EErEl]) - AEEL TR EBEENEIZ
9.80% (=T —=%F : 9.80%) ' &S
%8 521,000,000 2 7T (47 163,800,000
BL) c RZE—WFE+=—A=+—8
F=—T—=F+=-A=+—8 #RA
FMEZ“?&H:%V?EEK CERFESER
RAA ST EARATE - HEHIRER
ﬁJZNDI@%WE;rﬁ o
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ = Z— G+ A=+—HILFE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

(continued)

Included in available-for-sale investments are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
group entities to which they relate:

USs$ ESH
HK$ BT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. AJHHERE »)

AHHEREBRETIIAEEEEHERE
ZWREEBASNE BT HEZ R

2014 2013
—F-MmF —T=%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR T
1,148,174 1,370,569
440,472 533,440

20. NON-CURRENT DEPOSITS

The entire amount represents deposits paid for acquisition of
properties, plant and equipment.

21. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

This represents inventories licenced the Licencee (see note 17) for
the period from 1 September 2011 to 31 August 2015. Under the
licencing agreement, the licencee may use, consume and dispose
of the licenced inventories which include consumables and stocks
in trade. However, the licencee is required to replace and return the
quantities of licenced inventories used, consumed or disposed of
during the licenced period to the Licensor at the end of the licence
period.

The licenced inventories have been classified as non-current current
assets as it is probable to continue to licence the manufacturing
facilities after the expiry of the licencing agreement on 31 August
2015.

The licenced inventories used, consumed or disposed during the
licence period are secured by cash and bills receivables of a related
party of the licencee, with a total receivable value of not less than the
value of the licenced inventories used, consumed or disposed of as at
the end of the reporting period.
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21. HFRBEE

IR —E——FhNhA—RBE_F—H
FNAZT—AREEREA(RWE
17)ERNEFE - REREEBHE -
EREATER  RARDEREER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ = Z— G+ A=+—HILFE

22. DEFERRED TAXATION 22.

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior reporting

IEFERIH

TRAARERERIARREHEAE
RZEBRLEHBAAE(EE)ARE

periods: Rz EE)
Fair value
change of
investment Revaluation
properties of properties Others
REYHEZ
AT ESE MIFEEM Hith
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FAT FAT FAET
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=%—HF—H (3,366) (94,778) 4,111 (94,033)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss ~ F#E#5 (315 ) (@l 6,211) 3,067 (28) (3,182)
At 31 December 2013 RIZE—=F
+=—A=+—H (9,577) 91,721) 4,083 (97,215)
Credit to profit or loss PEEE - 3,057 63 3,120
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—F
+=-A=+—8~ (9,577) (88,664) 4,146 (94,095)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

VAT 8051 2 A 75 3R o i AR B R SE A IR
REEROAT -

2014 2013
—E—NEF T——4F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Deferred tax assets EEFIBEE 3,913 4,083
Deferred tax liabilities EEFEAR (98,008) (101,298)
(94,095) (97,215)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately HK$245,275,000 (2013: HK$193,675,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. All tax
losses will be gradually expired within five years to year 2020 (2013:
year 2019).

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, a withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not
been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of temporary difference attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC
subsidiaries since 1 January 2008 as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

RpEHEERER - AEEA#
BHAREFNZRBDAREEEA
492452750008 L (ZF — = F
193,675,000/ 7T ) ° F A K 2K i@ F 7k
AT - AR AR (R R B &
E e 2EMBEEEENRAFRNELSE
HEE T _TF(ZT—=F: =%
— &) e

TEMEMSRERE B -TT/N\F
—A—BiE  PERZRTERHEA
Bt AT AR EUR F i Bk 2 BB B TE
B o ARBRFENMBARE —F
TNF—-A—HRZ ReHa 2 R E
B ARBEW KRR EFANGE M
WRFLEE - REEAS B R B
OG5 2 B - BB RIRRS =R
BETN N RASRAEE -
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A I ERERMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ —Z—MF+—-A=+—HILFE
23. GOODWILL 23. BE
HK$’'000
THT
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 and R-—_ZE—=%—H—H-
31 December 2014 —E-=F+-A=t+—HK
—E-EFE+=—f=+—AH 238
‘€=
24. INVENTORIES 24. ZE
2014 2013
—E-F —T=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET BT
Raw materials =R 766,449 727,572
Work in progress TR 270,079 282,737
Finished goods BURK o 427,105 279,125
1,463,633 1,289,434

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. S5 HMEWERR

==
AND PREPAYMENTS AND BILLS ANREREVRERE
RECEIVABLES
2014
—ZT—MF =4
HK$000 HK$'000
FH&T T
Trade receivables Z Z AR 3,570,113 3,491,467
Advance to suppliers TERHEER 2 5B 278,513 237,306
Interest income receivables R B UL A 27,694 30,673
Prepaid expenses and deposits SEANEE e s 286,940 190,318
Value-added tax (“VAT”) recoverable AGREIEER (IS ET ) 307,305 285,710
LAT on pre-sale residential units TEEWHE 2 THIZER 2,005 1,883
Other receivables H A AR R 81,860 108,503
4,554,430 4,295,860
Bills receivables FEWEE 972,739 728,826
5,527,169 5,024,686
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AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ —Z—MF+—-A=+—HILFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND PREPAYMENTS AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES

continued)

The Group allows credit periods of up to 120 days (2013: 120 days),
depending on the products sold to its trade customers. The following
is an aged analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date at
the end of the reporting period, which approximated the respective
revenue recognition date:

25.

AEBHKRTESEFZEESRRES
1208 (ZZF—=% : 1208) » BT

EEMME - RIMEHRRERER - &
ZRERBERZREERNEZAR(OR
R YR AR T

2014

—g-mF =
HK$°000 HK$’'000
Tt T
0 -90 days 0£90H 2,422,494 2,411,556
91 - 180 days 91£2180H 1,088,772 1,021,241
Over 180 days 180H A £ 58,847 58,670
3,570,113 3,491,467

Bills receivables of the Group are aged within 90 days (2013: 90 days)
at the end of the reporting period.

Before accepting any new customers, the Group has an internal credit
grading system to assess the potential customers’ credit quality and
the Directors have delegated the management to be responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals for any customers.
Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed every year.
About 77% (2013: 84%) of the trade receivables that are neither past
due nor impaired have the best credit scoring attributable under the
credit grading system used by the Group.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$569,169,000 (2013:
HK$569,419,000) which are past due at the reporting date for which
the Group has not provided for impairment loss as the Group considers
that these debtors are financially stable and the management has
taken action to recover the outstanding balances. The Directors are
confident that these amounts are still recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances. The average age of these
receivables is 149 days (2013: 141 days).

EB R EE 2 BRI BRIk S R
REMIOH(ZZE—=F : 0H)ZA °

TEERMEAFERA - REEREMEA
FEFESTHBERPZEREER
EREerAnEEBEEAANERPE
FEERBEREEMZ BEZRER
D EFEER - N7TT%(ZF—=F:

84% ) B AR E 2 B 5 U R &
AEEMEAZ ERAFRFEZ&SE
RFEn

REBEE S E KRR RIS R KR
X BRI {E A569,169,000 T (==
— =% : 569,419,000/ 7T) * RIREH
RS ABAEE  NEBIWERZ
“*Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ El%$%
ERA  ZEEHAVEER  BF
B BB E R EREBRNITE - %%
B - REFEDNATFHE - AEEH
%%i%%iﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁoﬁi
FEU IR SR 2 I BRI AB149H (=
£ 141H)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ —Z—MF+—-A=+—HILFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

AND PREPAYMENTS AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES

continued)

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired are as
follows:

25.

T

2014
—E—-IF =

HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET

Overdue: #HA -
0 - 30 days 0&30H 105,300 111,510
31 - 60 days 31£260H 253,992 293,126
61 - 90 days 61290H 151,030 106,113
Over 91 days HiEo1H 58,847 58,670
569,169 569,419

The Group has provided fully for all receivables that are overdue over
240 days because historical experience is such that these receivables
are generally not recoverable. Allowance on trade receivables
aged between 120 and 240 days are made based on estimated
irrecoverable amounts by reference to past default experience and
objective evidence of impairment determined by the difference
between the carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate.

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the Group
monitors any change in the credit quality of the trade receivables since
the credit was granted and up to the end of the reporting period. The
directors considered that the Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk of trade and other receivables, with exposure spread
over a number of counterparties and customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B2 —Z—MF+_-_A=+—HItFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25 B5 & Hft FE W BR X
AND PREPAYMENTS AND BILLS &
RECEIVABLES (coniinued)

AT BRI ZE8

The following is a movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:

2014 2013
—E—mEF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Balance at beginning of the year FE A 353,330 176,919
Impairment losses recognised on trade E ZEBERTER 2

receivables BIEEE 2,455 176,411

Balance at end of the year FRER 355,785 353,330

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired REEEFEOIEEREREY E S EKER
trade receivables with an aggregate balance of HK$355,785,000 R MR B355,785,0008 L (ZF
(2013: HK$353,330,000) which have either been placed under — =% : 353,330,000/ 7T) * ZHHIA
liquidation or in severe financial difficulties. The Group does not hold BEBNEAVBHRBIE T 2HIE - K
any collateral over these balances. SERZSERULEREEERR o

Included in trade and other receivables and bills receivables are B RHMEWKRS REREERET

the following amounts denominated in a currency other than the FIASREEEIRE 2 BB UINEE
functional currency of the group entities to which they relate:

SHEZ 30 -

2014 2013
—E—mE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

USs$ EM 343,171 458,897

HK$ BT 810,086 715,576
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ = Z— G+ A=+—HILFE
26. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

Movements of properties held for development are as follows:

26. FHEWE
HRRMEZEHNT

HK$'000
TAT

At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=F—H—H 575,374
Exchange adjustments Rk 55,466
Additions INE 2,360,741
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=%F+-_A=+—H 2,991,581
Exchange adjustments FE i, % (6,839)
Additions NE 772,369
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—NF+=A=+—H 3,757,111

Properties held for development are situated in the PRC with medium-
term leases and are stated at cost at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

As of 31 December 2014, all the properties are still under
development.

Properties held for development which are expected to be recovered
after next twelve months from the end of the reporting period are
classified as current assets as it is expected to be realised in the
Group’s normal operating cycle. Included in the amount are properties
held for development of approximately HK$1,963,009,000 (2013:
HK$2,991,581,000) that are expected to be realised after one year
from the end of the reporting period.

27. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) FELLOW

SUBSIDIARIES

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries under
current assets
— trade nature

NGO
—BFMHH

MBEEIR T U R R KB

27.

FERMEMA AR EBHEOZEENHE
T WHRZE—OFR_FT—=F
+ZA=+—BUKATIER -

RZZE—NF+_A=+—H  F18%
EDFERE -

BRI RS BB A RE 12 A R
BrFERMEIEARDEE R
HAAZEMERHAIRAELEEESE
BEMER c R HEBESEERME
471,963,009,000 B L (=T — = F :
2,991,581,000%7T) + BT & HAfHE
ERBF—FREE -

BR(N)ERNEARE
/e

2014 2013

—ik —T=F

HK$’000
FHET

HK$'000
FTAT

99,257 274,782
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ = Z— G+ A=+—HILFE

27. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) FELLOW
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The Group allows credit period normally up to 120 days for sales to
its fellow subsidiaries. The amounts due are non-interest bearing,
unsecured and aged within 90 days at the end of the reporting period.

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries under
current liabilities
— trade nature, neither past due
nor impaired

RNAFIA

27. B () BRKE2F

FRIE ()

AEBBRIBEELRTERRMNBARZE
BEH—MEREA1208 - ZEEUFA
AR S RERR - HIRERY AWREEE
HEREHRMNOEZA -

2014
—E-mE

HK$’000
FET

HK$’000
TET

mE B EIR TR R RHE

—E514E  EmaiismE

40,116 40,214

The amounts due to fellow subsidiaries have repayment terms of less
than 30 days. The amounts due are non-interest bearing, unsecured
and aged within 90 days at the end of the reporting period.

28. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group. At 31
December 2014, the Group’s bank balances carry interest at the
prevailing market interest rates which range from 0.01% to 1.28%
(2013: 0.01% to 1.35%) per annum.

At 31 December 2014, the Group had bank balances and cash that
were not freely convertible or were subject to exchange controls
in the PRC amounting to approximately HK$1,624.8 million (2013:
HK$1,065.2 million).

Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
group entities to which they relate:

us$
HKS

eV
BT

JE A [ 4 P /B8 1% R SRIE 2 B R HI 1030
B ZERNRBL/REREERT - X
BRI RIS IR RIZM0R Z A -

RITEHREAE

RITEHBREKRSCBEAEEREZHE
Gt RZT—WFF+A=+—H =K
EERITEBIZRBITMBFRNENT
0.01EZE1.28E(=F—=F : 0.01EZE
1.35[8 )58 °

28.

R-TE—mWE+-_A=+—H &
EEATAERARLBRRAZREINE
ERIFMBRRZRITEHRRIR SO A
1,624,800,000 8 7T ( = & — = F -
1,065,200,00078 7T ) °

RITRB RSB/ TIAREEEA
B2 BE B AINE R EHE 2 5REE -

2014
—E—F =
HK$°000 HK$'000
FH&T FHT
361,508 432,354
611,413 1,228,893
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B2 —Z—MF+_-_A=+—HItFE

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
BILLS PAYABLES

20.

4 B R R
HEiE

o IR

\
A

2014 2013
—E—NF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FAET

Trade payables B S EIRR 817,642 891,922

Accrued expenses EiRRE A 201,607 173,892
Payables for acquisition of properties, BEWE  MERREZ

plant and equipment FETERR 59,954 49,300

Receipts in advance LGS 289,030 220,272

Other tax payables HAbERTIE 114,693 109,951

VAT payables RETEMNRK 132,406 103,881

Other payables (Note) E AT RN (MIRE) 75,240 75,710

1,690,572 1,624,928

Bills payables PR E 329,021 239,131

2,019,593 1,864,059

Note:  Included in other payables as at 31 December 2014 is the consideration
payable of HK$8,559,000 to an independent third party for additional
interests in a non-wholly owned subsidiary. The amount is repayable in
2015.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

B

RZZT—mE+=-A=+—8 " BitA
HitpERBRRARR —RIEZEMBR
RIMEEIMERS FEN — 2B E=HRE
8,559,000/ 7T - ®FANR_T—AHF
1838 -

B S RMNEFREER RN HREHRHE
BRERZREANAT -

2014 2013

= —F-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT TAT
0 - 90 days 0ZE90H 735,294 766,410
91 - 180 days 91%180H 47,704 78,010
Over 180 days 180 LA | 34,644 47,502
817,642 891,922
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e B TSR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ —Z—MF+—-A=+—HILFE
29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 29. B 5 ﬂﬂﬁg'ﬁ',ﬂﬁ

BILLS PAYABLES (continueq)

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90 days (2013: 90

O

BEEMNTHEEHROA(Z

days). The Group has financial risk management policies in place to —Z%:90R) - AEEBHEENH i‘%

ensure that all payables are settled within the credit time frame. B EEBRERATBEENRENEE
HARRAEE -

Bills payables of the Group are aged within 90 days (2013: 90 days) REEEMNER 2 RRY ARS HMGE

at the end of the reporting period. REMIOH(ZZE—=F : 0H)ZA °

Included in trade and other payables and bills payables are the B L EMEMBERLENZEESET

following amounts denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the group entities to which they relate:

SINGEEE BRI NEREUINE
FHEZ3EE

2014 2013
—ZE g —T—=4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET T
Uss E 153,704 63,645
HK$ BT 306,257 120,786
JPY HIE 24,193 32,839
30. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30. fTEEmTI A

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group entered into
foreign currency forward contracts to hedge against part of the

BE_ZT-—NF+_-_A=+—HIt#F
E - $%§T19I\IFE%§§HA%@M¥T}¢$

Group’s exposure in foreign currency fluctuations. At the respective SENINERE TR AR - RER
maturity dates, the contracts will be settled net in cash with the issuers. E’Ji‘Jﬁﬂ B A48T /\Hzﬁ*%ﬁfﬁé—i
The major items of the outstanding contracts at 31 December 2014 HEE - RZET—MNE+-_A=+—H"
were as follows: MAFEEHMESERAT

Notional amount Maturity

A

AEEE

Forward contract rates

EHEHNER

Buy JPY75,000,000 6 February 2015

HK$1 to JPY75.85

H A75,000,000H —E—RF-A/NH 187K 75.85H
Buy JPY43,000,000 9 February 2015 HK$1 to JPY75.85
H A43,000,000H —HFE-—ANA 17870475.850
Buy JPY65,500,000 10 February 2015 HK$1 to JPY75.85
H A65,500,000H —hF=-A+H 18T H75.85H
Buy JPY481,855,000 10 July 2015 HK$1 to JPY74.79
‘H A481,855,000H [E] —E—hFtAT+H 18T H74.79H[E

The above foreign exchange forward contracts are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period by reference to the forward
foreign exchange rates and the contracted forward rates.

RSN A KOR R BRI R
SEEMINEREE RATOEMETRA
FlEiE -
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AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ = Z— G+ A=+—HILFE

P
31. BANK BORROWINGS 31. RITEE
2014 2013
—E—QmF T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAxT
Unsecured and guaranteed: EEAREER
Bank loans IRITER 5,034,243 5,384,184
Carrying amount repayable: AR T EAREE 2 BREE
Within one year or on demand —FRIRE K 2,802,287 1,593,338
More than one year, but not more than —F LA BT EBEMRE
two years 711,492 2,593,338
More than two years but not more than LA EB T BB =F
three years 1,467,964 1,135,008
More than three years but not more than ZFUEETEBBART
five years 20,000 20,000
More than five years HELA 32,500 42,500
2,231,956 3,790,846
Total At 5,034,243 5,384,184

Variable-rate bank borrowings at 31 December 2014 carry interest
ranging from HIBOR + 1.1% to HIBOR + 2.25% (2013: HIBOR + 1.1%
to PBOC) per annum.

The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal to
contracted interest rates) on the Group’s bank borrowings is 1.34%
10 5.6% (2013: 1.1% to 6%) per annum.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A I ERERMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ —Z—MF+—-A=+—HILFE
P
31. BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 31. ﬁE'fo%E(%)
Included in bank borrowings are the following amounts denominated RITEEBRETINEEETREE )
in currencies other than the functional currency of the group entities REEHAINE A 25 -

to which they relate:

2014 2013
—Z=—gF =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
uss$ E 590,575 552,142
HK$ BT 3,936,613 4,832,042
32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. A&

Authorised Issued and fully paid
EE ERTRAZ
Number of Number of

shares Amount shares Amount

RHBE =8 R #E =
’000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$’000

TR TR T TATT

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each: &R E{E0.10 7T

2w
At 1 January 2013, R-E—=%F—A#
31 December 2013 and —H - —Z—=F
31 December 2014 +-A=+—8K
—E-F+=A
=+ —H 20,000,000 2,000,000 3,000,000 300,000
There is no charge in the Company’s authorised and issued share RWEFE - ARAFVEE KRB #E#TRD
capital in both years. I -

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 —Z—FFiHk 137
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iR a BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE

33.

34.

SPECIAL RESERVE

Special reserve of the Group represents (i) the difference between the
net asset value of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of
the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the
group reorganisation in 2006; and (i) the reduction in the registered
capital of a wholly-owned subsidiary established in the PRC.

SHARE OPTIONS

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”) was
approved by the shareholders of the Company and the shareholders
of KCHL on 18 May 2007 and 25 June 2007 respectively. The
Scheme has taken effect after obtaining the approval from the Listing
Committee of the Stock Exchange on 6 July 2007.

The Scheme would be valid for a period of ten years. The Board may,
at its discretion, grant options to subscribe for shares in the Company
to eligible participants who contribute to the long-term growth and
profitability of the Company and include (i) any employee or proposed
employee (whether full-time or part-time and including any executive
director), consultants or advisers of or to the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which the Group holds an
equity interest; (i) any non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors), any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;
(iii) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity; (iv) any customer of the Group or any Invested
Entity; (v) any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to the Group or any Invested Entity; and (vi)
any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity
or any holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity.

The subscription price of the Company’s share in respect of any
option granted under the Scheme must be at least the highest of
(i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the
option, which must be a business day; (i) the average closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the option; and (i) the nominal value of the shares
of the Company.
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33.

34.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR a BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE

34.

SHARE OPT'ONS (continued)

The option may be accepted by a participant within 28 days from
the date of the offer for the grant of the option upon the payment of
a consideration of HK$1. An option may be exercised at any time
during a period to be determined and notified by the Directors to each
grantee, and in the absence of such determination, from the date
upon which the offer for the grant of the option is accepted but shall
end in any event not later than ten years from the date of grant of
the option subject to the provisions for early termination thereof. The
Directors may, at their absolute discretion, fix any minimum period
for which an option must be held, any performance targets that must
be achieved and any other conditions that must be fulfilled before the
options can be exercised upon the grant of an option to a participant.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme
(excluding, for this purpose, options lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Company) must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number
of shares of the Company in issue as at the date of approval of the
Scheme.

The maximum number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Company must not exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time.

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted (including both exercised and
outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the share capital of the Company then in issue
unless approved by the shareholders of the Company and KCHL in
general meetings.

34.

BRBERE

SEATARERERBELBREZ
Hi#Ft28RA - BB NREVETE
MEICEIRE - BEBREIRNESE
ERGBAMBARAZ AR AR T
WEBEEMBE  AhEEBERER
HEsERA ARG - WREAER
TNERELBRER L B R 14
ZARIE - WARZ B ZRFRILE
XHR - EEF 2ERBRZEAL
FEATEMR M Z BB MARA
ZEEHRE  FRATERZRBABR
R AT ELMZR TPl 2 61

RIEZ AT B 2 P A B 5L B A E (3L
I E N EIER R 8 R AR R
H A B S RB R S 8 2 (RRE RR2 B
FERBIRHE ) BITEE A TRITZARA
I in a8 A NS BBN I EZAT EIE
HEHETRMBEZ10% °

R B R AR REFE M EEBR
R EIPTAR LM M ARITERAFITRE
ZBEBBEETER A TRITZAR
ARMNEE & TEBBARBTE
ZEEITIR30% °

PMEfA+ Z{E A i R & 2 0 A LR H
ZEBEBRE(BEETRRRITEZ
BEBRE) BTEMESETRE TH
TTZARRBIEDARE - NMEBBANRR]
BREBITREAZ1%  BRIF-RAF
FIEE T 2 IR R A& # /& BIE

Rl
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B2 —Z—MF+_-_A=+—HItFE

34. SHARE OPT'ONS (continued)

Balance at
1 January Lapse of
2013 and share
31 December options during
Date of grant 2013 the year

R-ZE—=

—A—-HBK

—s_=
+=A=+-—-H ErBRE
2R REREXR

Granted to the Directors

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34, BEEBERE.

Balance at
31 December
2014

Exercise

price

per share  Exercisable period

FRITEE

RTEE
21 March 2011 54,000,000 - 54,000,000 HK$6.54 21 March 2011 to 17
—E—%=HA=+—H 6.54767T  May 2017 (Note)
—F—%=A
—t—Rz
=
AR+ (K
Granted to employees
RTES
21 March 2011 46,000,000 (19,000,000) 27,000,000 HK$6.54 21 March 2011 to 17
—E—%=HA=+—H 6.54767T  May 2017 (Note)
—F—%=A
—+—R=z
kSl a2
AR+ (K
100,000,000 (19,000,000) 81,000,000
Exercisable at
RAT BERR] F47(F
31 December 2012 50,000,000
—T—=fF
+-A=+—H
31 December 2013 75,000,000
—E—=F
+-A=+—H
31 December 2014 81,000,000
—E-F
+-A=+—H
Note:  25% of the total share options were vested immediately on the date of ek . EEREARIELRTE 2 25% N % H B HARNRF

grant. The remaining 75% were split evenly into three lots and were vested
on 21 March 2012, 2013 and 2014. The closing price of the Company’s
shares immediately before the date of grant was HK$6.3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR a BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE—%

34. SHARE OPT'ONS (continued)

—ME+ZA=t—RALFE

34.

As at 31 December 2014, the total number of shares available for
issue under the Scheme was 81,000,000 (2013: 100,000,000) shares
representing approximately 2.70% (2013: 3.33%) of the issued share

capital.

At the date of grant, the share options were granted and the estimated
fair values were approximately HK$114,945,000. The Group
recognised the total expense of approximately HK$2,130,000 (2013:
HK$12,916,000) for the year ended 31 December 2014 in relation
to share options granted by the Company. Two of the employees
resigned during the year ended 31 December 2014, therefore,
their share options of 19,000,000 with fair value of approximately

HK$21,840,000 were lapsed.

35. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure contracted for but
not provided in the consolidated

financial statements for:

— acquisition of properties, plant

35.

EETRMERRER A M IS HE
TEH BB BARX

—BEYX  BELRE

BRERE .

R-ZZE—NFEF+=-_A=+—8 " &
SERERE T FEITHRMDE

281,000,000 (=& — = &F :
100,000,0000% ) *E;?EGE% TREARH
2.70%(=F—=4 : 3.33%) ©

PELEE - ERBREERL - M
A FEAX114,945,0008 7T » HE
E-NE+_A=+—BI5E -
BRRRRMRENELERE  &~&E
B FERR R S 45 492,130,000/8 7L (=&
— =4 : 12,916,000/ 7T) ° Eti_g
—mWE+-—A=+—HILEE  WARE
BEHE - At - AFEH21,840,00078
JC3£19,000,000(7 18 S B AR B K ©

BT HAithAiE

2014
—m

2013
—F-=%
HK$'000
AT

HK$’000
FET

and equipment 49,932 34,078
— capital injection in an unlisted equity —FEIELETIRAKE
investment 6,308 6,308
56,240 40,386
Other expenditure contracted for but ERIAERR R G B SRR
not provided in the consolidated EH B 2 B
financial statements for:
— acquisition and other expenditure —ERFERMEIMER
relating to properties held for HibFZ
development 257,562 288,957
313,802 329,343
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fRE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2014 B2 —Z—MF+_-_A=+—HItFE
36. OPERATING LEASES 36. KZEHY
2014 2013
—E—F —T—=fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T THT
The Group as lessee: AEEEREEA :
Minimum lease payments charged to FRNEREEREERNRZ
the consolidated statement of profit or loss — S{XFH £ 5
during the year 2,296 3,040
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for REHANRABRNEBTE THAS
certain of its office properties and all lease payments are fixed and EEN RS c FAAERYONZRZ 25
predetermined. RBETEREFERE -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s future lease payments RBEHBERE R - REBREAA
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: s 2 e AN BB N2 BOMTR

AR THIEE A

2014 2013

—EF-mE —E—=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FBT

Within one year —FR 660 673
After one year but not later than five years —FRERAEERN 2,877 2,078
After five years HEF& 17,308 17,733
20,845 20,484
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iR ISR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ —Z—MF+—-A=+—HILFE
36. OPERATING LEASES (continued) 36. HEHN =
2014 2013
—E—QmF T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTHET FAT
The Group as lessor/licensor: AEBERBHBA EBREA:
Rental income credited to the FRFFALGREEEE
consolidated statement of ik ON
profit and loss during the year 79,953 68,415
Licence fee income credited to FANFtAGREBRRZ
the consolidated statement of BREGCABRA
profit or loss during the year 120,000 120,000
199,953 188,415
The Group’s investment properties are rented to outside parties for AREBZREYENILZBREET 2 FEE
periods up to seven years at fixed predetermined amounts. HeMFINAAL  BHREALF -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted RBEREERER - BBEHEHEREY
with tenants and Licencee for the following future minimum lease X (RWE1e) MREFEREE(MFF17)
payments commitments under non-cancellable operating leases in Z RS EEY  AREBERIUT
respect of leasing of investment properties (see note 16) and licenced FARSEAEFUEAR BB P RERE

assets (see note 17) which fall due as follow:

ARTH) - AT BRI RER -

2014 2013

—E—-ImF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T BT
Within one year —FER 47,119 172,495
After one year but not later than five years —FRERAFRN 165,131 249,638
After five years TR 208,403 282,696
420,653 704,829
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE
36. OPERATING LEASES (continueq)

The Group licences its licenced assets to a committed Licencee
under the licence agreement as follows:

° Within the first twelve months of the licence, either the Group
or the Licencee may terminate the licence agreement at its
sole discretion, by serving on the other party not less than
one month prior notice in writing and paying the other party
HK$1,000,000 or such other amount as may be mutually
agreed in writing between both parties.

° After the first twelve months of the licence, the Group may
terminate the licence agreement at its sole discretion, by
serving on the Licencee not less than one month prior notice
in writing.

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@) The Group provided guarantees amounting to approximately
HK$593,458,000 (2013: HK$74,064,000) as at 31 December
2014 in respect of bank mortgage loans granted to
purchasers of the Group’s properties. In the opinion of the
Directors, the fair values of these financial guarantee contracts
of the Group are insignificant at initial recognition and the
Directors consider that the possibility of default of the parties
involved is remote, accordingly, no value has been recognised
at the inception of the guarantee contracts and at the end of
the reporting period as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

Guarantees are given to banks with respect to loans procured
by the purchasers of the Group’s properties. Such guarantees
will be released by banks upon delivery of the properties
to the purchasers and completion of the registration of the
relevant mortgaged properties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR a BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE

37.

38.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continueq)

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2011, the ultimate
holding company, certain subsidiaries of the Company and the
Company (the “Respondents”) were named as a defendant in
the Supreme Court of Bermuda in respect of an allegation of
the affairs of KBCF had been and or were being conducted
in a manner which was oppressive or unfairly prejudicial to
the non-controlling shareholders of KBCF. The petitioner was
seeking an order to the Respondents to repurchase all of the
KBCF’s shares held by petitioner at the price to be fixed by a
valuer or Supreme Court of Bermuda. The trial of the petition
has been fixed on 25 May 2015. After taken the advice from
the Company’s lawyer, the Directors are of the opinion that
there is no evidential basis for the claim and it is speculative in
nature. Accordingly, no provision for liability has been made in
connection with this claim by the Group.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme
which was registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme
Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme which was established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Ordinance in December 2000 (the “MPF Scheme”). The assets
of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group and
are invested in funds under the control of independent trustees.
Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the
establishment of the MPF Scheme are members of both the ORSO
Scheme and the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees joining
the Group on or after December 2000 are required to join the MPF
Scheme. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000 effective from June 2014 (2013: HK$25,000
effective from June 2012).

Employees of subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the state-
sponsored pension schemes operated by the PRC government.
The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of
their payroll to the pension schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the pension schemes is to
make the required contributions.

37.

38.

Eﬁ%ﬁ1§iui

b BEE——F+-A=t—H
LHEFE - SEBIERAR LA AT
ETHERRRARB(HE])
ERRERRERKRIEEKBCF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ = Z— G+ A=+—HILFE

38. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 38. E/EFEE )

(continued)
Payments to the ORSO Scheme, the MPF Scheme and the state- M ZERRETE - BESFEILRERE
sponsored pension schemes of approximately HK$22,471,000 BRIRET B 2 5740 /22,471,000
(2013: HK$21,001,000) had been charged to profit or loss. As B (ZE—=4% : 21,001,000 T)
at 31 December 2014, contributions of HK$2,267,000 (2013: EEERPHR e RZ_E—NFE+ =
HK$2,147,000) due in respect of the reporting period had not been A=+—8 RREHHEEIEZHR
paid over to the plans. The amounts were paid subsequent to the end 2,267,000/ 0( ZFE—=4 : 2,147,000
of the reporting period. BT WA F2ERTE o ZFRER
WS EEARED LT -
39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. BBEALRS
The Group entered into the following significant transactions with AEBEBBEATEFAETZEAR
related parties during the year: S0 ¢
2014 2013
—E—IF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAxT
() Sales of goods and driling services () MRARMBABIHEEERR
provided to fellow subsidiaries R LR 1,638,196 1,508,609
(i) Purchase of goods from fellow iy MRRMBARREER
subsidiaries 883,404 925,677
(i) Sales of laminates and copper to (iii) M ELIERAT]
a shareholder with significant influence BEERZENHRRIEE
over the ultimate holding company & SR E AR K i 715,918 819,290
(iv) Purchase of drill bits and machineries (iv) TRI¥TERERIZRR A A
from a shareholder with significant influence BAEAFENNIRE
over the ultimate holding company FREBSEIR ks 303,931 228,411

146 KINGBOARD LAMINATES HOLDINGS LIMITED (/EHE EiRIEAR G R A A
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iR a BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B2 —Z—MF+_-_A=+—HItFE

39.

40.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of the Directors and other members of key
management during the year is as follows:

39.

BAEALIRST @

FEEEASHS
Ex . EEREMIEEEAL S HE
o

2014 2013

—F-MF —T=fF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FBT

Short-term benefits kG HAREF 79,376 78,495
Post-employment benefits EREET 719 713
Share-based payments LA 2 S 3R 2,130 6,976
82,225 86,184

The remuneration of the Directors and key executives is determined
with reference to the performance of individuals and market trends.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2014
and 2013 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operation

R,

Name of subsidiary

WEAREE

BRREE

Excel First Investments Limited

SRRABRAA

British Virgin Islands*
HREAES

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
BRTRAR
B/ ERER

ED

40.

—B-RE

EXERIBTRABZHESZEES
BTRENTHBLRET -

ANAEEHEAAZ

=15

R-ZEZ—WFER=-_T—=F+=A
=+ B ARREEMBARZFHE
mE

Proportion of
the ownership
interest held by
the Group
AEBfRE
BRREREDLA
2014 2013
—T=F%

% %

Principal activities

IREHR

100 100 Investment holding

RERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B2 —Z—MF+_-_A=+—HItFE

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

KBCF

Hong Kong Copper Foil Limited

Kingboard (Fogang) Insulated
Material Company Limited

RE (R BB HBARAE

Kingboard (Fogang) Laminates
Co. Limited
BE(HE)EERERAA

Kingboard (Fogang) Paper
Laminates Co. Ltd.

BB () RERRARAA

Kingboard Electronic Raw
Material (Jiang Yin) Co., Ltd.
BEEFHHOIR)ERAR

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital

ERTRARE

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operation
ML
BEREE R

Ba/GREx

Bermuda’ US$72,250,000
BRE 72,250,0003 7T
British Virgin Islands* US$47,057,290
HEELRS 47,057,290% 7T
PRC US$7,615,000
A 7,615,000 7T
PRC US$29,466,000
A 29,466,000 T
PRC US$17,936,546
) 17,936,546 7T
PRC US$30,000,000
R 30,000,000 7T
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40. AREEEMB LR Z

=10

Proportion of
the ownership
interest held by
the Group
AEBfRE
BRREREDLA
2014 2013
—¥-RE —T-=F

% %

64.57 64.57
64.57 64.57
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

Principal activities

IREHR

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding and
licencing of properties

REEREM*EZ
ERRE

Manufacture and distribution
of bleached kraft paper
FER A EEARER

Manufacture and distribution
of laminates

BB LD HENAR

Manufacture and distribution
of laminates

BB LD HENAR

Manufacture and distribution
of laminates

BB LD HENAR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B2 —Z—MF+_-_A=+—HItFE

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. AARFXEMBATZ
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY E3-10Y

(continued)

Place of Issued and Proportion of
incorporation/ fully paid the ownership
registration share capital/ interest held by
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital the Group Principal activities

WEARER AR, ERTRAE A&EfEE

BRREEHY BA/ERER RGP IRER
2014 2013
—g-RmF
%

Jiangmen Kingboard Laminates PRC! HK$242,800,000 100 100 Manufacture and distribution
Co., Ltd. HED! 242,800,000/ 75 of laminates
IR EEERARAR SE RN HERIER
Kingboard (Jiangsu) Chemical PRC! US$32,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and distribution
Co., Ltd. " 32,000,000% T of chemicals
BE(IH )L IBR AR RERAHEETIER
Kingboard Laminates (Kunshan) PRC US$32,010,000 100 100 Manufacture and distribution
Co., Ltd. HED! 32,010,000% 7T of laminates
BEEER(EIL)BERAT SER A HERIER
Kingboard (Lian Zhou) Fibre PRC US$13,700,000 100 100 Manufacture and distribution
Glass Co. Limited A 13,700,000 7T of glass fabric
BEGEMN)EBEEERLE B R HREE D
Kingboard (Panyu Nansha) PRC RMB250,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and distribution
Petrochemical Company Limited 1! AR E250,000,0007T of chemicals
BEEBED)ALERDE RERAHEETIER
# These are investment holding companies which have no specific principal # WERB TR ERR AR - WESEE
place of operations. EEEME -
1 These companies were established in the PRC in the form of Wholly k EARIINEBERE 2N ERE
Foreign-owned Enterprises. DAV
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the ERMINAESRAETEFEARSEHE
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets of BREEZARRNBAR - EFRAE
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion PIHEMMB AR ZFIEEEN TR -

of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of ZHBR BN F LS ESITEAER
the year. L
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B2 —Z—MF+_-_A=+—HItFE

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

(@) General information of subsidiaries
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A majority of
these subsidiaries operate in the PRC. The principal activities
of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. %2

(@)

AIFENEARZ

(1)

MEBARZ—RER
PR HIR A SRR - AARIER
HAEET FAEANEMHER
7l o A EMBRRRI ORI P E
BB ZEWBARIZ EBES
BT

Principal place Number of

Principal activities of business FEEK B subsidiaries

A REE
2014 2013

—Z-mF
Manufacture and BUENHE PRC F 21 20
sale of laminates EimEmiR Thailand =E 1 1
Macau SBPY 2 2
24 23
Properties E Hong Kong &8 2 2
PRC F 8 8
United Kingdom 2[5 1 1
11 11
Others EAh Hong Kong BB 36 36
PRC Fh 7 7
43 43
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AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B2 —Z—MF+_-_A=+—HItFE

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. AARFXEMBATZ
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY E3-10Y

(continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that (b) EEERFEREZRZHE
have material non-controlling interests 2EMBATIFE
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned TRES|HEREXIEE RS
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling AEREFEREMBARFE
interests:

Place of Proportion of ownership

incorporation interests and voting

and principal FRRLBER rights held by Profit allocated to Accumulated non-
Name of subsidiary ~ HBAREH place of business FEZ##2  non-controlling interests non-controlling interests ~ controlling interests

FEREREA 2R AREFER

BREGRRZELA ] EG T I
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-mEF —E-=f ZB-mf -T-=F “E-MF %=
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
Tén  TAr  TEn  TEn

KBCF KBCF Bermuda® BRE 35.43% 35.43% 6,613 1,620 1,012,103 1,008,030
Individually immaterial B FEER

subsidlaries with EREY

non-controling FEANBLA

interests 81,582 98,213

1,093,685 1,106,243

# This is an investment holding company which has no specific # WARDBEEZEK AR I
principal place of operation. BRTEZEEME -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B2 —Z—MF+_-_A=+—HItFE

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that

40.

ARREENBLRAZ

=10

(b) EEERFEREZRZHE

have material non-controlling interests (continued) 2EMBLRFR®
KBCF KBCF
2014
—E—NF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
Current assets MENEE 1,482,036 1,292,624
Non-current assets FERBEE 1,501,767 1,657,610
Current liabilities TEARE 95,818 71,562
Equity attributable to owners of VN/NCIESPEDN
the Company R GRS 2,856,626 2,845,132
Non-controlling interests IR T 31,359 33,540
Revenue x| 519,945 468,782
Expenses, other gains and losses FiX - Efhies REE 497,100 460,470
Profit for the year INEEE % A 22,845 8,312
Profit attributable to owners of KAREABA
the Company iyl 12,053 2,769
Profit attributable to non-controlling PN/NSI g
interests of the Company JE(R = 6,613 1,520
Profit attributable to the non-controling ~ KBCF3E{ZA% # 25
interests of KBCF e F 4,179 4,023
Profit for the year REEREF 22,845 8,312
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ = Z— G+ A=+—HILFE

40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

40. AATNEEWBAT

=10

(continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that (b) EEERFEREZRZHE
have material non-controlling interests (continued) 2EWBARFRE @
KBCF (continued) KBCF(##)

2014 2013
—E—lmF =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Other comprehensive (expense) income  ARNARIFAE ARG EMEE
attributable to owners of the Company  (Fiz) ez (4,631) 44,733
Other comprehensive (expense) income A2 B FEIE AR HE2R FE(L EL b
attributable to non-controlling interests 2 TE (B2 )z
of the Company (2,541) 24,545
Other comprehensive (expense) income  KBCFIEIZEI&fE R fE (L Efth 2
attributable to the non-controlling GEl&
interests of KBCF (120) 960
Other comprehensive (expense) income  Z4E [E H i 2
for the year (Fs0) e (7,292) 70,238
Total comprehensive income PiN/NEIES YN 2 i)
attributable to owners of the Company U254 %8 7,422 47 502
Total comprehensive income AN R FERE AR 2 A
attributable to non-controlling FHERELRTE
interests of the Company 4,072 26,065
Total comprehensive income KBCF3E2 ik 1 7 FE 1 2 T
attributable to the non-controlling WS HazE
interests of KBCF 4,059 4,983
Total comprehensive income for the year ZRNFE 2 HE UG AAEE 15,553 78,550
Net cash inflow from operating activities 4% & ¥ /%I &R A5 214,864 158,806
Net cash outflow from investing activities %4 %738 & F 5 (3,750) (4,732)
Net cash outflow from financing activities Fi& %73 & m %58 (497) (2,972)
Net cash inflow RE AT 210,617 151,102
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B2
RESULTS S
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLFE
2010 2012 2013 2014
—T—TF —T——F —IT—=F ZT-—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FHT Tt Tt Tt FET
Revenue =0 13,055,205 13,204,979 12,483,227 12,798,302 13,282,694
Profit before taxation BR AR A& F 2,636,467 1,534,488 1,345,446 1,393,151 1,329,256
Income tax expense FRiSHif (269,783) (176,650) (179,505) (183,268) (193,281)
Profit for the year REE R 2,366,684 1,357,838 1,165,941 1,209,883 1,135,975
Attributable to: FE(R1DEE
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIESYEDN 2,280,380 1,324,958 1,163,941 1,207,182 1,121,842
Non-controlling interests IR 2 86,304 32,880 2,000 2,701 14,133
2,366,684 1,357,838 1,165,941 1,209,883 1,135,975
> ==
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE

At 31 December

R+=—A=t+—8H
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—E2-TF ZT——F ZT—=-—F === —E—NE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT FHT FET FHET
Total assets BERE 16,439,825 18,061,463 19,273,833 21,959,326 22,922,586
Total liabilities BfERE (5,586,438)  (6,270,811)  (6,383,147)  (7,934,790)  (8,528,926)
Net assets BAEFE 10,853,387 11,790,652 12,890,686 14,024,536 14,393,660

Equity attributable to owners Zx A FlH5E A

of the Company JE(ERERS 9,869,990 10,744,986 11,808,165 12,918,293 13,299,975
Non-controlling interests FEVEIRAE RS 983,397 1,045,666 1,082,521 1,106,243 1,093,685
Total equity BARGAEE 10,853,387 11,790,652 12,890,686 14,024,536 14,393,660
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

Rrmlz B E R

The financial information of the Company as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 is

as follows:

ARAR-E-NER-F-=F+=A
=t—HAZHMBERDAT

2014 2013
—ZE-mF —T—=4F

HK$000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Total assets

BE®#E

Investment in a subsidiary R—HEHB AR ZRE 5,711,740 5,711,740
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG E e 11,070,857 11,571,382
Other receivables and prepayments Hpth e W BR TR R FB A OB 66,257 51,004
Bank balances and cash RITHEB RIS 9,720 14,307
16,858,574 17,348,433
Total liabilities BERRE

Other payables E At FERTAR TR 40,981 50,396
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTH B A B8 4,780,853 4,245,294
Bank borrowings HRITEE 4,443,909 5,291,684
9,265,743 9,587,374
Net assets BEFE 7,592,831 7,761,059

Capital and reserves & A R
Share capital P& A 300,000 300,000
Reserves (Note) fEHE (aE) 7,292,831 7,461,059
Total equity BREEE 7,592,831 7,761,059
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY
ARal HHEM

Note: FtEE -
Share
Share options Special Retained
premium reserve reserve earnings Total
BERE
B RS SRl REBER bl
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAIT FAT FHT FHT
(note)
(P&
At 1 January 2013 R-Z—=%F—H—H 1,097,104 99,899 5,427,130 902,735 7,526,868
Profit for the year and total AR E i F AN FE
comprehensive income for the year 2HEREEREE - - - 431,275 431,275
Recognition of equity-settled RS E RS AR
share based payments - 12,916 - - 12,916
Final dividend paid for the year BEMEBEZZ—=—F+=A
ended 31 December 2012 =t+—HIEFEZREBRE - - - (360,000) (360,000)
Interim dividend paid for the year BEEE=Z—=F+=A4
ended 31 December 2013 =tT—HIEFEZHREHRE - - - (150,000) (150,000)
- 12,916 - (510,000) (497,084)
At 31 December 2013 RZZ—=F+-_A=+—8 1,097,104 112,815 5,427,130 824,010 7,461,059
Profit for the year and total AEEMNEAFER2E
comprehensive income for the year eyt - - - 369,642 369,642
Recognition of equity-settled RIARREER O R
share based payments - 2,130 - - 2,130
Lapse of share options BERERIER - (21,840) - 21,840 -
Final dividend paid for the year BEN#BE-Z—=F1+=A
ended 31 December 2013 =T —HIEFEZRBRE - - - (360,000) (360,000)
Interim dividend paid for the year ENEE—ZE—NFE+_A
ended 31 December 2014 =t+—HIEFEZHRERE - - - (180,000) (180,000)
- (19,710) - (518,160) (537,870)
At 31 December 2014 R_ZE—MEFE+—_A=+—H 1,097,104 93,105 5,427,130 675,492 7,292,831
Note:  Special reserves of the Company represents the difference between the net asset MEE :  AEEZFRIFERERENE AR EEFE
value of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of the Company’s shares BN T AFRTEEEARNAREMETZ
issued for the acquisition at the time of the Group’s reorganisation in 2006. RABIRDEENE 2 BRI ELE
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KINGBOARD LAMINATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

2nd Floor, Harbour View 1, No. 12 Science Park East Avenue, Phase 2 Hong Kong Science Park, Shatin, Hong Kong
AP HEERZERE2HRRANBER1250GBERIE1E2E

Tel &E5F : (852) 2605 6493 Fax K : (852) 2691 5245

E-mail =% : enquiry@kingboard.com Web site 811k : http://www.kblaminates.com
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